
CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE: CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING 
— AGENDA — 

Council Chambers, Simpsonville City Hall | Dec. 9, 2025| 6 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Presiding Officer: Paul Shewmaker, Mayor

2. ROLL CALL
Recorder: Ashley Clark, Clerk of Council

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Nov. 19, 2025

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Code of Ordinances: Chapter 2. Article II. Division 2. Sec. 2-69.b.1) Citizens of the City or others who have standing 
in the City, such as business owners, shall be entitled to appear before council at 
regular meetings. Such persons may speak regarding matters that are within the jurisdiction of the City, except for personnel 
matters. At least 10 minutes prior to the time the meeting is scheduled to commence, such person 
wishing to appear before council must place his or her name, address, and topic to be addressed 
on the public comments sign-up list maintained by the City Clerk. Individual comments shall be limited 
to three minutes.

6. BUSINESS

A. Commissions and Boards Appointments
Jon Derby, Planning Director

B. 2nd Reading of Ordinance O-2025-11, Amend Code of Ordinances Sec. 8-41 and 8-42, Technical Codes 
Jon Derby, Planning Director

C. 2nd Reading of AXZ-2025-03, Annexation of Property at 320 Tearose Lane
Jon Derby, Planning Director

D. 2nd Reading of Ordinance O-2025-12, Amending Code of Ordinances Sec. 16-4, Wards and Boundaries 
Councilman Tim Pinkerton, Ward 5

E. 1st Reading of Z-2025-02, Rezoning of Properties Located at 118 & 124 NE Main Street
Jon Derby, Planning Director

F. Resolution R-2025-05, Textile Rehabilitation Certification, Burdette Textile Factory
Jon Derby, Planning Director

G. Resolution R-2025-06, Conveyance of Garrett Property to the City of Simpsonville
Tee Coker, City Administrator

H. 1st Reading of Ordinance O-2025-13, Trespass Enforcement Authorization Program
Tee Coker, City Administrator

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. To discuss a contractual matter pertaining to CCNB Amphitheatre at Heritage Park

B. To discuss a personnel matter pertaining to Administration department
(Upon coming out of an executive session, Council may reconvene the meeting to act on matters discussed in Executive 
Session)

8. ADJOURNMENT

PLEASE NOTE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDAS ARE ACCURATE AS OF THE FRIDAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING BUT IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE UP TO TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT SIMPSONVILLE CITY 
HALL THE DAY OF THE MEETING FOR AN UP-TO-DATE AGENDA AT 864-967-9526. 



CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE: CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING 
MINUTES 

Council Chambers, Simpsonville City Hall | November 19, 2025 | 6 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Presiding ODicer: Paul Shewmaker, Mayor

2. ROLL CALL
Councilmember Present Absent 
Ward 1 – Chad O’Rear ü 
Ward 2 – Aaron Rupe  ü 
Ward 3 – Shannon Williams ü 
Ward 4 – Sherry Roche ü 
Ward 5 – Tim Pinkerton ü 
Ward 6 – Lou Hutchings ü 
Mayor Paul Shewmaker ü 

ABSENT: None 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. PRESENTATION
Mayor Shewmaker presented a Proclamation Commemorating the 250th

anniversaries of the founding of the US Army, Navy, and Marines to Councilmember
O’Rear.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Minutes from the Business Meeting October 14, 2025 were approved as written.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS
Robert Jones voiced concerns about annexation of property on W. Georgia Road and
a proposed new development.

Misty Reynold voiced concerns about a complaint she submitted.

Allison Hanline, River Shoals HOA President, expressed concerns about annexation
of property on W. Georgia Road and a proposed new development.

Ron Clyde voiced concerns about annexation of property on W. Georgia Road and a
proposed new development.



7. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. 2nd Reading of Ordinance O-2025-10, Amending the Business License 
Ordinance to update the Class Schedule as required by ACT 176 of 2020 
Motion by Councilmember Hutchings, with a second by Councilmember Roche to 
approve 2nd reading of Ordinance O-2025-10, Amending the Business License 
Ordinance to update the Class Schedule as required by ACT 176 of 2020. Y-7 N-0. 
Motion carried.   
 
B. 1st Reading of Ordinance O-2025-11, Amending Code of Ordinances Sec. 8-41 
and 8-42, Technical Codes 
Motion by Councilmember Roche with a second by Councilmember Pinkerton to 
approve 1st reading of Ordinance O-2025-11, Amending Code of Ordinances Sec. 8-
41 and 8-42, Technical Codes. Y-7 N-0. Motion carried. 
 
 
C. 1st Reading of AXZ-2025-03, Annexation of Property at 320 Tearose Lane 
Motion by Councilmember Williams with a second by Councilmember Hutchings to 
approve 1st Reading of AXZ-2025-03, Annexation of Property at 320 Tearose Lane.  
Y-7 N-0. Motion carried. 
 
 D. 1st Reading of AXZ-2025-04, Annexation of Property on W. Georgia Road 
Motion by Councilmember Pinkerton with a second by Councilmember Hutchings 
to approve 1st reading of AXZ-2025-04, Annexation of Property on W. Georgia Road. 
Y-2 N-5. Councilmember Williams and Mayor Shewmaker voting yes. Motion failed. 
 
E. 1st Reading of Ordinance O-2025-12, Amending Code of Ordinances Sec. 16-4 
Wards and Boundaries 
Motion by Councilmember Pinkerton with a second by Hutchings to approve 1st 
reading of Ordinance O-2025-12, Amending Code of Ordinances Sec. 16-4 Wards 
and Boundaries. Y-7 N-0. Motion carried.  
 
F. Executive Session 
Motion by Councilmember Roche with a second by Councilmember Pinkerton to 
enter into Executive Session to discuss employee compensation. 
 Y-7 N-0. Motion carried.  
 
Upon coming out of Executive Session, the following vote was taken.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Roche with a second by Councilmember Pinkerton to 
authorize the City Administrator to expend funds to address the equitable 
compensation concerns for the Police Department. Y-7 N-0. Motion carried. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT : 8:16PM 



 AGENDA ITEM 
December 2, 2025 

Page 1 of 2 

To: City Council 

From: Planning Director, Jon Derby 

Subject: Commissions Appointments 

Meeting Date: December 9, 2025 

Type of Agenda Item: Committee Volunteer Appointments 

Attachments: Committee Volunteer Applications 

BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission and the Board of Zoning Appeals will have terms expiring on December 31, 
2025. On the Planning Commission, there will be three seats available: Mr. Allen Gillespie, Mr. Mike 
Girodano, and Mr. Lawrence Witul have decided to step down at the end of this year and are not 
seeking reappointment. On the Board of Zoning Appeals, there will be two seats available: Mr. Howard 
Lentz is seeking appointment on the Planning Commission and Mr. Jermaine Smith is seeking 
reappointment on the Boards of Zoning Appeals. Staff has received 11 qualified committee volunteer 
applications for consideration. It is requested that City Council vote to appoint applicants to fill the 
vacant seats.  

APPLICANTS 

For your review, the committee volunteer applications are attached. The following is a summary of 
eligible names for the commission. 
• Planning Commission Candidates (4-year term): one seat available - Expires Dec. 31, 2029

o Emily Schwalbe, Prefers Planning Commission
o Geneva Lawrence,
o Howard Lentz, Prefers Planning Commission
o Dane Lytle,
o Mike Teal, Prefers Planning Commission
o Rick Tomlinson,
o Roxie Kincannon,
o Rod Folk,
o Ronald Reames

• Board of Zoning Appeals Candidates (3-year term): two seats available - Expires Dec. 31, 2028
o Emily Schwalbe, Prefers Planning Commission
o Howard Lentz, Prefers Planning Commission
o Jermaine Smith,
o Amy St. John,
o Mike Teal, Prefers Planning Commission



  Page 2 of 2 

Page 2 of 2 

ELECTIONS 

A ballot will be provided for the vacant seat(s) on the Planning Commission & Boards of Zoning Appeals.  
For your convenience, the ballots will be provided with your name included, a blank space to write in 
your preferred choice, and space for with your signature.   

STAFF COMMENTS 

Staff has determined that the applicants are qualified to serve on their selected choice. 



�����������	
���
 ������������������������������ �����!�"���#����

$����	��%%%&������� ����&'���%�(�����������&�$�)��*�+,���������(�������-,��.�'����+�$�%-��+/0� ��




�����������	
���
 ������������������������������ �����!�"���#����

$����	��%%%&������� ����&'���%�(�����������&�$�)��*�+,���������(�������-,��.�'����+�$�%-��+/0� 
�




���������	
��
���������
��������
��

���������
�����
�� !"�#$
%&"'�(&� !"�#$)*�"��+���,-�.�/�(
0010213435
3657
8/9� :�(
;$<#�
%:;$<#�)���=&�(>���$+���,?
!���
=�"(
�(
"��$(@�(*
� "�
�$$��(*+
?A�
"�&�
��"�
!�� 
&$<>�(*
�(
$�� $<
� $
BCD
�<
8�"((�(*E����&&��(+F "(�
���G�����
�� !"�#$
�(
/�(H
I�>
02H
3435H
3670
8/
:�(
;$<#�
%JKLMNOPQRSTQUVWRXXLYZUS,
!<��$6[\\]
̂\_̀àbc
̂de
fghijklmnop̀q
r\s
t\_
duvpqàb
waxo
yv
x\]pre
zv_
\s_
{\̀|v_dp}\̀c
~\s̀{a�
opd
dsbbvdxv]
xopx
p��
puu�a{p̀xd
p�v̀]xov
yvv}̀b
p̀]
ba|v
p
do\_x
àx_\]s{}\̀
\t
xovydv�|vd
p̀]
dxpxv
xova_
_vpd\̀�d�
t\_
wp̀}̀b
x\
dv_|v
\̀
xov{\yyadda\̀e
�x�d
̀\x
yp̀]px\_rc
�sx
xoad
ad
d\yvxoàb
{\s̀{a�
opd
pb_vv]
x\
v̀{\s_pbve
�t
r\s
p_v
p��v
x\p�v̀]c
xov
yvv}̀b
wa��
�v
ov�]
\̀
��������
���
��
������
px
~axr
�p��
{\s̀{a�
{opy�v_de�v
op|v
�
dvpxd
{\yàb
p|pa�p��v
\̀
z~
p̀]
�
dvpxd
\̀
���e
�\s
dv�v{xv]
z~
pd
r\s_
{o\a{ve
�t
r\s
p_vàxv_vdxv]
à
dv_|àb
\̀
���c
�
{p̀
usx
r\s_
puu�a{p}\̀
à
xopx
dv�v{}\̀
u\\�
pd
wv��e
�sdx
{\̀�_y
woa{o
\̀v
adr\s_
u_ayp_r
{o\a{vez�p̀ à̀b
~\yyadda\̀
ad
p
��rvp_
xv_yc
woa�v
���
ad
p
��rvp_
xv_ye
�\s
{p̀
\̀�r
dv_|v
\̀
\̀v
�\p_]
px
p
}yve vx
yv
q̀\w
at
op|v
p̀r
¡svd}\̀d
p�\sx
p̀r
\t
xoade¢à{v_v�rc£¤¥
¦§̈©ª«¬­¥¥®¥̄
¦®̈§°±¤̈²®±ª
¤³
́®µ¶·¤¥̧®¬¬§¹ºº»¼½¾
¿ÀÁÂÃ
ÄÁÅÆÄÇÈÁ




���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+",
--.-/.0102
0304
567� 8���� 
9:��;"��
#89:��;"��&������ !���"'(��)<
8� 
="$;%
#8="$;%&������ !���"'(��)
>?@ABC
@DB
E?FFGCCG?DC
H?IJDKLLA
MNNIGO@KG?DP?AFQRRSTUVWTXY
ZVW[\]X̂[_ [̀a
bcd
efeg]V_[\h[Y[̂V
iVja[YU[Qkka[ll\efm
n[VWWT[
oWd
oT_RlXŶTSS[d
oXpWq
rVaXSTYVd
ecstbZVuWT_[
vqXY[\tswxwbwxgbymz_VTS\{[SVja|VXS}UX_~UUpRVWTXY\
�[WTa[krX_RVYu\
rTWu
X�
oT_RlXŶTSS[}
rXpYUTS�VTSTY{
Qkka[ll\�qTUq
nXVak
�
rX__TllTXY
kX
uXp
jVYW
WX
l[â[
XY�\vSVYYTY{
rX__TllTXY
�wxu[Va
W[a_��XSpYW[[a
Xa
a[SVW[k
[�R[aT[YU[\
effexeffy
vr}
effwxeffm
rr}
efbexefbg}
rr}�Vak
yQa[
uXp
Upaa[YWSu
l[âTY{
XY
VYu
̀XVakld
UX__TllTXYl
Xa
UX__TWW[[l�\
]X��
u[ld
RS[Vl[
STlW\�[VlXY
�Xa
jVYWTY{
WX
l[â[\



�������������	��
����������
��
����
	
	��
���	��
���	�������
�
	������
���
�����

������������
�����������������
���
���
������
�����	��������
	���
����	
����������������	���

���������
�����
���������������������	� �� ���	��
������
������
����
����!��
���	�������������
��
����������������������
	���"���� ����#����������
�����
��
�#���������	���
������������

	 �����	�����	��
���	
������	����� 	��������#�����	��	���
���� �
��
���
	�����
�������
��
�������
�
���������	�	�	
	���������$�	�����
�������� 	
��
��
����	
������	����� 	����"���	
��
��	���
�����%��� ��&�����
�'�
���(� ������)*+�,-,./01�23�456789�:73�:8;<9=>?8@@AB�:343�0CDEFGAH987A�<=IA6AJ�HK�LMNOP�QRSTUO



���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+",
--.-/.0102
/304
567� 8���� 
9:��;"��
#89:��;"��&������ !���"'(��)<
8� 
="$;%
#8="$;%&������ !���"'(��)
>?@ABC
@DB
E?FFGCCG?DC
H?IJDKLLA
MNNIGO@KG?DP?AFQRRSTUVWTXY
ZVW[\]X̂[_ [̀a
bcd
efeg]V_[\hXiVaj
kl
m[YWnQjja[oo\p
qT_ [̀arVUs
tWa[[Wd
tT_RoXŶTSS[d
tXuWv
wVaXSTYVd
ecxyfZVzWT_[
{vXY[\yxplgeglg|gfk_VTS\S[YWnl}V_TSzloU~XuWSXXslUX_�UUuRVWTXY\
�[WTa[jwX_RVYz\
]l
�Voo[aoWaX_
VYj
tXYo�VTSTY�
Qjja[oo\
bff
�[Y
���
Q̂[ld
�XuYWVTY
�YYd
tXuWv
wVaXSTYVd
ecxpp�vTUv
�XVaj
�
wX__TooTXY
jX
zXu
iVYW
WX
o[â[
XY�\{SVYYTY�
wX__TooTXY
�p�z[Va
W[a_��XSuYW[[a
Xa
a[SVW[j
[�R[aT[YU[\
{a[oTj[YWd
�VaWTYo�
�aX̂[
hX_[XiY[aoQooXUTVWTXYl
tT_RoXŶTSS[
�XVaj
X}
�XYTY�
QRR[VSolQa[
zXu
Uuaa[YWSz
o[âTY�
XY
VYz
̀XVajod
UX__TooTXYo
Xa
UX__TWW[[o�\
�[o�}
z[od
RS[Vo[
SToW\tT_RoXŶTSS[
�XVaj
X}
�XYTY�
QRR[VSod
[�RTaTY�
[Yj
X}
efegl



���������	�
�����
������	����������������������������������������������������������������	�	���������������������
��	��
�����������	����������������	�����	����	����� ����
�!�������
�����
�����������
����!��������������
���
�	"��
������������	�����
���"�	���������������
����������������#�����$��������
�	"��
������������	���������
��	���	����������������	�%	���������&������'�������(!)'�������"������*���+�	������������������������������������������������������������������������, !��
��	������	�����������	������	���������#����	��-����
�	���	�����
�����������	�����.����������������������!�����
����
�������������������	�����������	����
������	���	������������
&�������������
�����������������	��������	����������������
��	���������������	�����
����!���������	�����"�����������
��	���������
�	"�����������
�����	��������������
����	�������.��	������������������������������������
�/0&/��������������
���������		�������	������
�����������	�������1�����������������	�����������
���	���	���������������
�����&���2�,�����	������	�����
���������	����������������������������
��
�������������
��������������	������������������	����	�����
	�
�����������������������������	����������������	�	���������������������	������	����3(��	���
�����4�-�		������	��
����������	�����	�������%��	
���������������
���
���	���	����������.��	��������5������������������������������
	�
������������������������������	����������	���������
��
�������
�����	���	�������	���	�����'��������
�����	������
	�
����!��
���	��������	����	"����
����������������������.�����������	���	����
	�
��1���	����������
�
������$���������������"��(���������������6������������������������������	�����	����������������	���������������	�����	��������������
�������������
���	�������	�
	�
��
��	�����
����������
�������7�����������
�
	������-�
������"����	����������������	���������������������	������������������������������
������	����������	�����8�����
���	�����������'������������������������������������������������������������	��������������������������!�����
��'����������������
	�
������������	��������������
��������'�	�������	����	��������������1��	���������������
������������	����������	���'���9������	�����������	�:����'����:��1�	����	������������������
�&����	���������
�����������������������!��	����������	���������	��������������	���������	��
���������������������������&�������'���������������������
�����
���������������������������	�������		���������	��������������������	�7��	������������	������������&�������'������������!���������'�
����	���-�
�	��/��9���;+�����)������	�<=��>?>@ABC�DE�FGHIJK�LIE�LJMNKOPQJRRST�LEFE�BUVWXYSZKJIS�NO[SHS\�Z]�̂_̀ab�cdefga



���������	
��

����
�����������������
�� !�"
#�����$%� !�"$&'(')�*��*$���+,���-�.
//0/102324
154/
678� 9��
:�*;"
#9:�*;"(<! =&��>!���$'� +?
@)�*����
@�*��*
#''�*��*(<! =&��>!���$'� +A
BCDEFCB
A
GHGI

A
JKLMNG
ODBCP
HQ
BCLNN
RSKTNUI

VNUP
A
WDESG
SHMN
BD
KRRSX
YDL
ODBCI

ZQN
DL
BCNDBCNLP
QDB
TDQTELLNQBI


[\]
̂_̀abbc
dbe
fghebihjklmn
9��
:�*;"
#9:�*;"(<! =&��>!���$'� +opqrn
-�.��&.�"s
t�>� ;�*
/1s
2324
15u25/2
67vln
�����$%� !�"$&'(')�*��*$���
#�����$%� !�"$&'(')�*��*$���+?
@)�*����
@�*��*#''�*��*(<! =&��>!���$'� +owxypzrn
{�5
|}6
&���
�~=!*!����
�����������
��
��������
����
�����������
��
���
����
��
����
��������
���
��
����
������
�������
��
���
��
������
������
���
���������
��
���
� ¡
¢£¤¥¦§̈©¡¡ª¡«
¢ª¤£¬­ ¤®ª­¦
 ̄
°ª±²³ ¡́ ª̈̈£µ¶¶·̧¹º
»¼½¾¿
À½ÁÂÀÃÄ½
ÅÆÇÈÉ
����Ê�Ë�Ì������Í�����������
Î����Ê�Ë�Ì������Í�����������ÏÐÑÒÓÉ
Ô���������
Õ���ÌÖ��
×Ø�
ÙÚÙÛ
ØÜÝÚ
�ÞßÇÉ
��������
������
Î�������Íà�Ì������������ÌÏáâÉ
ã��
���Ö�
Îã���Ö�Íà�Ì������������ÌÏÐäåæÑâÓÉ
ç�Ü
���
����
�è�����é
��
����������
ê���
��Ì������
���
�����������

���
���
���ë�Ì
��
����
�����

ì���
���
����í
��ÖÌ���
��
ê��������������

Õ�
���
��
�����
�
����
Ë��
��������

î���í�ï������



��������	
��
���	
��
����	
��
�������
����������������� ��!	"#�$���%�
�&'#�&(&)�**+,)�-./���0�1	
!�2�
�3����
�3�4	���"������	
��
�
����567�8���9:-���	���;��
�
<�=>>?�@ABCDE>>EF�G�H@EBC?�B>�DC@IJ�>KB�@E?�LCB�M>K�NE>H�BJC�OC@B�M>K�APLL�>E�Q>@D?�>A�R>EPESTUUC@LO�HPLL�CVUPDC�WCICXYCD�Z[F�\]\̂_P̀BM�̀>KEIPL�HPLL�a>BC�B>�DCAPLL�OC@BO�YCA>DC�BJCM�CVUPDC_G�HPLL�XCEBP>E�HC�J@aC�Z�OC@BO�CVUPDPES�>E�bL@EEPES�̀>XXPOOP>E�@E?�\�OC@BO�>EQ>@D?�>A�R>EPES�TUUC@LO_bLC@OC�I>XULCBC�BJC�@UULPI@BP>E�@E?�OCE?�PB�Y@IN�B>�XC�PA�M>K�H>KL?�LPNC�B>�YC@UU>PEBC?�B>>�CPBJCD_�cJ@EN�M>K�A>D�OCDaPES�>E�BJPO�Y>@D?_�dPEN�YCL>H�effghijjkkklhmnghopqmrrsltonjuovwxhytonnmhhmophjuovwxhyvpxytonnmhhmophyoprmpsyqorzpfsswyvggrmtvfmopj���{|}~�������|}���~���}�����������}~~����������}������������������������������������~�������������������������������������





JDerby
Stamp











���������	
��

���������������������
����
��� !"#$%&'�()*"��+,-����)
##.#/.0102
##3&#
��4� 5�)
6 789
�56 789':;�<(�)=;�� *"��+>?@ABC
DEF
G?H
I@JJ
K
L
MNJJ
OJ@A
EA
@PHAQNAR
G?H
SHHTAR
@AQ
MNJJ
@JCE
IEACNQHF
G?H
UVW
@C
@
CHIEAQI?ENIHX>?@ABCKYNBH
>H@JZ[\]̂
_EA
̀HFab
c_̀HFabdeNSOCEAfNJJHXIESghijk̂
YEAQ@bK
lEfHSaHF
mnK
opoq
mprso
WYt\̂
SGH@ImuvwdSCAXIES
cSGH@ImuvwdSCAXIESgxŷ
z?@FJHAH
z@FGHF
cII@FGHFdeNSOCEAfNJJHXIESgh{|}iyk̂
~z
WOOENAGSHAG
YNBHK~HF
E�F
IEAfHFC@TEA
GEQ@bK
zE�AINJ
MNJJ
aH
S@BNAR
G?HNF
CHJHITEA
EA
@OOJNI@AGC
GE
�JJ
G?H
w
f@I@AG
CH@GC
EA
G?H~J@AANAR
zESSNCCNEA
@G
G?HNF
̀HIHSaHF
uG?
�vrppOS�
SHHTARX
>?Hb
?@fH
@CBHQ
ND
@OOJNI@AGC
ME�JQ
@PHAQ
G?NCSHHTAR
@AQ
RNfH
@
C?EFG
NAGFEQ�ITEA
ED
G?HSCHJfHCK
CG@TAR
G?HNF
QHCNFHC
GE
CHFfH
EA
G?H
IESSNCCNEAX
>?NC
NC
AEGS@AQ@GEFbK
a�G
SHFHJb
@
FH��HCGXWJCEK
ND
bE�
?@fH
AE
Ea�HITEAK
ME�JQ
bE�
aH
NAGHFHCGHQ
NA
CHFfNAR
EA
E�F
UE@FQ
ED
VEANAR
WOOH@JC�
LA
G?H
I@CH
bE�@FH
AEG
@OOENAGHQ
GE
G?H
~zK
G?H
UVW
NC
@JCE
@
fNG@J
OFEIHCC
ED
?EM
E�F
INGb
NC
REfHFAHQX
�H
?@fH
o
CH@GC
IESNAR@f@NJ@aJH
@G
G?H
HAQ
ED
G?H
bH@F
NA
@QQNTEA
GE
G?H
w
~z
CH@GCX
>?NC
NC
@
w�bH@F
GHFS
EA
G?H
UVWX~JH@CH
JHG
SH
BAEM
ND
bE�
ME�JQ
IEACNQHF
G?H
EOTEA
DEF
UVW
@C
bE�F
CHIEAQ
I?ENIHX
�HG
SH
BAEM
ND
bE�
?@fH
@Ab
��HCTEACX���
�������������
������������
��
�������������  ¡¢£¤
¥¦§̈©
ª§«¬ª­®§




���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+,�
--./0./0/1
2304
567� 8���� 
9:��;"��
#89:��;"��&������ !���"'(��)<
8� 
="$;%
#8="$;%&������ !���"'(��)>?@ABC
@DB
E?FFGCCG?DC
H?IJDKLLA
MNNIGO@KG?DP?AFQRRSTUVWTXY
ZVW[\]X̂[_ [̀a
bcd
bcbe]V_[\fTUg
hX_STYiXYQjja[ii\ekl
mXTYi[WWTV
Zad
nT_RiXŶTSS[d
nXoWp
qVaXSTYVd
brlskZVtWT_[
mpXY[\uucverevwueux_VTS\aTUgyWX_STYiXYzVWWyY[W{UUoRVWTXY\
ZTa[UWXa
X|
{R[aVWTXYiqX_RVYt\
qXSS[UW
}X~TUd
}}q�VTSTY~
Qjja[ii\�pTUp
�XVaj
�
qX__TiiTXY
jX
tXo
�VYW
WX
i[â[
XY�\mSVYYTY~
qX__TiiTXY
�wvt[Va
W[a_��XSoYW[[a
Xa
a[SVW[j
[�R[aT[YU[\
x�W[YiT̂[
̀VUg~aXoYj
TY
qX__[aUTVS
�f[iTj[YWTVS
qXYiWaoUWTXYd
Z[̂[SXR_[YW
VYj
maX�[UW
�VYV~[_[YWyQa[
tXo
Uoaa[YWSt
i[âTY~
XY
VYt
̀XVajid
UX__TiiTXYi
Xa
UX__TWW[[i�\
]X�|
t[id
RS[Vi[
STiW\f[ViXY
|Xa
�VYWTY~
WX
i[â[\�
�XoSj
STg[
WX
UXYWaT̀oW[
WX
Wp[
j[UTiTXYi
_Vj[
XY
Wp[
~aX�Wp
VYj
[�RVYiTXY
X|Wp[
qTWt
X|
nT_RiXŶTSS[y



����������	�
�����
���������������
���
������	���
���������������������������
�������
�

��������	�������
���
�����������������
����������
� �������
����������!���
���������
��������������� 	�������������������
�"�!�����������������!�������������������������!���������
�������

���	�����
������� ������������
��	�
�!������
���
������������������
�"�!��������������������"�����	
���#��$�%�!������&�����'���! �
�()��()(*+,-�./�012345�63/�647859:;4<<=>�6/0/�,?@ABC=D543=�89E=2=F�DG�HIJKL�MNOPQK



���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+,�
--./0./0/1
2311
456� 7���� 
89��:"��
#789��:"��&������ !���"'(��);
7� 
<"$:%
#7<"$:%&������ !���"'(��)
=>?@AB
?CA
D>EEFBBF>CB
G>HICJKK@
LMMHFN?JF>CO>@EPQQRSTUVSWX
YUVZ[\W]Ẑ _Z̀
abc
dedf\Û Z[gWhSZ
i
jSXTUXXWXPkk̀Zll[dam
nWXZl
P]ZXoZc
pŜQlWX]SRRZc
pWoVq
rÙWRSXUc
dsmtaYUuVŜZ
vqWXZ[tmwsatdxaxŷ USR[̀WhSZVz{|̂ USR}TŴ~TToQUVSWX[
gZVS̀ZkrŴ QUXu[
\WXZ�USRSX|
Pkk̀Zll[
dam
nWXZl
P]ZXoZc
pŜQlWX]SRRZc
pWoVq
rÙWRSXUc
dsmta�qSTq
�WÙk
�
rŴ ^SllSWX
kW
uWo
�UXV
VW
lZ̀]Z
WX�[vRUXXSX|
rŴ ^SllSWX
�w�uZÙ
VZ̀^��WRoXVZZ̀
Ẁ
̀ZRUVZk
ZhQZ̀SZXTZ[
pZ̀]Zk
WX
�~�P
�Ẁ
lZ]Z̀UR
uZÙlP̀Z
uWo
Tò Z̀XVRu
lZ̀]SX|
WX
UXu
_WÙklc
TŴ ^SllSWXl
Ẁ
TŴ ^SVVZZl�[
\W��
uZlc
QRZUlZ
RSlV[gZUlWX
�Ẁ
�UXVSX|
VW
lZ̀]Z[



��������	
������
	��	������������	��
�	��	��
�
��
	��	��
���	�
��
���	���	�
��
����
	��	���	����	�
�	
��	
��	
��	�
	
�
��	������	������	
��	��
����
��
������
	�������
�����	�	��
� �	�����
�	
��
	�	��	�	
������
	�
	���	��	��
���	 �������	��	
����
�	��	������������	���	�	��	�������	
�	����
�	
��	
���	�������
�	
�	��

�	��
	
��
������� ���
���	���	
�!��
����
�	��	��
����	
�	
��	��
�	��	������������"��������
	�����
�
��	#�$��	%	&��������'�
��	(���� �
	)*+	,-,./01	23	456789	:73	:8;<9=>?8@@AB	:343	0CDEFGAH987A	<=IA6AJ	HK	LMNOP	QRSTUO



���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+,�
--./0./0/1
23/4
567� 8���� 
9:��;"��
#89:��;"��&������ !���"'(��)<
8� 
="$;%
#8="$;%&������ !���"'(��)>?@ABC
@DB
E?FFGCCG?DC
H?IJDKLLA
MNNIGO@KG?DP?AFQRRSTUVWTXY
ZVW[\]X̂[_ [̀a
bcd
bcbe]V_[\fg
hXi
jXSkQiia[ll\mn
oSX̂[apT[Si
Zad
qT_RlXŶTSS[d
qXrWs
oVaXSTYVd
btuncvwutwZVxWT_[
ysXY[\nuzbbnwnm{|_VTS\aXipXSk} [̀SSlXrWsgY[W~UUrRVWTXY\
h[WTa[ioX_RVYx\
h[WTa[i�VTSTY�
Qiia[ll\�sTUs
�XVai
�
oX__TllTXY
iX
xXr
�VYW
WX
l[â[
XY�\ySVYYTY�
oX__TllTXY
�zvx[Va
W[a_��XSrYW[[a
Xa
a[SVW[i
[�R[aT[YU[\
]XY[Qa[
xXr
Uraa[YWSx
l[âTY�
XY
VYx
̀XVaild
UX__TllTXYl
Xa
UX__TWW[[l�\
]X�p
x[ld
RS[Vl[
STlW\h[VlXY
pXa
�VYWTY�
WX
l[â[\�
̀[UV_[
_Xa[
TYW[a[lW[i
TY
UTWx
�X̂[aYVYU[
VpW[a
a[ViTY�
_VW[aTVS
paX_
Ws[qWaXY�
�X�Yl
Xa�VYT�VWTXY
VYi
a[VST�TY�
_VYx
Xp
Ws[
RaTYUTRS[l
Ws[x
RaX_XW[
�TSSs[SR
qT_RlXŶTSS[
̀[
pTYVYUTVSSx
lXŜ[YWd
a[lTST[YW
VYi
̀rTSi
V
s[VSWsx
SXUVS[UXYX_x
UVRV̀S[
Xp
lrlWVTYV̀S[
RaXlR[aTWxg



��������	
������
����	�������������������������������������	�������������	�	�����������	�	�����������������	
�����������������������������	��	�	���������������	���	�����������	�����������	�������	��������������������� 	�����!"�����#����������������������	��	���������	������������������$��������	%������&"���	�����%����������
'�����	�������� ����	���������������	���	�������� ������ ������������������	%����������	����	�������
'�	��������������������������������	����	�������	�����"��	���
'�����	�������������	�����	�����������������	����������	���� ���� �������������"��"���	�������� ����������������"������ ���������"���(��������"��������������������������
'������������������"��	��������������	���	����)���������������
'����"�������������'�"��	������	������������������������%������������������
����	�������'�"��	������	�������������	���"��	�����������*	����� 	��������	���������������������	��	��������"���������������	����"������������%���������"�������"�����	�������"�������	�"��	�����������������������"�����������������������	�������	�������	���������$������� 	�������������%	�����������	�������������	������������������+,-��	��	���"�	��������"��������	�����$���"���	���"��������	�������"��	�������������������	��	���*�����	�	���"��������"��	����������������������������	�������	������� ����������	�����	����.�������������������������������� ��"�������#��	�	�������	
����������"��	��������	����	�����
��
	���������(���
'��	�������������"�������"����������������������������	�	�	��������"����	%���������*	����� 	����"�������*�����(�����/	����	��������������������	��������������������������	����������	�����	����������������"��	��	��"������������&"�����������"����	������,�0��'���������	 ��
�������������	�����������	��������������������������������	��������������"����������������������������)��������������������	�����
'����"����������������������(���1�������������������������������������*	����� 	������"����	����������"�	���������������������������������������� ��������(���
'����"�����������������"��������������������	���������	�"����"�	�����2�*#��"�������	���������"������������ ������������������(���
'����"����� ���������������������������	�%�������������	������������������
����	���'���	��	���������������$��������	�	�����������"��	���3���������"�������������������������������	��"������	�������'	��45���1�	���	�	��������������	����	������ ������(�	��	���������&"	�	�����������������������	����3	������������ ��	������#���������������� ��"���	����� �������2� �������������������������"������������	��#�'.6)#�������������������	������	���	���	���������*�����	�	����������	�#���������$��,��(����	��$��	���	�	������	���"������������������������������	�����"��	��������	���	�	����"��	������,7-8������,7-8��
	���������(��������	��������������	����	 �������	��������	��9��
�����"��	�������	������������	���	�	����������"�	�������������"����������������������	�������������������	��������������������	���	����	��������� ������"�	�����������)���� ��5���������������������������������	������������������	 ���"�	�����	�����'	������*	����� 	��������������	��	�������� ���������	�����������������������"������������	�	�	�	���������&"	�������������� 	����������'	������*	����� 	����



���������	
������
��	��	���	���������	�������
	���	���� !"	#$	%&'()*	+($	+),-*./0)1123	+$%$	!4567829*)(2	-.:2'2;	9<	=>?@A	BCDEF@



���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+$�
,,-.,-./.0
123,
456� 7���� 
89��:"��
#789��:"��&������ !���"'(��);
7� 
<"$:%
#7<"$:%&������ !���"'(��)=>?@AB
?CA
D>EEFBBF>CB
G>HICJKK@
LMMHFN?JF>CO>@EPQQRSTUVSWX
YUVZ[\W]Ẑ _Z̀
abc
adae\Û Z[fWXURg
fZÛ ZhPgg̀Zhh[i
jWWgV̀USR
kVc
lŜQhWX]SRRZc
lWmVn
kÙWRSXUc
aopqbYUrVŜZ
snWXZ[qptopuabdqv̂ USR[̀WX̀ZÛ ZhwWmVRWWxyTŴzTTmQUVSWX[
{skkŴ QUXr[
kÙWRSXU
kZXVZ̀
|Ẁ
kWmXhZRSX}~USRSX}
Pgg̀Zhh[
tab
lv
~USX
lV
lmSVZ
adbc
lŜQhWX]SRRZc
lWmVn
kÙWRSXUc
aopqbjnSTn
�WÙg
�
kŴ ^ShhSWX
gW
rWm
�UXV
VW
hZ̀]Z
WX�[sRUXXSX}
kŴ ^ShhSWX
�t�rZÙ
VZ̀^��WRmXVZZ̀
Ẁ
̀ZRUVZg
Z�QZ̀SZXTZ[
~ZURh
WX
jnZZRhc
v�ZTmVS]Z
_WÙg
W|
lP�{c
lVUVZRSTZXhSX}
_WÙg
|Ẁ
TWmXhZRẀhP̀Z
rWm
Tm̀ Z̀XVRr
hZ̀]SX}
WX
UXr
_WÙghc
TŴ ^ShhSWXh
Ẁ
TŴ ^SVVZZh�[
\W�|
rZhc
QRZUhZ
RShV[fZUhWX
|Ẁ
�UXVSX}
VW
hZ̀]Z[{S|Z
RWX}
̀ZhSgZXV
W|
VnZ
TSVry
�̀W�Vn
Sh
}WWgc
nW�Z]Z̀c
QRUXXSX}
|Ẁ
}̀W�Vn
VURxSX}SXVW
UTTWmXV
SX|̀UhV̀mTVm̀Zc
V̀U||ST
UXg
RWX}
VZ̀^
ŜQUTV
̂mhV
_Z
TWXhSgZ̀Zg



����������	�
�����
���������������
���
������	���
�����������������
�

���
����������
�
���������������������
���������
��������
���������������������	
������������������ �����!����"�
�#$%�#&#'()*�+,�-./012�30,�31452678199:;�3,-,�)<=>?@:A210:�56B:/:C�AD�EFGHI�JKLMNH



���������	
��
	��
�����������
��������

������	����
��
��
�������� !���"
# �$"��%&������ !���"'(��)*	��+� 
,,-,.-/0/1
23/4
5+6� 7���� 
89��:"��
#789��:"��&������ !���"'(��);
7� 
<"$:%
#7<"$:%&������ !���"'(��)=>?@AB
?CA
D>EEFBBF>CB
G>HICJKK@
LMMHFN?JF>CO>@EPQQRSTUVSWX
YUVZ[\W]Ẑ _Z̀
abc
dedf\Û Z[gZ̀^USXZ
ĥ SViPjj̀Zkk[lm
nSRRŴ Z̀Z
nUoc
hŜQkWX]SRRZc
hWpVi
qÙWRSXUc
drsmaYUoVŜZ
tiWXZ[mslffrsmrlû USR[vRk̂ Vwô USRxTŴyTTpQUVSWX[
qẀQẀUVZ
z̀USXZ̀qŴ QUXo[
{STiZRSX
\ẀVi
P̂ Z̀STU{USRSX|
Pjj̀Zkk[
a
tÙ}~Uo
hWpVic
�̀ZZX]SRRZc
hWpVi
qÙWRSXUc
drsafniSTi
�WÙj
�
qŴ ^SkkSWX
jW
oWp
~UXV
VW
kZ̀]Z
WX�[�WÙj
W�
�WXSX|
PQQZURk
���oZÙ
VZ̀^��WRpXVZZ̀
Ẁ
̀ZRUVZj
Z�QZ̀SZXTZ[
�
iU]Z
Z�QZ̀SZXTZ
kZ̀]SX|
WX
U
_WÙjP̀Z
oWp
Tp̀ Z̀XVRo
kZ̀]SX|
WX
UXo
_WÙjkc
TŴ ^SkkSWXk
Ẁ
TŴ ^SVVZZk�[
�Zk��
oZkc
QRZUkZ
RSkV[�
Û 
Tp̀ Z̀XVRo
kZ̀]SX|
WX
ViZ
�WXSX|
�WÙj
Uk
ViZ
qŴ ^SkkSWXZ̀x�ZUkWX
�Ẁ
~UXVSX|
VW
kZ̀]Z[�
~WpRj
RS}Z
VW
_Z
kZRZTVZj
U|USX
VW
kZ̀]Z
WX
ViZ
�WÙj
W�
�WXSX|x
�
iU]Z
ZXvWoZj^o
VŜZ
~Ẁ}SX|
~SVi
ViZ
WViZ̀
_WÙj
̂Ẑ _Z̀kc
_pV
URkW
~Ẁ}SX|
~SVi
ViZ



���������	
��	�

���	���	���	����	��	��������	�	�
�
	
���	�
�
��
�	��	�
	
	�
��	����
	��
�����	����������	��	�
�
��
��	�	�����	
��
��
��
	
��	
	���
	���	������������	�	
�	
���	������
�	��	���
�	���������	�����
��	������	��

�����
�������	�	
���	���
	���
	���
	��	��	���
�	������	����	�
����	��
�	�
�	�

�	��
������	����
�����	
��	����
����	

��	�����	�
	
�
	
�
�
����	 ��	����
�����
�����	�����!�
�	��	���	�

�	
�
	��
	���	���	��	���

	����
�	�
����	��
	����"#$����������
	��	�����	��	��
	������	����
��	����	��
	����
�	��	�
���
	������	������

�����
	�������	!
	
�
	����
����	����	��
	���	�
���������	����
�	��	%����
�����	
��	&
������	��
�	
�
	�
�����	��
	�
�
	������	��
�	$����������
	�
�	�

��'�
	�
����	����
	�	�

	��	
�������	��
�	�
	(

�	
	�����	��	���
�	�����
��
��	'�
���
	��	
	���������	�
	���
	��	��
�	��
	���
	����
	�����
��
�	�
�	����	�����
���
���	���
�	�����
��
�	��	��
	
�

�	'�
�	�����	��	�����
��
�	�
���	����	�
�
���	��
	����	����	'����	����
	��	�����	
	��
����	����
�	��	�
��	���

�	
��	���
�	
�

��'�
	����	�
�	���(	����	��
	��
�
	��	
���
��	��
�
	����
�	��	���
	��	����	���
����
�
��	��	���
	��
����	��	
	�
��
�	�
��)�����
�#	�	�
�
��	�
��
�
	��
�	�	
�	
	�
���
��	��	���	
�	
����
	�����
��	��	��
����	��	$����������
	
��	�	
�	�������	��	�
���
	��
	���
	�
�
��
��	��	�
���	���	��
�
������������
�	
��	�
*���
�
���	��	�
����
	��	��
	����	��	$����������
�)�����
��	$���
���
#	+
��
��
	$����,
�
#	-��
��
�	./�	0�0�123	45	6789:;	<95	<:=>;?@A:BBCD	<565	2EFGHICJ;:9C	>?KC8CL	JM	NOPQR	STUVWQ









���������	
��
���������
���������
��������������
���
�� 
!�"#
$%�� &�'�"#(�)*+ ,��-.���/�#
0010213435
5657
8/9� !�#
:+;<�
$!:+;<�(�)�=&�#*)��+ ,��->?@A
BCD@E
F?G
H?I
J?@@KJL@M
NOPC
QK
P?RDFS

TU
F?GVIK
DNDIKA
W
CDXK
D@?PCKI
J?QQOPQK@P
PCDP
NOYY
PDEK
PCKUDQK
RDFUZLQKU
H?I
QKKL@MU
DU
[YD@@O@M
J?QQOUUO?@
H?I
PCK
FKDIS

\OPC
PCDP
UJCKRGYO@M
J?@]OJPA
WN?GYR
YOEK
P?
UNOPJC
QF
D[[YOJDL?@
P?
̂_TS

\OYY
JKIPDO@YF
J?@UORKI
̀YD@@O@M
a?QQOUUO?@
DMDO@
O@
PCKHGPGIK
NCK@
W
JD@
K@UGIK
W
JD@
DbK@R
PCK
QKKL@MUS
cKMDIRUA
TQFdefgh
>?@
iKIjF
k>iKIjFlmOQ[U?@XOYYKSJ?Qnopqrh
s?@RDFA
t?XKQjKI
uvA
wxwy
wz{y
̀s|fh
TQF
mPS
>?C@
kDQFSUP}?C@lYOXKSJ?Qno~��p�rh
cKz
mOQ[U?@XOYYK
�?YG@PKKI
T[[YOJDL?@
BCD@E
F?G
H?I
U[KDEO@M
NOPC
QK
P?RDFS
̀KI
?GI
J?@XKIUDL?@A
a?G@JOY
CDU
UGMMKUPKR
PCDP
DYY
D[[YOJD@PU
DbK@R
PCKQKKL@M
D@R
MOXK
D
UC?IP
O@PI?RGJL?@
?H
PCKQUKYXKU
D@R
UPDPK
PCKOI
IKDU?@�U�
H?I
ND@L@M
P?
UKIXK
?@
PCKJ?QQOUUO?@
?I
̂_TS
WPVU
@?P
QD@RDP?IFA
jGP
PCOU
OU
U?QKPCO@M
J?G@JOY
CDU
DMIKKR
P?
K@J?GIDMKS
WH
F?G
DIK
DjYK
P?DbK@RA
PCK
QKKL@M
NOYY
jK
CKYR
?@
�p�pg�pe
�r�
�r
�h���g
DP
aOPF
�DYY
J?G@JOY
JCDQjKIUS
a?G@JOY
NOYY
jKD[[?O@L@M
̀a
D@R
̂_T
UKDPU
PCDP
@OMCPS\K
CDXK
�
UKDPU
J?QO@M
DXDOYDjYK
?@
̀a
D@R
w
UKDPU
?@
̂_TS
�?G
UKYKJPKR
̀a
DU
F?GI
JC?OJKS
WH
F?G
N?GYR
IDPCKIUNOPJC
F?GI
UKYKJL?@
P?
̂_TA
[YKDUK
YKP
QK
E@?NS
\K
CDXK
w
UKDPU
?@
̂_T
D@R
PCKUK
DIK
��FKDI
PKIQUS

BCKF
QKKPPCK
�IR
BGKURDF
?H
PCK
Q?@PCA
NCOYK
̀a
QKKPU
PCK
�IUP
BGKURDF
?H
PCK
Q?@PCS
̂KPNKK@
PCK
PN?A
̂_T
QKKPU
YKUU?�K@
PCD@
̀aS
W
jKYOKXK
NK
CDR
w��
QKKL@MU
DYY
FKDI
H?I
̂_TS
WH
F?G
J?GYR
}GUP
IKU[?@R
jDJE
?@
NCOJC
?@K
F?G
[IKHKI
D@R
OH
F?G
DIK
DXDOYDjYK
P?
QKKP
PCK
@OMCP
?H
UKYKJL?@A
PCDPN?GYR
jK
MIKDPS�KP
QK
E@?N
OH
CDXK
D@F
�GKUL?@U
Dj?GP
D@F
?H
PCOUSmO@JKIKYFA���
������������ 
����¡¢��£�¢�
�¤
¥�¦§̈��©����ª««¬­®̄
°±²³́
µ²¶·µ̧¹²



 Simpsonville Planning Department 
 Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
AGENDA ITEM 

1 | P a g e

To: City Council – Second Reading 

Meeting Date: 12/9/2025  

Agenda Item: O-2025-11, Code of Ordinance, Technical Codes

Subject: Amendments to Article II, Section 8-41 & 8-42 

Attachments: ☒Proposed Code of Ordinance ☐Proposed Zoning
Ordinance ☐Discussion from Council ☐Locations Maps ☐
Petitions ☐Traffic Study ☐Renderings

Brief Description of Request 

From time-to-time staff discovers areas of the City Code of Ordinance that may need some 
refinement.  In this case, staff has requested changes to the sections listed below. 

Section(s) Amendment Reason 
8-41 To Amend the current procedure for 

adopting technical codes 
To ensure accurate codes and to better 
align with the State Regulation 

8-42 Violations; enforcement To establish a penalty 

Staff Comments 

The current procedure for updating Chapter 8 “Buildings and Building Regulations” of the 
City of Simpsonville Code of Ordinance is to require two readings of an ordinance. These 
codes are reviewed and updated through legislative action by the State of South Carolina. 
The City would follow by passing an ordinance that reflected the updates from the state. 
The ordinance would be brought before council every 3 years to be concurrent with state 
action.  

This proposed ordinance (O-2025-11) would allow the city to adhere to the newest, most 
current versions of the technical codes adopted by the State without council action.  

Nothing has changed since the First Reading on November 19th. 



Ordinance O-2025-11 

Page 1 of 5 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE II (TECHNICAL CODES) OF 
CHAPTER 8 (BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS) OF THE 

CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville City Council reviews its Ordinances at various 
times to make necessary improvements and/or changes; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville desires to amend its existing ordinances to 
remove the requirement of updating our Building Codes by yearly adoptions. Rather, as allowed 
by S.C. Code §6-9-60, the City desires to adopt by reference the latest editions of certain 
nationally recognized codes and the standards referenced in those codes for regulation of 
construction within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville will abide and enforce by latest adopted building 
codes, which the State of South Carolina has mandated by legislation and as posted by the South 
Carolina Labor, Licensing and Regulation Building Codes Council 
(www.IIr.state.sc.us/POL/BCC.) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Simpsonville as follows: 

Section 1. That the code of Ordinances, Chapter 8, Buildings and Building Regulations, 
Article II, Technical Codes, Sec. 8-41, Adoption of International Building Codes, 
be amended as follows: [Additions are underlined; deletions are struck through.] 

ARTICLE II, TECHNICAL CODES 

Sec. 8-41 – Adoption of International Building Codes. 

(a) There is hereby adopted by reference the following technical codes:

"International Residential Code"  
“International Building Code” 
“International Property Maintenance Code” 
“International Swimming Pool and Spa Code” 
“International Plumbing Code” 
“International Mechanical Code” 
“National Electric Code” 
“International Fuel Gas Code” 
“International Fire Code” 
“International Existing Building Code” 

http://www.iir.state.sc.us/POL/BCC


Ordinance O-2025-11 

Page 2 of 5 

(b) The currently adopted codes enforced in the City of Simpsonville are those,
which the State of South Carolina has mandated by legislation and as posted by
the South Carolina Labor, licensing and Regulation Building Codes Council
(www.llr.sc.gov/BCC/). Those at a  certain codes  documents which is shall be
on file in the office of the city clerk, and being marked and designated as the
International Building Codes,—2015 is  are hereby adopted as the code of the
city for regulating the design, construction, quality of materials, erection,
installation, alteration, repair, location, relocation, replacement, addition to, use
or maintenance of one-and two family dwellings, townhouses, commercial and
industrial buildings, and providing for the issuance of permits and collection of
fees therefore.; and Each and all of the regulations, provisions, conditions and
terms of such International Building Codes published by the International Code
Council, to include the South Carolina Modifications, on file in the office of the
city are hereby referred to, adopted and made part hereof as if fully set out in
this section.

(c) The International Building Codes referred to in subsection (a) hereof to shall
include the South Carolina Modifications, listed as follows are hereby
adopted:

(1) Where requesting [NAME OF JURISDICTION] Insert: City of Simpsonville
(2) Where requesting [JURISDICTION TO INSERT HEIGHT IN INCHES] Insert

12” inches IPMC § Weeds 
(3) Where requesting [DATE] to [DATE] Insert January 1 – December 31 IPMC §

Insect Screens 
(1) International Residential Code 2015 Edition. With the following sections revised:

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 108.3 Insert: See Fee Schedule 

(2) International Building Code 2015 Edition. With the following sections revised:
Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 109.2 Insert: See Fee Schedule 

(3) International Property Maintenance Code 2015 Edition. With the following
sections revised:

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 103.5 Insert: See Fee Schedule 
Sec. 302.3 insert: 12 inches 
Sec. 304.14 insert: January 1 to December 31 

http://www.llr.sc.gov/BCC/


  Ordinance O-2025-11 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

(4) International Swimming Pool and Spa Code 2015 Edition. With the following 
sections revised: 

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 105.6.2 Insert: See Fee Schedule 
Section 105.6.3 Insert: See Fee Schedule 
Section 107.4 Insert: Misdemeanor 
Section 107.4 Insert $500 
Section 107.4 Insert: 30 
Section 107.5 Insert: $200; $500 

(5) International Plumbing Code 2015 Edition. With the following sections revised: 

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 106.62 Insert: See Fee Schedule 

(6) International Mechanical Code 2015 Edition 

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 106.62 Insert: See Fee Schedule 

(7) National Electric Code (NEC) 2014 Edition 
(8) International Fuel Gas Code 2015 Edition 
(9) International Fire Code 2015 Edition. With the following sections revised: 

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 109.4 Insert: Misdemeanor; $500.00; 30 days 
Section 111.4 Insert: $100.00; $500.00 
Section 3404.2.9.5.1: Not Adopted; NFPA Standard Applies 
Section 3406.2.4.4: Not Adopted; NFPA Standard Applies 
Section 3204.3.1.1: Second paragraph is not adopted; NFPA Standard Applies 
Section 3804.2: With regard to the parenthetical information that states: "see 
Section 3 of the Sample Ordinance for Adoption of the International Fire Code 
on page v," the NFPA Standard Applies 

(10)  International Existing Building Code 2015 Edition. With the following sections 
revised: 

Section 101.1 Insert: City of Simpsonville 
Section 108.2 Insert: See Fee Schedule 
 

Sec. 8-42. – Violations; enforcement. 

 It shall be unlawful for any person to fail or refuse to comply with the provisions of 
the codes adopted in this section and, in addition to the penalty provisions which set forth in the 



Ordinance O-2025-11 

Page 4 of 5 

codes adopted in this article, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished as 
provided in Section 1-9. 

Section 2. Authorization. The Mayor and the City Administrator, for and on behalf of the 
City, acting jointly or individually, are fully empowered and authorized to take such further 
action as may be reasonably necessary to affect the amendments authorized by this Ordinance in 
accordance with the conditions herein set forth. 

Section 3. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 4. Suspension of Conflicting Ordinances, Rules, Orders or Resolutions. All 
ordinances, rules, orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 
such conflict, hereby suspended for the duration of this ordinance. 

Section 5. Savings Clause: Nothing in this ordinance hereby adopted shall be construed to 
affect any suit or proceeding in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any 
cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as 
stated in Section 3 of the ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character 
be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 

Section 6. Effective Date of the Ordinance. This ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon passage. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this  day of  2025. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

______________________________ 
        Paul Shewmaker 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Ashley Clark 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes 
City Attorney 



Ordinance O-2025-11 

Page 5 of 5 

First Reading: November 19, 2025 
Second Reading: December 9, 2025 



 Simpsonville Planning Department 
 Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
AGENDA ITEM 

1 | P a g e

To: City Council – Second Reading 

Meeting Date: 12/9/2025  

Agenda Item: Annexation & Rezone to R-LO 

Subject: AXZ-2025-03 Proposed Annexation to property located at 
320 Tearose Ln Tax Map# 0296.00-01-088.00  

Location: 320 Tearose Ln Tax Map# 0296.00-01-088.00 

Applicant/Owner: John B Crawford & Jessica L Hayes 

Attachments: ☒Proposed Ordinance ☐Proposed Concept Plan
☐Proposed Statement of Intent ☐Applicant Material
☒Consent Letter ☒Locations Maps ☒Petitions
☐Traffic Study ☐Renderings

Brief Description of request 

The City of Simpsonville has received a signed petition requesting annexation into the City 
pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws Section 5-3-150.  

The applicant has requested that this parcel be annexed and rezoned from R-12 in the 
County to R-LO (Residential Low Density) in the City. This parcel is among three other 
properties within the Rosemont Subdivision that have yet to be annexed into the City. The 
majority of the neighborhood was annexed into the city in 2005 along with several other 
properties along HWY 14. The applicant is seeking city services as the reason for the 
request. 

Nothing has changed since the First Reading on November 19th. 

Existing Zoning Requested Zoning Surrounding Zoning Extraterritorial 
Land Use 

Size of Property 

R-12 R-LO R-12 – County &  
R-LO - City

 Neighborhood 0.36 +/- Acres 



Simpsonville Planning Department 
Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
AXZ-2025-03 

2 | P a g e

Location & Site Description 

This parcel lies at the end of Tearose Lane within a cul-de-sac. This parcel is currently 
zoned (R-12) single family, occupied by a single home. 

Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel and the parcel abutting as 
“neighborhood” meaning that the City envisioned this area would be developed for 
residential neighborhood uses. Upon annexation, staff recommends that these tracts of 
land be officially designated as “Medium-Intensity Neighborhood” on the Simpsonville 
Future Land Use Map 

Zoning District 

Per Section 2.3.1 of the Simpsonville Zoning Ordinance: “The R-Lo, Residential—Low 
Density District is established to promote detached single-family residential 
development at low densities as the principal use of land within the district. The 
regulations of this district are intended to discourage any use that would substantially 
interfere with the development of detached single-family dwellings and that would be 
detrimental to the quiet residential nature of the district.” 

Public Hearing Proceeding 

A public hearing regarding this petition was conducted on October 7th, 2025, before the 
body of the Simpsonville Planning Commission. There were no public comments. 

Planning Commission Review 

The Simpsonville Planning Commission reviewed the request to annex and rezone the 
property at their October 7th, 2025, meeting.  By a vote of 6-0, the Planning Commission 
recommends an approval of AXZ-2025-03. 

Site Improvements 

No site improvements as this subdivision was completed around 1992. 



Simpsonville Planning Department 
Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
AXZ-2025-03 

3 | P a g e

Staff Comments 

Staff finds that this requested zoning change is consistent with the continuing vision for 
this area. Staff is not aware of any aspect of annexing and rezoning this property that would 
negatively impact the public health, safety, and welfare of neighboring properties  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends an approval of the requested 
annexation set forth in Ordinance AXZ-2025-03 



ORDINANCE NO. AXZ-2025-03 

WHEREAS, the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, Chapter 23 Title 5 
provides for the process for municipalities to annex and rezone property; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville has enacted a Zoning Ordinance which governs 
amendments to the Official Zoning Map; and 

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described property was advertised on June 29, 2025, and 
the City of Simpsonville Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 7, 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA, THAT: 

1. ANNEXATION:  The attached Petition for Annexation and Rezoning into the City
pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws Section 5-3-150, wherein the property owners have signed 
a petition requesting annexation into the City of Simpsonville requesting the annexation of a 
parcel at 320 Tearose Ln. depicted in the deed contained in Book 2545 on Page 5285, Tax Map # 
0296.00-01-088.00, of the official records of the Greenville County Register of Deeds and as 
depicted in Exhibit “A” & “B”, attached hereto, is hereby made a part of this Ordinance and 
approved and the property described therein is hereby declared to be annexed into the City of 
Simpsonville.  

2. ZONING CLASSIFICATION:  The Official Zoning Map of the City of
Simpsonville is hereby amended to assign the property, as depicted in Exhibit “A” & “B”, the 
zoning classification of R-Lo, Residential Low Density. 

3. FUTURE LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION:  The Future Land Use Map of
the City of Simpsonville is hereby amended to assign the depicted in Exhibit “A” & “B” the 
future land use map designation of Medium Intensity Neighborhood. 

4. PROVISION SEVERAGE:  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the
governing authority of this municipality that the sections, subjections, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses and phrases are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, subsection, or 
section of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court or competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not 
effect any of the remaining portions of this Ordinance so held to be invalid. 

5. ORDINANCE SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS INCONSISTENT 
LEGISLATION: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith, which may have 
heretofore been passed by the Simpsonville City Council, are hereby repealed. 

6. DISTRICT ASSIGNMENT: The within described property shall be assigned to City
Council Ward Two (2). 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A PETITION FOR 
ANNEXATION OF LAND AT 320 TEAROSE LANE 
(TAX MAP# 0296.00-01-088.00) OWNED BY JOHN B 
CRAWFORD (JTWROS) & JESSICA L HAYES 
(JTWROS) INTO THE CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, 
SOUTH CAROLINA 



ORDINANCE NO.:  AXZ-2025-03 
Page 2 

7. FLOOD RATE INSURANCE MAPS: In accordance with the provisions of 44
CFR §64.4, in the event that the newly annexed area was previously located in a community 
participating in the NFIP Program, pending formal adoption of the amendment to its flood plain 
management regulations, the City hereby certifies that within the newly annexed area the flood 
plain management requirements previously applicable in the area remain in force. In the event 
that the newly annexed area was previously located in a community not participating in the NFIP 
Program, upon annexation, and pending formal adoption of the amendments to its flood plain 
management regulations, the City certifies that it shall enforce within the newly annexed area, 
existing flood insurance policies which shall remain in effect until their date of expiration may 
be renewed, and new policies may be issued. 

8. METROPOLITAN SEWER SUBDISTRICT:  It is the intent of City Council
that the area described herein to be annexed is currently served by Metropolitan Sewer 
Subdistrict (hereinafter “Metropolitan”). At the time of the passage of this Ordinance, it is the 
intent of the City that Metropolitan shall continue to provide sewer service to the annexed area. 
Therefore, Greenville County shall continue to collect the millage currently assessed by 
Metropolitan on the annexed area and to remit the same directly to Metropolitan until notified 
otherwise by the City. 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon second and final reading by the City Council. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

______________________________ 
        Paul Shewmaker 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Ashley Clark 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes 
City Attorney 

First Reading:   November 19 2025 
Second Reading: December 9, 2025 



ORDINANCE NO.:  AXZ-2025-03 
Page 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 



ORDINANCE NO.:  AXZ-2025-03 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT “B” 







Greenville County, SC

Greenville County GIS Division, Greenville, South Carolina, Greenville
County GIS Division, Greenville County, South Carolina GIS Division

July 8, 2025
0 150 30075 ft

0 40 8020 m

1:1,600

Disclaimer: This Map is not a LAND SURVEY and is for reference purposes only.      Data contained in this map are prepared for the inventory of Real Property found within this jurisdiction,      and are

rjohnson
Text Box
AXZ-2025-03 320 Tearose Ln. Annex/Rezoning to R-LO

rjohnson
Callout
Subject property


JDerby
Stamp



Greenville County, SC

Greenville County GIS Division, Greenville, South Carolina, Greenville
County GIS Division, Greenville County, South Carolina GIS Division

July 8, 2025
0 150 30075 ft

0 40 8020 m

1:1,600

Disclaimer: This Map is not a LAND SURVEY and is for reference purposes only.      Data contained in this map are prepared for the inventory of Real Property found within this jurisdiction,      and are

rjohnson
Text Box
AXZ-2025-03 320 Tearose Ln. Annex/Rezoning to R-LO

JDerby
Stamp

rjohnson
Callout
Subject property




Page 1 of 2 

SIMPSONVILLE ORDINANCE _____ - 2025 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 16-4 (WARDS; BOUNDARIES) OF CHAPTER 16 
(ELECTIONS) OF THE CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, the Simpsonville City Council reviews the city ordinances at various times to 
make necessary improvements and/or changes; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 16-4 of the Simpsonville Code of Ordinances refers to establishing ward 
lines based upon the 2000 Decennial Census and needs to be amended to reflect that ward lines will be 
determined by the most recent decennial census; and, 

WHEREAS, the Council, after considering all the facts and circumstances surrounding the 
proposed amendments contained herein, do hereby find that the amendments as set forth herein are in 
the best interests of the City of Simpsonville. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 

NOTE: Language in section 1 of this ordinance that is struck through is language proposed to be 
deleted, underlined language is language proposed to be added, language that is not struck through 
or underlined is not to be changed, and *** represents sections of the Ordinance that have been 
skipped and remain unchanged. 

Section 1. That Section 16-4 (Wards; boundaries) of Chapter 16 (Elections) of the City of 
Simpsonville Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows: 

*** 
Sec. 16-4. Wards; boundaries. 
The ward lines for each ward within the city are as modified, based upon the 2000 most recent 

Decennial Census, in accordance with the proposed ward map made a part of this section by reference 
and as authorized by S.C. Code Ann. 5-15-50. Areas annexed to the city shall be assigned to a ward 
by ordinance at the time of such annexation. 

(Ord. No. 2003-04, 4-8-2003; Ord. No. 2015-05, 6-9-2015) 

State law reference(s)—Establishment of municipal wards, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-15-50. 

*** 
Section 2: That the amendments contained herein shall be effective upon second and final 

reading of this Ordinance.   

Section 3:    Severability is intended throughout and within the provisions of this Ordinance. 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   



Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED this _________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

_________________________________ 
Paul Shewmaker 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Ashley Clark 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes 
City Attorney 

FIRST READING: November 18, 2025 
SECOND READING: December 09, 2025 



 Simpsonville Planning Department 
 Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
AGENDA ITEM 

1 | P a g e

To: City Council – First Reading 

Meeting Date: 12/9/2025  

Agenda Item: Proposed rezoning to ID 

Subject: Z-2025-02 Proposed rezoning to property located at 118 &
124 NE Main St. Tax Map# 0315.00.02.004.00 &
0315.00.02.001.00

Applicant/Owner: Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC 

Attachments: ☒Proposed Ordinance ☒Proposed Concept Plan
☒Proposed Statement of Intent ☒Applicant Material
☐Consent Letter ☒Locations Maps ☒Development
Agreement ☒Traffic Study ☒Renderings

Brief Description of request 

The City of Simpsonville has received a signed petition requesting the rezoning of parcels of 
land pursuant to Section 7.5 of the Simpsonville Zoning Ordinance. This petition is for two 
parcels located at 118 & 124 NE Main St (tax map # 0315.00.02.004.00 & 315.00.02.001.00) 

The applicant has requested that these two parcels be rezoned from B-U, Business Urban 
to ID (Innovative Development). The developer is looking to create a mixed-use 
development of multifamily and commercial retail within our city center. 

Nothing has changed since the Committee of the Whole Meeting on November 25th. 

Existing Zoning Requested Zoning Surrounding Zoning Extraterritorial 
Land Use 

Size of Property 

B-U, Business
Urban

ID B-U & B-G Town Center 
Mixed-Use 

2.44 +/- Acres 



Simpsonville Planning Department 
Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
Z-2025-02

2 | P a g e

Location & Site Description 

These parcels contain the prior City Hall site and the vacant AAA/Suntrust building, with 
surface parking on the rear portions. These parcels will be combined as one tax parcel in 
the future, fronting NE Main St., E. College St., & Hedge St. 

Statement of Intent 

The Statement of Intent details a three-story, multifamily, mixed-use project, with surfacing 
parking on the eastern side near Hedge St. The development will consist of a maximum 80 
residential units comprised of studio, one, two, & three-bedroom units. 18,000 square feet 
of commercial space will be provided on the main level, fronting NE Main St. & E. College 
St. Access points will be installed on E. College St. and on Hedge St. 144 surface parking 
spaces are being provided, hidden from Main St, behind the structure. Coworking spaces 
and flexible office units will be integrated into the project. The development will incorporate 
public art and streetscape elements to coincide with the city’s downtown streetscape 
project. The development is proposing the use of EV (Electric Vehicle) charging stations as 
well as solar power concepts to promote renewable energy options.  

Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as Town Center Mixed Use. This 
designation applies only in and around Downtown Simpsonville. It emphasizes the urban 
character and the mix and intensity of activities uniquely suited to the town center. This 
designation is intended to permit a true mix of all uses, except industrial, at the highest 
levels of scale and density within the City and with unique development standards tailored 
to the urban character of Downtown. It is particularly important to move the Downtown 
towards becoming a center of activity not only in the day, but also at night and during 
weekends, by promoting a mix of commercial, entertainment, residential, and other uses. 
To help achieve this goal, creative forms of housing, such as lofts and residential units in 
second-stories above ground level retail, should be encouraged.… 

Zoning District 

Per Section 2.11.1 of the Simpsonville Zoning Ordinance: “the ID, Innovative Development 
District is established to provide flexibility in the planning and construction of development 
projects in accordance with an approved plan. In return for greater flexibility in site design 
requirements, innovative development are expected to demonstrate exceptional quality 
community designs that: 



Simpsonville Planning Department 
Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
Z-2025-02

3 | P a g e

A. Preserve critical environmental resources;
B. Provide above-average open space amenities;
C. Demonstrate innovative and creative site planning techniques that improve upon

the layout and design of buildings, open space and circulation that would
otherwise be achieved by the standards of other allowable zoning districts;

D. Assure compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood character; and
E. Provide greater efficiency in the layout and provision of roads,

utilities, and other infrastructure.”

Site Improvements 

The current overhead transmission lines, running in front of the old AAA/Suntrust building 
will be placed underground to allow for maximum use of the site. This will allow for this 
project to have a 0’ build line, along Main St and E. College St. Current vehicle access 
points along Main St will be removed, allowing for more fluid traffic movement for this 
stretch of Main St., while encouraging more walkability along the streetscape.  

Public Hearing Proceeding 

A public hearing regarding this petition was conducted on November 6th, 2025, before the 
body of the Simpsonville Planning Commission. There was only one public comment, in 
favor of the request with recommendation of color and pattern design.  

Planning Commission Review 

The Simpsonville Planning Commission reviewed the request to rezone the property at 
their November 6th, 2025, meeting. The Commission discussed the ingress/egress along 
with the proposed unit counts. The topic of parking was discussed, and their Traffic 
Engineer was available to answer other questions. By a vote of 4-0, the Planning 
Commission recommends approval of Z-2025-02. 

Staff Comments 

A traffic study has been conducted by the developers to determine potential impact from 
the proposed project. This project will be the first ground-up construction in the 
commercial core of the city in several years. The proposed design of the project will 
incorporate the materials and colors accustomed to our city theme, while introducing 
fresh, innovative design elements that breathe new life into the area. 



Simpsonville Planning Department 
Planning & Economic Development Director 

Jon Derby 
Z-2025-02

4 | P a g e

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the requested rezoning set forth in 
Ordinance Z-2025-02. 



ORDINANCE NO. Z-2025-02 

WHEREAS, the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, Chapter 23 Title 
5 provides for the process for municipalities to rezone property; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville has enacted a Zoning Ordinance which governs 
amendments to the Official Zoning Map; and 

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described property was advertised on October 19, 2025, 
and the City of Simpsonville Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 6, 
2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SIMPSONVILLE THAT: 

1. ZONING CLASSIFICATION:  The Official Zoning Map of the City of
Simpsonville is hereby amended to assign Tax Map # 0315.00-02-004.00 depicted in the deed 
contained in Book 2759 on Page 834, & Tax Map# 0315.00-02-001.00 depicted in the deed 
contained in Book 2623 on Page 2891, of the official records of Greenville County Register of 
Deeds and as depicted in Exhibit “A” & “B”, attached hereto, the zoning classification of I-D, 
Innovative Development District. 

2. PROVISION SEVERAGE:  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the
governing authority of this municipality that the sections, subjections, paragraphes, sentences, 
clauses and phrases are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, subsection, or 
section of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court or competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not 
effect any of the remaining portions of this Ordinance so held to be invalid. 

3. ORDINANCE SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS INCONSISTENT 
LEGISLATION:  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith, which may 
have heretofore been passed by the Simpsonville City Council, are hereby repealed. 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP 
OF THE CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH 
CAROLINA OF LAND AT 118 NE MAIN STREET, & 
124 NE MAIN STREET., TAX MAP# 0315.00-02-
004.00, & 0315.00-02-001.00 OWNED BY BLUE 
RIDGE LAND HOLDINGS, LLC 



ORDINANCE NO.:  Z-2025-02 
Page 2 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon second and final reading by the City Council. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

_________________________________ 
Paul Shewmaker 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Ashley Clark 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes 
City Attorney 

First Reading:   December 9, 2025 
Second Reading: January 13, 2025 



ORDINANCE NO.:  Z-2025-02 
Page 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 



ORDINANCE NO.:  Z-2025-02 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT B 



±99,000-SF Mixed-Use Development
Located Along North East Main Street

City of Simpsonville
Greenville County, South Carolina

N

Project No.: 25195-0023
October 9, 2025

Prepared by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Documents prepared or furnished by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. are instruments of service, and Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. retains
an ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, whether or not the project is completed.

NOTE: BOUNDARIES, TOPOGRAPHY, WETLANDS, AND STREAMS LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE BASED OFF GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS). A BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ALONG WITH A WETLAND DELINEATION SHOULD BE
PERFORMED TO DETERMINE ACCURATE BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND WETLAND LOCATIONS.

7

11

4

9

12

10

24

26

10

SITE INFORMATION:
TM#: 0315000200100, 0315000200400
SIZE: ±2.52 ACRES
EXISTING ZONING: B-U (BUSINESS - URBAN)
PROPOSED ZONING: ID (INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT)
SETBACKS: -FRONT = NONE

-SIDE = NONE
-REAR = NONE

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:
STALL WIDTH

90-DEGREE STALL= 9-FT X 18FT 24-FT AISLE
PROVIDED PARKING COUNT: 144 SPACES
PASSENGER:  139 SPACES
ADA: 5 SPACES

PROPOSED BUILDING:
MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT
3 STORIES

EAST COLLEGE STREET

H
ED

G
E STR

EET

NO
RTH EAST M

AIN STREET

±99,000-SF
MIXED USE

DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED BUILDING INFORMATION:
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY RETAIL COMMERCIAL TOTAL

LEVEL 1 13,994 6,147 8,991 3,823 32,955

LEVEL 2 32,955 32,955

LEVEL 3 32,955 32,955

TOTAL 79,904 6,147 8,991 3,823 98,865

RESIDENTIAL UNIT COUNT: 73

Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC

NO
RTH M

AIN STREET

10

12

13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150



© 2025 by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.  All information contained in this document is the property of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
All rights reserved.  No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 

photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior explicit written permission of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Burdette North 

Statement of Intent for Innovative Development (ID) Rezoning 

Project Name: Burdette North 
Location: Southeast corner of NE Main Street and E. College Street, Simpsonville, SC 
Parcels: Tax Map #0315000200400 (+/- 1.09-Acres) and #0315000200400 (+/- 1.43-Acres) 
Current Zoning: Business-Urban 
Proposed Zoning: Innovative Development (ID) 
Developer: Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC 
Architect: SHLTR Architects 
Civil/Site Design: Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
Traffic Impact Analysis: Impact Designs, Inc. 
Surveying: Site Design, Inc. 

Project Overview 

Burdette North is proposed as a vibrant, mixed-use redevelopment designed to bring new 
life and economic energy to the north end of Downtown Simpsonville. The project will 
include up to 80 residential units (a mix of studios, one-bedroom, and two-bedroom 
apartments) and +/-18,000 square feet of commercial space dedicated to retail, 
restaurant, amenities, and coworking uses. The building will be a total of three (3) stories. 

As shown on the included Conceptual Site Plan, the development will include 144 surface 
parking spaces. Both existing structures on the site will be demolished to make way for this 
new, cohesive urban development that aligns with the City’s vision for a more walkable, 
connected, and active downtown district. 

Innovative Features 

Burdette North exemplifies the goals of the Innovative Development (ID) zoning by 
introducing design and sustainability features that are new to the City of Simpsonville’s 
Central Business District and Business Urban (B-U) zones. The project will include at least 
two (2) of the following innovative components: 

 Coworking Space: Dedicated coworking suites and flexible office amenities will
serve local entrepreneurs, small businesses, and remote professionals, providing
modern workspace solutions within a walkable downtown setting.



Burdette North Statement of Intent 
Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC 
October 17, 2025 – Page 2 of 4 

© 2025 by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.  All information contained in this document is the property of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.
All rights reserved.  No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 

photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior explicit written permission of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

 Public Art: The project will feature integrated public art installations—such as
murals, sculptures, or artist-designed streetscape elements—that contribute to
placemaking and enhance the visual identity of NE Main and College Streets.

 Pervious Pavement: Portions of the parking and pedestrian areas will utilize
pervious pavement systems to reduce stormwater runoff, promote infiltration, and
improve site sustainability.

 EV Charging Stations: Electric Vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure will be provided
to support the growing demand for sustainable transportation options.

 Solar Power: Where feasible, solar panels will be integrated to supplement building
energy use and demonstrate commitment to renewable energy innovation.

These innovative elements will provide a unique character and forward-thinking design 
approach, establishing Burdette North as a model for sustainable, mixed-use 
redevelopment in the city. 

Community Impact and Vision 

Burdette North will bring a new level of vibrancy and activity to NE Main Street and College 
Street, reinforcing the urban fabric of Downtown Simpsonville. The project’s blend of 
residential and commercial uses will: 

 Activate the public-facing street level with restaurants, retail, and coworking spaces
 Provide diverse housing options that appeal to young professionals, empty nesters,

retirees and small households
 Encourage walkability and connectivity with nearby businesses and public amenities
 Support the continued revitalization of the downtown corridor through attractive

design and public engagement features

As the second major downtown investment by Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC, following the 
successful redevelopment of Burdette Central, this project continues the developer’s 
commitment to high-quality, community-oriented growth in the City of Simpsonville. 
Working with SHLTR Architects and Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc., the design team will 
deliver a well-integrated, visually appealing, and environmentally conscious project that 
enhances both the aesthetic and economic vitality of the city. 

Integrating residential uses into the City of Simpsonville’s downtown core brings vitality, 
economic stability, and a stronger sense of community to the urban environment. Residents 
living downtown provide support to local businesses, restaurants, and cultural venues, 
helping sustain activity beyond typical business hours and creating a lively, 24-hour district. 



Burdette North Statement of Intent 
Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC 
October 17, 2025 – Page 3 of 4 

© 2025 by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.  All information contained in this document is the property of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.
All rights reserved.  No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 

photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior explicit written permission of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

This mix of living, working, and leisure spaces reduces reliance on cars, encourages walking, 
and fosters a more sustainable urban form. Moreover, downtown living attracts a diverse 
range of people - young professionals, small families, and retirees alike—who contribute to 
the social and cultural vibrancy of the area. By combining residential and commercial space, 
this project will be dynamic, safe, and engaging to the City of Simpsonville’s downtown, and 
serve as the center of urban life. 

Property Access & Traffic Flow Coordination 

Vehicle access to Burdette North will be on E. College and Hedge Streets (one 
ingress/egress on each street).  The project team has designed internal circulation to align 
with the City’s soon-to-be implemented counterclockwise one-way circulation pattern. The 
Traffic Impact Analysis has accounted for the City’s new traffic pattern. The plan is to have 
Burdette North’s construction occurring simultaneously with Simpsonville’s Downtown 
Revitalization and Traffic Realignment strategy and construction. Existing curb cuts along 
NE Main Street and East College Street will be eliminated, along with one curb cut on Hedge 
Street.  

Eliminating multiple vehicle access points with this development offers several important 
benefits for safety, efficiency, and overall site design. By consolidating access to two (2) 
well-designed entrances/exits along E. College Street and Hedge Street, traffic movement 
becomes more predictable and easier to manage, reducing potential conflict points 
between vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists. Fewer access points also enhance roadway 
safety by minimizing turning movements and improving sight distances along adjacent 
streets. Overall, limiting vehicle access points contributes to a safer, more attractive, and 
functionally efficient development. 

Utilities 

This project will be served by Greenville Water, City of Simpsonville Sewer, and Duke Energy. 
Duke Energy will locate transformers on the development site. Existing utilities and 
connections will be used wherever possible. The Development Agreement between Blue 
Ridge Holdings, LLC and the City of Simpsonville states that the City will use its best efforts 
to relocate utilities in the public right-of-way, creating a cleaner, less-cluttered aesthetic.



Burdette North Statement of Intent 
Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC 
October 17, 2025 – Page 4 of 4 

© 2025 by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.  All information contained in this document is the property of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.
All rights reserved.  No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 

photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior explicit written permission of Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Stormwater 

Because the site consists of mostly impervious surface, major stormwater infrastructure 
improvements are not anticipated being needed, as this project assumes zero increase in 
runoff. If required through Detailed Design, additional Stormwater Management will be 
coordinated and compliant with Greenville County under its Stormwater Standards.  

Signage 

Burdette North will utilize monument signage where feasible on the site and within the City’s 
Sign Ordinance requirements. The signage type and design will closely resemble existing 
signage at Burdette Central to maintain consistency of brand. 

Landscaping 

The developer and design team will adhere to all landscaping requirements as required by 
City Ordinance. Wherever possible, with Client direction, the team will strive to exceed 
requirements. 

Conclusion 

Burdette North represents the next evolution of downtown Simpsonville—an innovative, 
mixed-use community that strengthens the city’s identity, supports local business, and 
creates a vibrant, connected environment for residents and visitors alike.  

Through thoughtful design, sustainable features, and a commitment to quality 
development, this project will serve as a catalyst for continued downtown growth and 
exemplify the purpose and intent of the Innovative Development (ID) zoning designation. 



FLOOR 01

0"

FLOOR 02

15' - 4"

FLOOR 03

27' - 0"

ROOF BRG.

37' - 0"

FLOOR 01

0"

FLOOR 02

15' - 4"

FLOOR 03

27' - 0"

ROOF BRG.

37' - 0"

COPYRIGHT 2025 - SHLTR ARCHITECTS, LLC  |  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION

ELEVATIONS | SD04
PROJECT #: 2566

SHEET DATE: 10/13/2025

BURDETTE NORTH
CLIENT NAME

ADDRESS 1

CITY, STATE ZIP

1" = 10'-0"

E COLLEGE STREET - EXTERIOR ELEVATION

1" = 10'-0"

NE MAIN STREET - EXTERIOR ELEVATION

PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS TO

COURTYARD

NOTE: 
SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE. DRAWINGS REPRESENT CONCEPTS AND POTENTIAL LOCATIONS AT THIS PHASE
FINAL SELECTION OF MATERIALS AND COLOR MAY VARY

BRICK VENEER

ALUMINUM RAILINGS @
BALCONIES

ACCENT PANELING

HORIZONTAL SIDING

CORNICE DETAILING

STOREFRONT ENTRY

PLANTERS

OPTIONAL BUILDING SIGNAGE

CANOPIES AT COMMERCIAL ENTRY

COVERED PATIO SEATING

LEASING OFFICE ENTRYAWNINGS OVER SMALLER SCALE
COMMERCIAL SUITES

STREET FACING COMMERCIAL SUITES



COPYRIGHT 2025 - SHLTR ARCHITECTS, LLC  |  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION

RENDERING | SD05
PROJECT #: 2566

SHEET DATE: 10/13/2025

BURDETTE NORTH
CLIENT NAME

ADDRESS 1

CITY, STATE ZIP

VIEW @ CORNER OF NE MAIN STREET & E COLLEGE STREET



3,711 SF

AMENITY / LEASING

4,354 SF

RESTAURANT SPACE

LOBBY

4,136 SF

CO-WORKING

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

524 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

647 SF

COM. SUITES

SHARED 

BATHROOMS

(SUITES & 

AMENITY)
355 SF

CORE/UTILITY

COURTYARD 

AREABREEZEWAY

PATIO SEATING

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

715 SF

THD (2 BED)

3,348 SF

COMMERCIAL

EAST COLLEGE STREET

N
O

R
T

H
E

A
S

T
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

67' - 0"

19
1'

 -
 8

"
23

' -
 4

"
67

' -
 0

"

266' - 4"

IN
D

O
O

R
/O

U
T

D
O

O
R

 S
E

A
T

IN
G

585 SF

THD

585 SF

THD

638 SF

THB

513 SF

THA

513 SF

THA

513 SF

THA

513 SF

THA

513 SF

THA

635 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,134 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

962 SF

2 BED

1,074 SF

2 BED149 SF

UTILITY

773 SF

1+ BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

773 SF

1+ BED

962 SF

2 BED

672 SF

1 BED

672 SF

1 BED

972 SF

2 BED

585 SF

THD

585 SF

THD

585 SF

THD

585 SF

THD

30
' -

 6
"

6'
 -

 0
"

30
' -

 6
"

67
' -

 0
"

28
2'

 -
 0

"

266' - 4"

585 SF

1 BED

585 SF

1 BED

1,174 SF

3 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

635 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,134 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

962 SF

2 BED

1,074 SF

2 BED149 SF

UTILITY

773 SF

1+ BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

773 SF

1+ BED

962 SF

2 BED

672 SF

1 BED

672 SF

1 BED

972 SF

2 BED

585 SF

1 BED

585 SF

1 BED

585 SF

1 BED

585 SF

1 BED

LEGEND

1 BED

1+ BED

2 BED

3 BED

AMENITY

CO-WORKING

COMMERCIAL 1

RESTAURANT

STUDIO

TH - 1+ BED

TH - 2 BED

UTILITY

COPYRIGHT 2025 - SHLTR ARCHITECTS, LLC  |  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION

OPTION 1 | SD01
PROJECT #: 2566

SHEET DATE: 10/13/2025

BURDETTE NORTH
CLIENT NAME

ADDRESS 1

CITY, STATE ZIP

1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 1 - LEVEL 1

1 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 1 - LEVEL 2

2 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 1 - LEVEL 3

3

NORTH



3,707 SF

AMENITY / LEASING

4,354 SF

RESTAURANT SPACE

LOBBY

3,967 SF

COMMERCIAL

4,770 SF

CO-WORKING

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

640 SF

THB (2 BED)

524 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

649 SF

COM. SUITES

SHARED 

BATHROOMS

(SUITES & 

AMENITY)
355 SF

CORE/UTILITY

FIRE STAIR

COURTYARDBREEZEWAY

PATIO SEATING

524 SF

THC (2 BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

513 SF

THA (1+ BED)

67
' -

 0
"

23
' -

 4
"

19
1'

 -
 8

"

67' - 0"

266' - 4"

524 SF

THC-2

513 SF

THA-2

640 SF

THB-2

513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2
513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2

637 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,133 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

991 SF

2 BED

1,043 SF

2 BED149 SF

UTILITY

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,223 SF

3 BED

513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2

513 SF

THA-2

266' - 4"

30
' -

 6
"

6'
 -

 0
"

30
' -

 6
"

28
2'

 -
 0

"

67' - 0"

637 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,133 SF

2 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,223 SF

3 BED

524 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,043 SF

2 BED

991 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

640 SF

1 BED
149 SF

UTILITY

LEGEND

1 BED

1+ BED

2 BED

3 BED

AMENITY

CO-WORKING

COMMERCIAL 1

RESTAURANT

STUDIO

TH - 1+ BED

TH - 2 BED

UTILITY

COPYRIGHT 2025 - SHLTR ARCHITECTS, LLC  |  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION

OPTION 2 | SD02
PROJECT #: 2566

SHEET DATE: 10/13/2025

BURDETTE NORTH
CLIENT NAME

ADDRESS 1

CITY, STATE ZIP

1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 2 - LEVEL 1

1 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 2 - LEVEL 2

2 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 2 - LEVEL 3

3

NORTH



3,723 SF

AMENITY / LEASING

4,354 SF

RESTAURANT SPACE

RES. LOBBY

3,970 SF

COMMERCIAL

4,770 SF

CO-WORKING

524 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

536 SF

COM. SUITES

649 SF

COM. SUITES

SHARED 

BATHROOMS

(SUITES & 

AMENITY)355 SF

CORE/UTILITY

FIRE

COURTYARDBREEZEWAY

PATIO SEATING

524 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

812 SF

1+ BED

266' - 4"

67
' -

 0
"

23
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

19
1'

 -
 8

 1
/2

"

67' - 0"

30
' -

 6
"

6'
 -

 0
"

30
' -

 6
"

524 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

812 SF

1+ BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

637 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,133 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

1,030 SF

2 BED149 SF

UTILITY

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,223 SF

3 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

524 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

812 SF

1+ BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

637 SF

1 BED

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

513 SF

STUDIO

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,133 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

1,030 SF

2 BED149 SF

UTILITY

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,020 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

686 SF

1 BED

1,223 SF

3 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

1,049 SF

2 BED

686 SF

1 BED

LEGEND

1 BED

1+ BED

2 BED

3 BED

AMENITY

CO-WORKING

COMMERCIAL 1

RESTAURANT

STUDIO

TH - 1+ BED

TH - 2 BED

UTILITY

COPYRIGHT 2025 - SHLTR ARCHITECTS, LLC  |  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION

OPTION 3 | SD03
PROJECT #: 2566

SHEET DATE: 10/13/2025

BURDETTE NORTH
CLIENT NAME

ADDRESS 1

CITY, STATE ZIP

1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 3 - LEVEL 1

1 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 3 - LEVEL 2

2 1" = 30'-0"

OPTION 3 - LEVEL 3

3

NORTH



October 17, 2025



Greenville County, SC

Greenville County GIS Division, Greenville, South Carolina, Greenville
County GIS Division, Greenville County, South Carolina GIS Division

October 30, 2025
0 150 30075 ft

0 40 8020 m

1:1,600

Disclaimer: This Map is not a LAND SURVEY and is for reference purposes only.      Data contained in this map are prepared for the inventory of Real Property found within this jurisdiction,      and are

rjohnson
Callout
Subject properties

rjohnson
Text Box
Z-2025-02 118 & 124 NE. Main St Rezoning to I-D

JDerby
Stamp



Greenville County, SC

Greenville County GIS Division, Greenville, South Carolina, Greenville
County GIS Division, Greenville County, South Carolina GIS Division

October 30, 2025
0 150 30075 ft

0 40 8020 m

1:1,600

Disclaimer: This Map is not a LAND SURVEY and is for reference purposes only.      Data contained in this map are prepared for the inventory of Real Property found within this jurisdiction,      and are

rjohnson
Text Box
Z-2025-02 118 & 124 NE. Main St Rezoning to I-D

rjohnson
Callout
Subject properties

JDerby
Stamp



Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

CIVIL ENGINEERS - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

225 ROCKY CREEK ROAD,  GREENVILLE, SC  29615
PH: (864)271-0496

www.sitedesign-inc.com



1 

NOVEMBER 5, 2025 

IMPACT DESIGNS, INC. 

Prepared by: Allen J. Reid, PE 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 

Burdette North 
Simpsonville, South Carolina 





Burdette North | i 

Table of Contents 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................. iii 

1. INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................................... 1 
1.1. Project Summary .............................................................................................................. 1 

1.2. Existing Roadway Conditions .......................................................................................... 1 

1.3. Planned Roadway Improvements .................................................................................... 2 

1.4. Driveway Locations .......................................................................................................... 2 

2. TRAFFIC VOLUME DEVELOPMENT..................................................................................... 7 
2.1. Existing Traffic Volumes .................................................................................................. 7 

2.2. Rerouted Traffic Volumes ................................................................................................ 7 

2.3. Projected Traffic Volumes ............................................................................................... 7 

2.4. Proposed Development Traffic Volumes ........................................................................ 8 

2.5. Future Build Traffic Volumes ......................................................................................... 8 

3. TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS ............................................................................................... 16 
3.1. Turn Lane Analysis ........................................................................................................ 16 

3.2. Intersection LOS Analysis .............................................................................................. 16 

4. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS ....................................................................................................... 20 



Burdette North | ii 

Tables 

Table 1 – Study Area Summary .................................................................................................................... 1 

Table 2 – Trip Generation ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Table 3 – HCM 6th Edition LOS Criteria for Signalized & Unsignalized Intersections ............................. 16 

Table 4 – Intersection Capacity Analysis Results ....................................................................................... 17 

Figures 

Figure 1 – Project Location ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Figure 2 – Conceptual Site Plan .................................................................................................................... 4 

Figure 3 – Existing Lane Configuration ....................................................................................................... 5 

Figure 4 – No-Build Lane Configuration ...................................................................................................... 6 

Figure 5 – Raw Existing (2025) Traffic Volumes ........................................................................................ 9 

Figure 6 – One-Way Volume Adjustments ................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 7 – Adjusted Existing (2025) Traffic Volumes ............................................................................... 11 

Figure 8 – No-Build (2028) Traffic Volumes ............................................................................................. 12 

Figure 9 – Site Trip Distribution ................................................................................................................. 13 

Figure 10 – Site Trip Assignments ............................................................................................................. 14 

Figure 11 – Build (2028) Traffic Volumes ................................................................................................. 15 

Figure 12 – Recommended Lane Configuration ......................................................................................... 19 

Appendices 

A) Traffic Count Data

B) Turn Lane Analysis

C) Synchro Analysis Reports

D) SimTraffic Analysis Reports

E) Background Improvements



Burdette North | iii 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A traffic impact study was conducted for the proposed Burdette North development in accordance with 
SCDOT guidelines. The proposed development is located on the southeast corner of College Street and NE 
Main Street (SC 417), in Simpsonville, South Carolina. The development is expected to consist of 12,812 
square feet of retail and up to 80 multi-family units and is anticipated to be constructed by the end of 2028. 
Direct access to Burdette North development is proposed to be provided via two full movement connections: 
one on Hedge Street and one on College Street. The development is expected to have parallel parking along 
Hedge Street, however, to be conservative all traffic was assumed to access the site through the site accesses. 
 
A turn lane analysis was conducted at the site accesses utilizing the Build (2028) volumes. Based on build-
out volumes, there are no turn lanes warranted at the site accesses. 
 
The capacity analysis indicates that the signalized study intersections approaches are expected to maintain 
their LOS from No-Build to Build conditions, except for the northbound and southbound approach of NE 
Main Street (SC 417) and Curtis Street. Although, the approaches are expected to operate at LOS D or better 
in the Build scenario, which is still considered acceptable. Therefore, there is no mitigation recommended at 
the signalized intersections. 
 
Additionally, the unsignalized study intersections are expected to operate at an LOS C or better in all 
scenarios. The site accesses are expected to operate at LOS B or better in the Build scenario. Therefore, there 
is no mitigation recommended at the study intersections based on the capacity analysis. 
 
Recommendations: 

• None 
 



Burdette North | 1 
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to summarize the traffic impact study that was completed for the Burdette North 
site in Simpsonville, South Carolina. The study was developed in accordance with SCDOT guidelines. This 
report summarizes the procedures and findings of the traffic impact study. 
 

1.1. Project Summary 

The proposed development is located on the southeast corner of College Street and NE Main Street (SC 417), 
in Simpsonville, South Carolina. The development is expected to consist of 12,812 square feet of retail and 
up to 80 multi-family units and is anticipated to be constructed by the end of 2028. This traffic impact study 
analyzes the effects of the additional traffic associated with the proposed development during the weekday 
AM (7:00 AM - 9:00 AM) and the weekday PM (4:00 PM - 6:00 PM) peak periods. The study area for the 
purpose of the analysis includes: 
 

• NE Main Street (SC 417) and College Street 
• NE Main Street (SC 417) and Curtis Street 
• Hedge Street and College Street 
• Hedge Street and Curtis Street 
• Main Street and College Street 
• Main Street and Curtis Street 
• Hedge Street and Access A 
• College Street and Access B 

 
The proposed development is expected to be built out by the end of 2028; therefore, 2028 was considered as 
the future year for the purpose of this analysis. Refer to Figures 1 and 2 for the site location and the conceptual 
site plan. 
 

1.2. Existing Roadway Conditions 

The primary roadways within the study area include NE Main Street (SC 417), Curtis Street and College 
Street. A summary of their existing characteristics is shown in Table 1.  
 

Table 1 – Study Area Summary 

Facility Name Route # Typical Cross 
Section 

Posted 
Speed 
Limit 

Maintained 
By 2024 AADT 

College Street N/A 2-lane undivided 25 MPH Local No Data 

Curtis Street 2-lane undivided 25 MPH SCDOT/Local 6,200 

NE Main Street SC 417 2-lane undivided 35 MPH SCDOT 19,400 
 
Refer to Figure 3 for an illustration of the existing geometry and traffic control at the study intersections. 
  



Burdette North | 2 
 

 

1.3. Planned Roadway Improvements 

The City of Simpsonville and SCDOT intend to construct a project to convert Curtis Street and College Street 
to a one-way pair with counterclockwise circulation. Based on the information provided by SCDOT and City 
staff, the following geometric improvements are proposed: 
 
Curtis Street 

• Convert the existing 2-lane road to a one-way two-lane road travelling eastbound. 
• Adjust all intersections along Curtis Street to account for the approach restrictions. 
 

College Street 
• Convert the existing 2-lane road to a one-way two-lane road travelling westbound. 
• Adjust all intersections along College Street to account for the approach restrictions. 

 
College Street and NE Main Street (SC 417) 

• Extend the northbound left turn lane to have 150 feet of storage. 
 
Curtis Street and NE Main Street (SC 417) 

• Extend the southbound left turn lane to have 225 feet of storage. 
 
It was assumed that these projects would be completed prior to the build out of the Burdette North 
development. Refer to Figure 4 for an illustration of the background improvements. Refer to Appendix E for 
improvement plans and drawings. 

 
1.4. Driveway Locations 

Direct access to Burdette North development is proposed to be provided via two full movement connections: 
one on Hedge Street and one on College Street. The development is expected to have parallel parking along 
Hedge Street, however, to be conservative all traffic was assumed to access the site through the site accesses. 
  





±99,000-SF Mixed-Use Development
Located Along North East Main Street

City of Simpsonville
Greenville County, South Carolina

N

Project No.: 25195-0023
October 9, 2025

Prepared by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Documents prepared or furnished by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. are instruments of service, and Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. retains
an ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, whether or not the project is completed.

NOTE: BOUNDARIES, TOPOGRAPHY, WETLANDS, AND STREAMS LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE BASED OFF GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS). A BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ALONG WITH A WETLAND DELINEATION SHOULD BE
PERFORMED TO DETERMINE ACCURATE BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND WETLAND LOCATIONS.

7

11

4

9

12

10

24

26

10

SITE INFORMATION:
TM#: 0315000200100, 0315000200400
SIZE: ±2.52 ACRES
EXISTING ZONING: B-U (BUSINESS - URBAN)
PROPOSED ZONING: ID (INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT)
SETBACKS: -FRONT = NONE

-SIDE = NONE
-REAR = NONE

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:
STALL WIDTH

90-DEGREE STALL= 9-FT X 18FT 24-FT AISLE
PROVIDED PARKING COUNT: 144 SPACES
PASSENGER:  139 SPACES
ADA: 5 SPACES

PROPOSED BUILDING:
MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT
3 STORIES

EAST COLLEGE STREET

H
ED

G
E STR

EET

NO
RTH EAST M

AIN STREET

±99,000-SF
MIXED USE

DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED BUILDING INFORMATION:
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY RETAIL COMMERCIAL TOTAL

LEVEL 1 13,994 6,147 8,991 3,823 32,955

LEVEL 2 32,955 32,955

LEVEL 3 32,955 32,955

TOTAL 79,904 6,147 8,991 3,823 98,865

RESIDENTIAL UNIT COUNT: 73

Blue Ridge Land Holdings, LLC

NO
RTH M

AIN STREET

10

12

13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150







Burdette North | 7 
 

 

 

2. TRAFFIC VOLUME DEVELOPMENT 
2.1. Existing Traffic Volumes 

Existing turning movement counts were conducted at the study intersections in September 2025, during the 
AM (7:00 AM to 9:00 AM) peak period and the PM (4:00 PM to 6:00 PM) peak period. The 2025 traffic 
volumes are illustrated in Figure 5. 
 

2.2. Rerouted Traffic Volumes 

As previously mentioned, the City of Simpsonville and SCDOT intend to construct a project to convert Curtis 
Street and College Street to a one-way pair with counterclockwise circulation. Due to adjustment to the path 
of travel, it was assumed that eastbound traffic on College Street will become eastbound traffic on Curtis 
Street and westbound traffic on Curtis Street will become westbound traffic on College Street. Refer to Figure 
6 and 7 for an illustration of the rerouted volumes on the study network. 
 

2.3. Projected Traffic Volumes 

Based on SCDOT Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) volumes, daily traffic volumes in the study area 
have grown at a rate of 2% in the past years. A 2% annual growth rate was applied to the 2025 rerouted 
volumes to develop the No-Build (2028) volumes. This growth rate was applied to account for all background 
growth in the area without any adjacent and/or the proposed developments. Refer to Figure 8 for an 
illustration of the No-Build (2028) traffic volumes at the study intersections. 
  



Burdette North | 8 
 

 

2.4. Proposed Development Traffic Volumes 

As mentioned previously, the proposed development is expected to consist of 12,812 square feet of retail and 
up to 80 multi-family units and is anticipated to be constructed by the end of 2028. The trip generation 
potential for the proposed development was estimated utilizing methodology contained within the ITE’s Trip 
Generation Manual, 11th Edition. Utilizing ITE data for ITE Codes 220 and 822, traffic volumes were 
generated for the weekday daily, the weekday AM peak hour, and the weekday PM peak hour. Refer to Table 
2 for a summary of the trip generation potential of the proposed development. 
 

Table 2 – Trip Generation 

ITE Land Use (Code) Density 
Independent 

Variable 
Daily 

Traffic 
AM Peak PM Peak 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 
Strip Retail Plaza 

(<40k) 
(ITE Code 822) 

12.81 KSF 698 18 12 42 42 

Multi-Family Housing 
(Low-Rise) 

(ITE Code 220) 
80 Dwelling 

Units 588 11 37 35 20 

Total New Trips 1,286 29 49 77 62 
 
Traffic associated with the proposed development was distributed and assigned to the roadway network 
based upon existing travel patterns and are summarized below: 
 

• 30% to/from the north via NE Main Street (SC 417) 
• 15% to/from the south vis NE Main Street (SC 417) 
• 10% to/from the south via Hedge Street 
• 25% to the east via Curtis Street 
• 25% from the east via College Street 
• 20% to the west via College Street 
• 20% from the west via College Street 

 
Refer to Figures 9 and 10 for the site trip distributions and assignments. 
 
2.5. Future Build Traffic Volumes 

The site generated traffic volumes were added to the No-Build (2028) traffic volumes to determine the Build  
(2028) volumes. The Build (2028) volumes are illustrated in Figure 11. 

















Burdette North | 16 
 

 

 

3. TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
3.1. Turn Lane Analysis 

A turn lane analysis was conducted at the site accesses utilizing the Build (2028) volumes. Based on build-
out volumes, there are no turn lanes warranted at the site accesses. 
 
Refer to Appendix B for the turn lane warrants with the volumes graphed. 
 

3.2. Intersection LOS Analysis 

Using the existing, no-build, and build traffic volumes, intersection analyses were conducted for the study 
intersections under Existing (2025) conditions, No-Build (2028) conditions and Build (2028) conditions. This 
analysis was conducted using the Transportation Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual (HCM 6th 
Edition) methodologies of the Synchro, Version 11 software.  
 
Intersection level of service (LOS) grades range from LOS A to LOS F, which are directly related to the level 
of control delay at the intersection and characterize the operational conditions of the intersection traffic flow. 
LOS A operations typically represent ideal, free-flow conditions where vehicles experience little to no delays, 
and LOS F operations typically represent poor, forced-flow (bumper-to-bumper) conditions with high 
vehicular delays, and are generally considered undesirable. Table 3 summarizes the HCM 6th Edition control 
delay thresholds associated with each LOS grade for signalized and unsignalized intersections.  

 

Table 3 – HCM 6th Edition LOS Criteria for Signalized & Unsignalized Intersections 

Signalized Intersections Unsignalized Intersections 

LOS Control Delay per Vehicle 
(seconds) LOS Control Delay per Vehicle 

(seconds) 
A ≤ 10 A ≤ 10 

B > 10 and ≤ 20 B > 10 and ≤ 15 

C > 20 and ≤ 35 C > 15 and ≤ 25 

D > 35 and ≤ 55 D > 25 and ≤ 35 

E > 55 and ≤ 80 E > 35 and ≤ 50 

F > 85 F > 50 
 
The results of the capacity analysis for the study intersections under existing traffic control are summarized 
in Table 4. Refer to Appendix C for the detailed capacity analysis reports and Appendix D for the queuing 
analysis results.  



Burdette North | 17 
 

 

Table 4 – Intersection Capacity Analysis Results 

Intersections Approach 
LOS (Delay in seconds per vehicle) 

Existing (2025) No-Build (2028) Build (2028) 
AM PM AM PM AM PM 

NE Main Street (SC 417) 
& College Street 

EB C (26.0) D (45.0) Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
WB D (45.5) E (56.8) D (38.0) D (48.6) D (39.8) D (52.9) 
NB B (18.5) A (9.8) A (4.0) A (3.0) A (4.1) A (3.6) 
SB B (19.3) B (14.2) C (25.8) C (30.5) C (26.5) C (34.0) 

Overall C (26.4) C (23.4) C (25.7) C (28.4) C (26.9) C (31.8) 

NE Main Street (SC 417) 
& Curtis Street 

EB C (30.0) D (54.0) D (43.9) D (54.0) D (44.0) D (54.9) 
WB C (29.5) D (46.8) Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
NB C (23.5) C (20.4) B (18.2) C (34.1) B (18.4) D (36.3) 
SB A (6.8) B (10.6) A (2.5) A (9.1) A (2.6) B (13.0) 

Overall C (20.1) C (25.6) B (18.0) C (28.9) B (18.0) C (31.4) 

Hedge Street & College 
Street 

EB - - Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
WB A (8.0) A (8.6) - - - - 
NB B (12.0) B (12.6) C (21.0) B (14.2) C (21.8) B (14.9) 

Hedge Street & Curtis 
Street 

EB A (8.8) B (17.2) A (6.9) B (10.2) A (7.6) B (11.2) 
WB B (19.1) B (19.8) Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
NB D (42.7) D (44.6) B (19.6) D (38.3) B (19.9) D (41.1) 
SB D (50.8) D (51.3) D (49.8) D (51.2) D (49.5) D (52.4) 

Overall C (25.3) C (27.9) B (19.0) B (19.2) B (19.7) C (20.8) 

Main Street & College 
Street 

EB A (7.7) A (7.6) Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
WB A (7.6) A (7.8) - - - - 
NB A (9.2) B (10.9) B (12.2) B (13.1) B (12.3) B (13.2) 
SB A (9.8) B (10.7) B (10.4) B (11.8) B (10.5) B (11.9) 

Main Street & Curtis 
Street 

EB A (7.8) A (7.8) - - - - 
WB A (7.8) A (7.9) Analyzed under Existing conditions only 
NB B (12.2) B (11.7) B (10.6) B (10.6) B (10.6) B (10.7) 
SB B (10.2) B (11.7) B (12.4) B (13.4) B (12.4) B (13.6) 

Hedge Street & Access A 
EB 

Analyzed under Build conditions only 
B (10.0) A (9.8) 

NB A (7.8) A (7.7) 
SB - - 

College Street & Access B 
WB 

Analyzed under Build conditions only 
- - 

NB B (12.8) B (11.2) 
 
  



Burdette North | 18 
 

 

The capacity analysis indicates that the signalized study intersections approaches are expected to maintain 
their LOS from No-Build to Build conditions, except for the northbound and southbound approach of NE 
Main Street (SC 417) and Curtis Street. Although, the approaches are expected to operate at LOS D or better 
in the Build scenario, which is still considered acceptable. Therefore, there is no mitigation recommended at 
the signalized intersections. 
 
Additionally, the unsignalized study intersections are expected to operate at an LOS C or better in all 
scenarios. The site accesses are expected to operate at LOS B or better in the Build scenario. Therefore, there 
is no mitigation recommended at the study intersections based on the capacity analysis. 
 
 
Figure 12 shows the proposed lane configurations and traffic control for the Build (2028) conditions. 
  





Burdette North | 20 
 

 

4. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
A traffic impact study was conducted for the proposed Burdette North development in accordance with 
SCDOT guidelines. The proposed development is located on the southeast corner of College Street and NE 
Main Street (SC 417), in Simpsonville, South Carolina. The development is expected to consist of 12,812 
square feet of retail and up to 80 multi-family units and is anticipated to be constructed by the end of 2028. 
Direct access to Burdette North development is proposed to be provided via two full movement connections: 
one on Hedge Street and one on College Street. The development is expected to have parallel parking along 
Hedge Street, however, to be conservative all traffic was assumed to access the site through the site accesses. 
 
A turn lane analysis was conducted at the site accesses utilizing the Build (2028) volumes. Based on build-
out volumes, there are no turn lanes warranted at the site accesses. 
 
The capacity analysis indicates that the signalized study intersections approaches are expected to maintain 
their LOS from No-Build to Build conditions, except for the northbound and southbound approach of NE 
Main Street (SC 417) and Curtis Street. Although, the approaches are expected to operate at LOS D or better 
in the Build scenario, which is still considered acceptable. Therefore, there is no mitigation recommended at 
the signalized intersections. 
 
Additionally, the unsignalized study intersections are expected to operate at an LOS C or better in all 
scenarios. The site accesses are expected to operate at LOS B or better in the Build scenario. Therefore, there 
is no mitigation recommended at the study intersections based on the capacity analysis. 
 
Recommendations: 

• None 
 



 

 

 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
TRAFFIC COUNT DATA 

 

 

 

 

 

 



File Name : Simpsonville(01 - SC 417 and College Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
SC 417

Southbound
College Street

Westbound
SC 417

Northbound
College Street

Eastbound
Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 7 71 2 0 80 18 41 61 0 120 0 87 6 1 94 1 16 1 1 19 313
07:15 AM 12 80 2 0 94 17 37 68 1 123 2 126 4 0 132 4 28 1 4 37 386
07:30 AM 14 124 5 0 143 13 60 56 0 129 1 139 2 1 143 10 31 1 2 44 459
07:45 AM 14 121 4 0 139 15 54 50 0 119 2 154 2 0 158 15 29 1 1 46 462

Total 47 396 13 0 456 63 192 235 1 491 5 506 14 2 527 30 104 4 8 146 1620

08:00 AM 17 137 3 0 157 19 54 44 0 117 1 126 6 0 133 8 33 4 2 47 454
08:15 AM 16 133 7 0 156 17 32 46 0 95 2 133 6 0 141 3 32 6 1 42 434
08:30 AM 13 101 3 0 117 10 41 40 0 91 3 125 6 0 134 8 27 2 0 37 379
08:45 AM 18 102 4 0 124 8 40 41 0 89 2 118 4 0 124 15 27 2 0 44 381

Total 64 473 17 0 554 54 167 171 0 392 8 502 22 0 532 34 119 14 3 170 1648

Grand Total 111 869 30 0 1010 117 359 406 1 883 13 1008 36 2 1059 64 223 18 11 316 3268
Apprch % 11 86 3 0  13.3 40.7 46 0.1  1.2 95.2 3.4 0.2  20.3 70.6 5.7 3.5   

Total % 3.4 26.6 0.9 0 30.9 3.6 11 12.4 0 27 0.4 30.8 1.1 0.1 32.4 2 6.8 0.6 0.3 9.7
Cars + 110 846 28 0 984 114 355 405 1 875 13 988 35 2 1038 63 218 18 11 310 3207

% Cars + 99.1 97.4 93.3 0 97.4 97.4 98.9 99.8 100 99.1 100 98 97.2 100 98 98.4 97.8 100 100 98.1 98.1
Trucks 1 23 2 0 26 3 4 1 0 8 0 20 1 0 21 1 5 0 0 6 61

% Trucks 0.9 2.6 6.7 0 2.6 2.6 1.1 0.2 0 0.9 0 2 2.8 0 2 1.6 2.2 0 0 1.9 1.9



File Name : Simpsonville(01 - SC 417 and College Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

SC 417
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 14 124 5 0 143 13 60 56 0 129 1 139 2 1 143 10 31 1 2 44 459
07:45 AM 14 121 4 0 139 15 54 50 0 119 2 154 2 0 158 15 29 1 1 46 462
08:00 AM 17 137 3 0 157 19 54 44 0 117 1 126 6 0 133 8 33 4 2 47 454
08:15 AM 16 133 7 0 156 17 32 46 0 95 2 133 6 0 141 3 32 6 1 42 434

Total Volume 61 515 19 0 595 64 200 196 0 460 6 552 16 1 575 36 125 12 6 179 1809
% App. Total 10.3 86.6 3.2 0  13.9 43.5 42.6 0  1 96 2.8 0.2  20.1 69.8 6.7 3.4   

PHF .897 .940 .679 .000 .947 .842 .833 .875 .000 .891 .750 .896 .667 .250 .910 .600 .947 .500 .750 .952 .979
Cars + 61 498 17 0 576 62 198 195 0 455 6 541 16 1 564 36 122 12 6 176 1771

% Cars + 100 96.7 89.5 0 96.8 96.9 99.0 99.5 0 98.9 100 98.0 100 100 98.1 100 97.6 100 100 98.3 97.9
Trucks 0 17 2 0 19 2 2 1 0 5 0 11 0 0 11 0 3 0 0 3 38

% Trucks 0 3.3 10.5 0 3.2 3.1 1.0 0.5 0 1.1 0 2.0 0 0 1.9 0 2.4 0 0 1.7 2.1

   SC 417   

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

   SC 417   

Right

17 
2 

19 
Thru

498 
17 

515 
Left

61 
0 

61 
Peds

0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
772 576 1348 
12 19 31 

784 1379 595 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight

195 1 
196 

Thru

198 2 
200 

Left 62 2 
64 

P
eds 0 0 0 

O
ut

Total
In

199 
455 

654 
3 

5 
8 

202 
662 

460 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
6 
0 
6 

Thru
541 
11 

552 

Right
16 
0 

16 

Peds
1 
0 
1 

Out TotalIn

572 564 1136 
19 11 30 

591 1166 575 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft36

 0 36
 

Th
ru12

2 3 
12

5 
R

ig
ht12

 0 12
 

P
ed

s6 0 6 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

22
1 

17
6 

39
7 

4 
3 

7 
22

5 
40

4 
17

9 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(01 - SC 417 and College Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
SC 417

Southbound
College Street

Westbound
SC 417

Northbound
College Street

Eastbound
Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 43 174 4 0 221 6 31 34 0 71 4 140 18 0 162 2 42 8 0 52 506
04:15 PM 30 155 7 0 192 11 44 25 0 80 3 129 22 0 154 8 43 9 0 60 486
04:30 PM 24 178 6 0 208 7 36 26 0 69 1 120 11 0 132 7 51 9 0 67 476
04:45 PM 32 145 5 0 182 12 37 28 1 78 3 123 20 0 146 8 42 7 0 57 463

Total 129 652 22 0 803 36 148 113 1 298 11 512 71 0 594 25 178 33 0 236 1931

05:00 PM 37 185 4 0 226 12 43 24 0 79 5 126 19 0 150 10 41 2 0 53 508
05:15 PM 38 146 3 2 189 6 38 23 1 68 2 110 16 0 128 4 51 10 0 65 450
05:30 PM 49 167 7 0 223 10 46 20 0 76 2 97 19 0 118 4 49 10 0 63 480
05:45 PM 53 153 5 0 211 11 31 16 0 58 5 114 24 0 143 2 67 6 0 75 487

Total 177 651 19 2 849 39 158 83 1 281 14 447 78 0 539 20 208 28 0 256 1925

Grand Total 306 1303 41 2 1652 75 306 196 2 579 25 959 149 0 1133 45 386 61 0 492 3856
Apprch % 18.5 78.9 2.5 0.1  13 52.8 33.9 0.3  2.2 84.6 13.2 0  9.1 78.5 12.4 0   

Total % 7.9 33.8 1.1 0.1 42.8 1.9 7.9 5.1 0.1 15 0.6 24.9 3.9 0 29.4 1.2 10 1.6 0 12.8
Cars + 306 1296 41 2 1645 74 304 195 2 575 25 949 147 0 1121 45 386 60 0 491 3832

% Cars + 100 99.5 100 100 99.6 98.7 99.3 99.5 100 99.3 100 99 98.7 0 98.9 100 100 98.4 0 99.8 99.4
Trucks 0 7 0 0 7 1 2 1 0 4 0 10 2 0 12 0 0 1 0 1 24

% Trucks 0 0.5 0 0 0.4 1.3 0.7 0.5 0 0.7 0 1 1.3 0 1.1 0 0 1.6 0 0.2 0.6



File Name : Simpsonville(01 - SC 417 and College Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

SC 417
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:15 PM

04:15 PM 30 155 7 0 192 11 44 25 0 80 3 129 22 0 154 8 43 9 0 60 486
04:30 PM 24 178 6 0 208 7 36 26 0 69 1 120 11 0 132 7 51 9 0 67 476
04:45 PM 32 145 5 0 182 12 37 28 1 78 3 123 20 0 146 8 42 7 0 57 463
05:00 PM 37 185 4 0 226 12 43 24 0 79 5 126 19 0 150 10 41 2 0 53 508

Total Volume 123 663 22 0 808 42 160 103 1 306 12 498 72 0 582 33 177 27 0 237 1933
% App. Total 15.2 82.1 2.7 0  13.7 52.3 33.7 0.3  2.1 85.6 12.4 0  13.9 74.7 11.4 0   

PHF .831 .896 .786 .000 .894 .875 .909 .920 .250 .956 .600 .965 .818 .000 .945 .825 .868 .750 .000 .884 .951
Cars + 123 659 22 0 804 41 160 103 1 305 12 493 72 0 577 33 177 27 0 237 1923

% Cars + 100 99.4 100 0 99.5 97.6 100 100 100 99.7 100 99.0 100 0 99.1 100 100 100 0 100 99.5
Trucks 0 4 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 10

% Trucks 0 0.6 0 0 0.5 2.4 0 0 0 0.3 0 1.0 0 0 0.9 0 0 0 0 0 0.5

   SC 417   

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

   SC 417   

Right

22 
0 

22 
Thru

659 
4 

663 
Left

123 
0 

123 
Peds

0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
629 804 1433 

5 4 9 
634 1442 808 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight

103 0 
103 

Thru

160 0 
160 

Left 41 1 
42 

P
eds 1 0 1 

O
ut

Total
In

372 
305 

677 
0 

1 
1 

372 
678 

306 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
12 
0 

12 

Thru
493 

5 
498 

Right
72 
0 

72 

Peds
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

727 577 1304 
5 5 10 

732 1314 582 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft33

 0 33
 

Th
ru17

7 0 
17

7 
R

ig
ht27

 0 27
 

P
ed

s0 0 0 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

19
4 

23
7 

43
1 

0 
0 

0 
19

4 
43

1 
23

7 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:15 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(02 - SC 417 and Curtis Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
SC 417

Southbound
Curtis Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 23 61 3 0 87 5 83 30 0 118 8 61 20 0 89 4 43 0 0 47 341
07:15 AM 30 73 2 0 105 9 88 27 1 125 10 102 17 0 129 2 38 1 0 41 400
07:30 AM 33 93 2 1 129 14 55 31 0 100 9 99 13 0 121 5 50 5 0 60 410
07:45 AM 25 103 8 0 136 10 61 43 0 114 3 97 6 0 106 12 44 3 0 59 415

Total 111 330 15 1 457 38 287 131 1 457 30 359 56 0 445 23 175 9 0 207 1566

08:00 AM 36 122 6 0 164 12 69 24 0 105 3 100 9 0 112 6 48 4 0 58 439
08:15 AM 24 124 5 0 153 15 50 24 0 89 7 114 15 0 136 2 47 1 0 50 428
08:30 AM 25 85 6 0 116 15 64 20 0 99 13 113 10 1 137 1 38 3 0 42 394
08:45 AM 28 79 6 0 113 15 54 16 0 85 6 100 6 1 113 10 40 6 0 56 367

Total 113 410 23 0 546 57 237 84 0 378 29 427 40 2 498 19 173 14 0 206 1628

Grand Total 224 740 38 1 1003 95 524 215 1 835 59 786 96 2 943 42 348 23 0 413 3194
Apprch % 22.3 73.8 3.8 0.1  11.4 62.8 25.7 0.1  6.3 83.4 10.2 0.2  10.2 84.3 5.6 0   

Total % 7 23.2 1.2 0 31.4 3 16.4 6.7 0 26.1 1.8 24.6 3 0.1 29.5 1.3 10.9 0.7 0 12.9
Cars + 216 724 36 1 977 83 505 211 1 800 58 769 93 2 922 42 330 23 0 395 3094

% Cars + 96.4 97.8 94.7 100 97.4 87.4 96.4 98.1 100 95.8 98.3 97.8 96.9 100 97.8 100 94.8 100 0 95.6 96.9
Trucks 8 16 2 0 26 12 19 4 0 35 1 17 3 0 21 0 18 0 0 18 100

% Trucks 3.6 2.2 5.3 0 2.6 12.6 3.6 1.9 0 4.2 1.7 2.2 3.1 0 2.2 0 5.2 0 0 4.4 3.1



File Name : Simpsonville(02 - SC 417 and Curtis Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

SC 417
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 33 93 2 1 129 14 55 31 0 100 9 99 13 0 121 5 50 5 0 60 410
07:45 AM 25 103 8 0 136 10 61 43 0 114 3 97 6 0 106 12 44 3 0 59 415
08:00 AM 36 122 6 0 164 12 69 24 0 105 3 100 9 0 112 6 48 4 0 58 439
08:15 AM 24 124 5 0 153 15 50 24 0 89 7 114 15 0 136 2 47 1 0 50 428

Total Volume 118 442 21 1 582 51 235 122 0 408 22 410 43 0 475 25 189 13 0 227 1692
% App. Total 20.3 75.9 3.6 0.2  12.5 57.6 29.9 0  4.6 86.3 9.1 0  11 83.3 5.7 0   

PHF .819 .891 .656 .250 .887 .850 .851 .709 .000 .895 .611 .899 .717 .000 .873 .521 .945 .650 .000 .946 .964
Cars + 113 429 21 1 564 45 224 119 0 388 21 402 41 0 464 25 179 13 0 217 1633

% Cars + 95.8 97.1 100 100 96.9 88.2 95.3 97.5 0 95.1 95.5 98.0 95.3 0 97.7 100 94.7 100 0 95.6 96.5
Trucks 5 13 0 0 18 6 11 3 0 20 1 8 2 0 11 0 10 0 0 10 59

% Trucks 4.2 2.9 0 0 3.1 11.8 4.7 2.5 0 4.9 4.5 2.0 4.7 0 2.3 0 5.3 0 0 4.4 3.5

   SC 417   

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

   SC 417   

Right

21 
0 

21 
Thru

429 
13 

442 
Left

113 
5 

118 
Peds

1 
0 
1 

InOut Total
546 564 1110 
11 18 29 

557 1139 582 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight

119 3 
122 

Thru

224 
11 

235 
Left 45 6 

51 
P

eds 0 0 0 

O
ut

Total
In

333 
388 

721 
17 

20 
37 

350 
758 

408 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
21 
1 

22 

Thru
402 

8 
410 

Right
41 
2 

43 

Peds
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

487 464 951 
19 11 30 

506 981 475 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft25

 0 25
 

Th
ru17

9 10
 

18
9 

R
ig

ht13
 0 13
 

P
ed

s0 0 0 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

26
6 

21
7 

48
3 

12
 

10
 

22
 

27
8 

50
5 

22
7 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(02 - SC 417 and Curtis Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
SC 417

Southbound
Curtis Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 44 130 12 0 186 12 33 21 0 66 15 135 29 4 183 8 41 3 0 52 487
04:15 PM 53 120 7 0 180 4 52 16 0 72 10 127 25 1 163 3 55 6 0 64 479
04:30 PM 61 118 7 0 186 10 47 27 0 84 8 111 19 6 144 7 50 1 0 58 472
04:45 PM 52 101 11 0 164 15 37 15 3 70 10 125 26 0 161 4 47 11 0 62 457

Total 210 469 37 0 716 41 169 79 3 292 43 498 99 11 651 22 193 21 0 236 1895

05:00 PM 47 135 12 0 194 5 48 22 0 75 12 120 27 1 160 4 58 4 0 66 495
05:15 PM 47 101 8 0 156 11 40 9 1 61 12 113 39 5 169 3 65 5 0 73 459
05:30 PM 56 124 19 2 201 8 50 6 2 66 12 102 37 0 151 3 64 3 0 70 488
05:45 PM 41 105 12 0 158 6 52 17 5 80 8 121 33 5 167 6 65 9 0 80 485

Total 191 465 51 2 709 30 190 54 8 282 44 456 136 11 647 16 252 21 0 289 1927

Grand Total 401 934 88 2 1425 71 359 133 11 574 87 954 235 22 1298 38 445 42 0 525 3822
Apprch % 28.1 65.5 6.2 0.1  12.4 62.5 23.2 1.9  6.7 73.5 18.1 1.7  7.2 84.8 8 0   

Total % 10.5 24.4 2.3 0.1 37.3 1.9 9.4 3.5 0.3 15 2.3 25 6.1 0.6 34 1 11.6 1.1 0 13.7
Cars + 398 928 88 2 1416 69 350 131 10 560 86 944 230 20 1280 38 437 42 0 517 3773

% Cars + 99.3 99.4 100 100 99.4 97.2 97.5 98.5 90.9 97.6 98.9 99 97.9 90.9 98.6 100 98.2 100 0 98.5 98.7
Trucks 3 6 0 0 9 2 9 2 1 14 1 10 5 2 18 0 8 0 0 8 49

% Trucks 0.7 0.6 0 0 0.6 2.8 2.5 1.5 9.1 2.4 1.1 1 2.1 9.1 1.4 0 1.8 0 0 1.5 1.3



File Name : Simpsonville(02 - SC 417 and Curtis Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

SC 417
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

SC 417
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 05:00 PM

05:00 PM 47 135 12 0 194 5 48 22 0 75 12 120 27 1 160 4 58 4 0 66 495
05:15 PM 47 101 8 0 156 11 40 9 1 61 12 113 39 5 169 3 65 5 0 73 459
05:30 PM 56 124 19 2 201 8 50 6 2 66 12 102 37 0 151 3 64 3 0 70 488
05:45 PM 41 105 12 0 158 6 52 17 5 80 8 121 33 5 167 6 65 9 0 80 485

Total Volume 191 465 51 2 709 30 190 54 8 282 44 456 136 11 647 16 252 21 0 289 1927
% App. Total 26.9 65.6 7.2 0.3  10.6 67.4 19.1 2.8  6.8 70.5 21 1.7  5.5 87.2 7.3 0   

PHF .853 .861 .671 .250 .882 .682 .913 .614 .400 .881 .917 .942 .872 .550 .957 .667 .969 .583 .000 .903 .973
Cars + 189 463 51 2 705 30 185 52 7 274 43 453 135 9 640 16 248 21 0 285 1904

% Cars + 99.0 99.6 100 100 99.4 100 97.4 96.3 87.5 97.2 97.7 99.3 99.3 81.8 98.9 100 98.4 100 0 98.6 98.8
Trucks 2 2 0 0 4 0 5 2 1 8 1 3 1 2 7 0 4 0 0 4 23

% Trucks 1.0 0.4 0 0 0.6 0 2.6 3.7 12.5 2.8 2.3 0.7 0.7 18.2 1.1 0 1.6 0 0 1.4 1.2

   SC 417   

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

   SC 417   

Right

51 
0 

51 
Thru

463 
2 

465 
Left

189 
2 

191 
Peds

2 
0 
2 

InOut Total
521 705 1226 

5 4 9 
526 1235 709 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight 52 2 

54 
Thru

185 5 
190 

Left 30 0 
30 

P
eds 7 1 8 

O
ut

Total
In

572 
274 

846 
7 

8 
15 

579 
861 

282 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
43 
1 

44 

Thru
453 

3 
456 

Right
135 

1 
136 

Peds
9 
2 

11 

Out TotalIn

514 640 1154 
2 7 9 

516 1163 647 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft16

 0 16
 

Th
ru24

8 4 
25

2 
R

ig
ht21

 0 21
 

P
ed

s0 0 0 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

27
9 

28
5 

56
4 

6 
4 

10
 

28
5 

57
4 

28
9 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(03 - W. College Street and Main Street (DC)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Main Street
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2
07:15 AM 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
07:30 AM 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3
07:45 AM 0 0 3 3 2 0 1 3 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 8

Total 0 0 5 5 2 0 6 8 0 0 2 2 2 0 0 2 17

08:00 AM 1 0 3 4 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 7
08:15 AM 0 0 6 6 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 11
08:30 AM 0 0 3 3 4 0 3 7 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 12
08:45 AM 0 0 9 9 0 0 3 3 0 0 4 4 1 0 1 2 18

Total 1 0 21 22 4 0 9 13 0 0 7 7 5 0 1 6 48

Grand Total 1 0 26 27 6 0 15 21 0 0 9 9 7 0 1 8 65
Apprch % 3.7 0 96.3  28.6 0 71.4  0 0 100  87.5 0 12.5   

Total % 1.5 0 40 41.5 9.2 0 23.1 32.3 0 0 13.8 13.8 10.8 0 1.5 12.3
Cars + 1 0 25 26 6 0 15 21 0 0 9 9 7 0 1 8 64

% Cars + 100 0 96.2 96.3 100 0 100 100 0 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 98.5
Trucks 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

% Trucks 0 0 3.8 3.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.5



File Name : Simpsonville(03 - W. College Street and Main Street (DC)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Main Street
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 08:00 AM

08:00 AM 1 0 3 4 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 7
08:15 AM 0 0 6 6 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 11
08:30 AM 0 0 3 3 4 0 3 7 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 12
08:45 AM 0 0 9 9 0 0 3 3 0 0 4 4 1 0 1 2 18

Total Volume 1 0 21 22 4 0 9 13 0 0 7 7 5 0 1 6 48
% App. Total 4.5 0 95.5  30.8 0 69.2  0 0 100  83.3 0 16.7   

PHF .250 .000 .583 .611 .250 .000 .750 .464 .000 .000 .438 .438 .417 .000 .250 .500 .667

 Main Street 

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

 Main Street 

Right
21 

Thru
0 

Left
1 

InOut Total
14 22 36 

R
ight9 

Thru0 
Left4 

O
ut

Total
In

8 
13 

21 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
7 

Out TotalIn
5 7 12 

Le
ft5 

Th
ru

0 
R

ig
ht1 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

21
 

6 
27

 

Peak Hour Begins at 08:00 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North



File Name : Simpsonville(03 - W. College Street and Main Street (DC)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Main Street
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 1 0 4 5 0 0 1 1 1 0 3 4 0 0 2 2 12
04:15 PM 0 0 4 4 2 0 2 4 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 11
04:30 PM 5 0 7 12 4 0 2 6 1 0 4 5 0 0 1 1 24
04:45 PM 2 0 6 8 6 0 0 6 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 16

Total 8 0 21 29 12 0 5 17 4 0 10 14 0 0 3 3 63

05:00 PM 0 0 8 8 2 0 2 4 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 2 15
05:15 PM 7 0 7 14 3 0 0 3 0 0 2 2 1 0 1 2 21
05:30 PM 5 0 3 8 5 0 1 6 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 16
05:45 PM 2 0 0 2 4 0 0 4 4 0 3 7 0 0 0 0 13

Total 14 0 18 32 14 0 3 17 6 0 6 12 3 0 1 4 65

Grand Total 22 0 39 61 26 0 8 34 10 0 16 26 3 0 4 7 128
Apprch % 36.1 0 63.9  76.5 0 23.5  38.5 0 61.5  42.9 0 57.1   

Total % 17.2 0 30.5 47.7 20.3 0 6.2 26.6 7.8 0 12.5 20.3 2.3 0 3.1 5.5
Cars + 21 0 39 60 26 0 8 34 10 0 16 26 3 0 4 7 127

% Cars + 95.5 0 100 98.4 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 99.2
Trucks 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

% Trucks 4.5 0 0 1.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.8



File Name : Simpsonville(03 - W. College Street and Main Street (DC)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Main Street
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 5 0 7 12 4 0 2 6 1 0 4 5 0 0 1 1 24
04:45 PM 2 0 6 8 6 0 0 6 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 16
05:00 PM 0 0 8 8 2 0 2 4 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 2 15
05:15 PM 7 0 7 14 3 0 0 3 0 0 2 2 1 0 1 2 21

Total Volume 14 0 28 42 15 0 4 19 4 0 6 10 3 0 2 5 76
% App. Total 33.3 0 66.7  78.9 0 21.1  40 0 60  60 0 40   

PHF .500 .000 .875 .750 .625 .000 .500 .792 .500 .000 .375 .500 .375 .000 .500 .625 .792

 Main Street 

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

 Main Street 

Right
28 

Thru
0 

Left
14 

InOut Total
7 42 49 

R
ight4 

Thru0 
Left15 

O
ut

Total
In

20 
19 

39 

Left
4 

Thru
0 

Right
6 

Out TotalIn
17 10 27 

Le
ft3 

Th
ru

0 
R

ig
ht2 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

32
 

5 
37

 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North



File Name : Simpsonville(04 - W. Curtis Street and  N. Main Street (DC) (1)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Main Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 2
07:15 AM 0 0 3 3 1 0 0 1 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 8
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 4 0 4 8 0 0 0 0 9
07:45 AM 2 0 5 7 1 0 1 2 5 0 1 6 1 0 2 3 18

Total 2 0 8 10 2 0 2 4 14 0 5 19 1 0 3 4 37

08:00 AM 0 0 5 5 4 0 0 4 2 0 3 5 0 0 4 4 18
08:15 AM 0 0 2 2 2 0 1 3 2 0 0 2 0 0 1 1 8
08:30 AM 0 0 6 6 3 0 2 5 2 0 0 2 1 0 4 5 18
08:45 AM 1 0 3 4 4 0 5 9 8 0 9 17 0 0 2 2 32

Total 1 0 16 17 13 0 8 21 14 0 12 26 1 0 11 12 76

Grand Total 3 0 24 27 15 0 10 25 28 0 17 45 2 0 14 16 113
Apprch % 11.1 0 88.9  60 0 40  62.2 0 37.8  12.5 0 87.5   

Total % 2.7 0 21.2 23.9 13.3 0 8.8 22.1 24.8 0 15 39.8 1.8 0 12.4 14.2
Cars + 3 0 23 26 15 0 10 25 28 0 17 45 2 0 14 16 112

% Cars + 100 0 95.8 96.3 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 99.1
Trucks 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

% Trucks 0 0 4.2 3.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.9



File Name : Simpsonville(04 - W. Curtis Street and  N. Main Street (DC) (1)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Main Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 08:00 AM

08:00 AM 0 0 5 5 4 0 0 4 2 0 3 5 0 0 4 4 18
08:15 AM 0 0 2 2 2 0 1 3 2 0 0 2 0 0 1 1 8
08:30 AM 0 0 6 6 3 0 2 5 2 0 0 2 1 0 4 5 18
08:45 AM 1 0 3 4 4 0 5 9 8 0 9 17 0 0 2 2 32

Total Volume 1 0 16 17 13 0 8 21 14 0 12 26 1 0 11 12 76
% App. Total 5.9 0 94.1  61.9 0 38.1  53.8 0 46.2  8.3 0 91.7   

PHF .250 .000 .667 .708 .813 .000 .400 .583 .438 .000 .333 .382 .250 .000 .688 .600 .594

 Main Street 

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

 Main Street 

Right
16 

Thru
0 

Left
1 

InOut Total
9 17 26 

R
ight8 

Thru0 
Left13 

O
ut

Total
In

13 
21 

34 

Left
14 

Thru
0 

Right
12 

Out TotalIn
24 26 50 

Le
ft1 

Th
ru

0 
R

ig
ht11

 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

30
 

12
 

42
 

Peak Hour Begins at 08:00 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North



File Name : Simpsonville(04 - W. Curtis Street and  N. Main Street (DC) (1)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Main Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 1 0 7 8 5 0 2 7 6 0 3 9 1 0 1 2 26
04:15 PM 1 0 9 10 8 0 1 9 6 0 4 10 0 0 0 0 29
04:30 PM 4 0 5 9 9 0 3 12 1 0 3 4 0 0 1 1 26
04:45 PM 2 0 5 7 11 0 4 15 1 0 5 6 2 0 5 7 35

Total 8 0 26 34 33 0 10 43 14 0 15 29 3 0 7 10 116

05:00 PM 2 0 3 5 6 0 2 8 2 0 5 7 0 0 2 2 22
05:15 PM 0 0 10 10 6 0 4 10 1 0 4 5 3 0 0 3 28
05:30 PM 6 0 9 15 9 0 2 11 1 0 3 4 1 0 0 1 31
05:45 PM 3 0 7 10 10 0 2 12 5 0 11 16 0 0 0 0 38

Total 11 0 29 40 31 0 10 41 9 0 23 32 4 0 2 6 119

Grand Total 19 0 55 74 64 0 20 84 23 0 38 61 7 0 9 16 235
Apprch % 25.7 0 74.3  76.2 0 23.8  37.7 0 62.3  43.8 0 56.2   

Total % 8.1 0 23.4 31.5 27.2 0 8.5 35.7 9.8 0 16.2 26 3 0 3.8 6.8
Cars + 19 0 55 74 64 0 20 84 23 0 38 61 7 0 8 15 234

% Cars + 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 100 0 100 100 100 0 88.9 93.8 99.6
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11.1 6.2 0.4



File Name : Simpsonville(04 - W. Curtis Street and  N. Main Street (DC) (1)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Main Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Main Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 05:00 PM

05:00 PM 2 0 3 5 6 0 2 8 2 0 5 7 0 0 2 2 22
05:15 PM 0 0 10 10 6 0 4 10 1 0 4 5 3 0 0 3 28
05:30 PM 6 0 9 15 9 0 2 11 1 0 3 4 1 0 0 1 31
05:45 PM 3 0 7 10 10 0 2 12 5 0 11 16 0 0 0 0 38

Total Volume 11 0 29 40 31 0 10 41 9 0 23 32 4 0 2 6 119
% App. Total 27.5 0 72.5  75.6 0 24.4  28.1 0 71.9  66.7 0 33.3   

PHF .458 .000 .725 .667 .775 .000 .625 .854 .450 .000 .523 .500 .333 .000 .250 .500 .783

 Main Street 

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

 Main Street 

Right
29 

Thru
0 

Left
11 

InOut Total
14 40 54 

R
ight10 

Thru0 
Left31 

O
ut

Total
In

34 
41 

75 

Left
9 

Thru
0 

Right
23 

Out TotalIn
33 32 65 

Le
ft4 

Th
ru

0 
R

ig
ht2 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

38
 

6 
44

 

Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North



File Name : Simpsonville(05 - College St and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Commercial Access

Southbound
College Street

Westbound
Hedge Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 6 117 0 0 123 4 0 5 1 10 0 22 6 0 28 161
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 130 0 0 139 2 0 8 0 10 1 34 10 0 45 194
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 129 0 0 138 0 0 10 1 11 0 31 16 0 47 196
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 19 116 0 0 135 4 0 18 0 22 0 35 10 0 45 202

Total 0 0 0 0 0 43 492 0 0 535 10 0 41 2 53 1 122 42 0 165 753

08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 27 107 0 0 134 6 0 16 0 22 0 48 8 0 56 212
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 62 90 0 0 152 2 0 10 0 12 1 39 13 0 53 217
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 18 82 0 0 100 6 0 19 0 25 0 35 10 0 45 170
08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 10 83 0 0 93 7 1 11 0 19 1 29 19 0 49 161

Total 0 0 0 0 0 117 362 0 0 479 21 1 56 0 78 2 151 50 0 203 760

Grand Total 0 0 0 0 0 160 854 0 0 1014 31 1 97 2 131 3 273 92 0 368 1513
Apprch % 0 0 0 0  15.8 84.2 0 0  23.7 0.8 74 1.5  0.8 74.2 25 0   

Total % 0 0 0 0 0 10.6 56.4 0 0 67 2 0.1 6.4 0.1 8.7 0.2 18 6.1 0 24.3
Cars + 0 0 0 0 0 160 846 0 0 1006 31 1 97 2 131 3 266 92 0 361 1498

% Cars + 0 0 0 0 0 100 99.1 0 0 99.2 100 100 100 100 100 100 97.4 100 0 98.1 99
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 7 15

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.9 0 0 0.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.6 0 0 1.9 1



File Name : Simpsonville(05 - College St and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Commercial Access
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:30 AM

07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 129 0 0 138 0 0 10 1 11 0 31 16 0 47 196
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 19 116 0 0 135 4 0 18 0 22 0 35 10 0 45 202
08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 27 107 0 0 134 6 0 16 0 22 0 48 8 0 56 212
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 62 90 0 0 152 2 0 10 0 12 1 39 13 0 53 217

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 117 442 0 0 559 12 0 54 1 67 1 153 47 0 201 827
% App. Total 0 0 0 0  20.9 79.1 0 0  17.9 0 80.6 1.5  0.5 76.1 23.4 0   

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .472 .857 .000 .000 .919 .500 .000 .750 .250 .761 .250 .797 .734 .000 .897 .953
Cars + 0 0 0 0 0 117 437 0 0 554 12 0 54 1 67 1 150 47 0 198 819

% Cars + 0 0 0 0 0 100 98.9 0 0 99.1 100 0 100 100 100 100 98.0 100 0 98.5 99.0
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 8

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.1 0 0 0.9 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.0 0 0 1.5 1.0

   Commercial Access   

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

   Hedge Street   

Right

0 
0 
0 

Thru

0 
0 
0 

Left

0 
0 
0 

Peds

0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
1 0 1 
0 0 0 
1 1 0 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight 0 0 0 

Thru

437 5 
442 

Left

117 0 
117 

P
eds 0 0 0 

O
ut

Total
In

204 
554 

758 
3 

5 
8 

207 
766 

559 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
12 
0 

12 

Thru
0 
0 
0 

Right
54 
0 

54 

Peds
1 
0 
1 

Out TotalIn

164 67 231 
0 0 0 

164 231 67 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft1 0 1 

Th
ru15

0 3 
15

3 
R

ig
ht47

 0 47
 

P
ed

s0 0 0 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

44
9 

19
8 

64
7 

5 
3 

8 
45

4 
65

5 
20

1 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:30 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(05 - College St and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Commercial Access

Southbound
College Street

Westbound
Hedge Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 0 0 1 0 1 10 54 0 0 64 12 0 24 0 36 0 69 31 0 100 201
04:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 16 80 0 0 96 5 0 14 0 19 1 60 34 0 95 211
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9 67 0 0 76 1 0 9 0 10 0 69 18 0 87 173
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 17 73 0 0 90 3 0 15 0 18 1 67 23 0 91 199

Total 0 0 2 0 2 52 274 0 0 326 21 0 62 0 83 2 265 106 0 373 784

05:00 PM 0 0 3 0 3 8 77 0 0 85 0 0 19 0 19 0 70 28 0 98 205
05:15 PM 0 0 0 2 2 14 59 0 0 73 7 0 13 0 20 1 74 31 0 106 201
05:30 PM 0 0 1 0 1 11 74 0 0 85 1 0 16 0 17 1 78 35 0 114 217
05:45 PM 0 0 2 0 2 11 58 3 0 72 1 0 8 0 9 0 109 39 0 148 231

Total 0 0 6 2 8 44 268 3 0 315 9 0 56 0 65 2 331 133 0 466 854

Grand Total 0 0 8 2 10 96 542 3 0 641 30 0 118 0 148 4 596 239 0 839 1638
Apprch % 0 0 80 20  15 84.6 0.5 0  20.3 0 79.7 0  0.5 71 28.5 0   

Total % 0 0 0.5 0.1 0.6 5.9 33.1 0.2 0 39.1 1.8 0 7.2 0 9 0.2 36.4 14.6 0 51.2
Cars + 0 0 8 2 10 96 538 3 0 637 30 0 118 0 148 4 595 238 0 837 1632

% Cars + 0 0 100 100 100 100 99.3 100 0 99.4 100 0 100 0 100 100 99.8 99.6 0 99.8 99.6
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 6

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.7 0 0 0.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.2 0.4 0 0.2 0.4



File Name : Simpsonville(05 - College St and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Commercial Access
Southbound

College Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

College Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 05:00 PM

05:00 PM 0 0 3 0 3 8 77 0 0 85 0 0 19 0 19 0 70 28 0 98 205
05:15 PM 0 0 0 2 2 14 59 0 0 73 7 0 13 0 20 1 74 31 0 106 201
05:30 PM 0 0 1 0 1 11 74 0 0 85 1 0 16 0 17 1 78 35 0 114 217
05:45 PM 0 0 2 0 2 11 58 3 0 72 1 0 8 0 9 0 109 39 0 148 231

Total Volume 0 0 6 2 8 44 268 3 0 315 9 0 56 0 65 2 331 133 0 466 854
% App. Total 0 0 75 25  14 85.1 1 0  13.8 0 86.2 0  0.4 71 28.5 0   

PHF .000 .000 .500 .250 .667 .786 .870 .250 .000 .926 .321 .000 .737 .000 .813 .500 .759 .853 .000 .787 .924
Cars + 0 0 6 2 8 44 266 3 0 313 9 0 56 0 65 2 331 133 0 466 852

% Cars + 0 0 100 100 100 100 99.3 100 0 99.4 100 0 100 0 100 100 100 100 0 100 99.8
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.7 0 0 0.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.2

   Commercial Access   

 C
ol

le
ge

 S
tre

et
  C

ollege S
treet 

   Hedge Street   

Right

6 
0 
6 

Thru

0 
0 
0 

Left

0 
0 
0 

Peds

2 
0 
2 

InOut Total
5 8 13 
0 0 0 
5 13 8 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight 3 0 3 

Thru

266 2 
268 

Left 44 0 
44 

P
eds 0 0 0 

O
ut

Total
In

387 
313 

700 
0 

2 
2 

387 
702 

315 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
9 
0 
9 

Thru
0 
0 
0 

Right
56 
0 

56 

Peds
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

177 65 242 
0 0 0 

177 242 65 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft2 0 2 

Th
ru33

1 0 
33

1 
R

ig
ht13
3 0 

13
3 

P
ed

s0 0 0 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

28
1 

46
6 

74
7 

2 
0 

2 
28

3 
74

9 
46

6 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(06 - Curtis Street and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Hedge Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 5 5 1 0 11 2 121 3 0 126 0 5 14 0 19 1 83 0 0 84 240
07:15 AM 9 6 1 0 16 4 119 1 0 124 0 9 18 0 27 1 81 1 0 83 250
07:30 AM 10 11 0 1 22 12 103 4 0 119 0 12 25 0 37 0 96 1 0 97 275
07:45 AM 14 25 2 0 41 14 109 5 0 128 2 17 30 0 49 2 70 3 0 75 293

Total 38 47 4 1 90 32 452 13 0 497 2 43 87 0 132 4 330 5 0 339 1058

08:00 AM 6 29 1 0 36 16 100 2 1 119 1 21 32 0 54 1 90 1 0 92 301
08:15 AM 7 66 1 0 74 24 91 3 1 119 0 10 25 0 35 0 87 0 0 87 315
08:30 AM 8 25 0 0 33 18 97 2 0 117 4 25 42 0 71 1 72 0 1 74 295
08:45 AM 7 13 4 0 24 16 79 2 0 97 5 19 29 0 53 4 67 1 0 72 246

Total 28 133 6 0 167 74 367 9 2 452 10 75 128 0 213 6 316 2 1 325 1157

Grand Total 66 180 10 1 257 106 819 22 2 949 12 118 215 0 345 10 646 7 1 664 2215
Apprch % 25.7 70 3.9 0.4  11.2 86.3 2.3 0.2  3.5 34.2 62.3 0  1.5 97.3 1.1 0.2   

Total % 3 8.1 0.5 0 11.6 4.8 37 1 0.1 42.8 0.5 5.3 9.7 0 15.6 0.5 29.2 0.3 0 30
Cars + 66 180 10 1 257 106 784 22 1 913 11 118 211 0 340 10 617 7 1 635 2145

% Cars + 100 100 100 100 100 100 95.7 100 50 96.2 91.7 100 98.1 0 98.6 100 95.5 100 100 95.6 96.8
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 1 36 1 0 4 0 5 0 29 0 0 29 70

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 4.3 0 50 3.8 8.3 0 1.9 0 1.4 0 4.5 0 0 4.4 3.2



File Name : Simpsonville(06 - Curtis Street and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Hedge Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:45 AM

07:45 AM 14 25 2 0 41 14 109 5 0 128 2 17 30 0 49 2 70 3 0 75 293
08:00 AM 6 29 1 0 36 16 100 2 1 119 1 21 32 0 54 1 90 1 0 92 301
08:15 AM 7 66 1 0 74 24 91 3 1 119 0 10 25 0 35 0 87 0 0 87 315
08:30 AM 8 25 0 0 33 18 97 2 0 117 4 25 42 0 71 1 72 0 1 74 295

Total Volume 35 145 4 0 184 72 397 12 2 483 7 73 129 0 209 4 319 4 1 328 1204
% App. Total 19 78.8 2.2 0  14.9 82.2 2.5 0.4  3.3 34.9 61.7 0  1.2 97.3 1.2 0.3   

PHF .625 .549 .500 .000 .622 .750 .911 .600 .500 .943 .438 .730 .768 .000 .736 .500 .886 .333 .250 .891 .956
Cars + 35 145 4 0 184 72 376 12 1 461 7 73 126 0 206 4 300 4 1 309 1160

% Cars + 100 100 100 0 100 100 94.7 100 50.0 95.4 100 100 97.7 0 98.6 100 94.0 100 100 94.2 96.3
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 1 22 0 0 3 0 3 0 19 0 0 19 44

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 5.3 0 50.0 4.6 0 0 2.3 0 1.4 0 6.0 0 0 5.8 3.7

   Hedge Street   

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

   Hedge Street   

Right

4 
0 
4 

Thru

145 
0 

145 
Left

35 
0 

35 
Peds

0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
89 184 273 
0 0 0 

89 273 184 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight 12 0 

12 
Thru

376 
21 

397 
Left 72 0 

72 
P

eds 1 1 2 

O
ut

Total
In

461 
461 

922 
22 

22 
44 

483 
966 

483 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
7 
0 
7 

Thru
73 
0 

73 

Right
126 

3 
129 

Peds
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

221 206 427 
0 3 3 

221 430 209 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft4 0 4 

Th
ru30

0 19
 

31
9 

R
ig

ht4 0 4 
P

ed
s1 0 1 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

38
7 

30
9 

69
6 

21
 

19
 

40
 

40
8 

73
6 

32
8 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:45 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





File Name : Simpsonville(06 - Curtis Street and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Hedge Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 23 12 0 0 35 10 65 3 0 78 0 23 44 0 67 2 113 2 0 117 297
04:15 PM 41 16 0 0 57 15 70 2 0 87 2 15 34 0 51 4 122 5 0 131 326
04:30 PM 16 12 2 0 30 14 70 1 0 85 3 10 50 1 64 1 134 2 0 137 316
04:45 PM 22 16 3 0 41 11 55 1 0 67 2 16 45 0 63 4 104 4 0 112 283

Total 102 56 5 0 163 50 260 7 0 317 7 64 173 1 245 11 473 13 0 497 1222

05:00 PM 26 12 1 0 39 21 75 1 0 97 1 13 47 0 61 2 127 4 4 137 334
05:15 PM 32 21 1 2 56 14 66 5 0 85 2 22 60 1 85 4 145 1 2 152 378
05:30 PM 29 13 1 0 43 21 64 1 0 86 0 23 52 0 75 3 143 6 0 152 356
05:45 PM 20 21 3 0 44 19 70 4 0 93 2 20 50 0 72 7 127 0 2 136 345

Total 107 67 6 2 182 75 275 11 0 361 5 78 209 1 293 16 542 11 8 577 1413

Grand Total 209 123 11 2 345 125 535 18 0 678 12 142 382 2 538 27 1015 24 8 1074 2635
Apprch % 60.6 35.7 3.2 0.6  18.4 78.9 2.7 0  2.2 26.4 71 0.4  2.5 94.5 2.2 0.7   

Total % 7.9 4.7 0.4 0.1 13.1 4.7 20.3 0.7 0 25.7 0.5 5.4 14.5 0.1 20.4 1 38.5 0.9 0.3 40.8
Cars + 209 123 11 2 345 125 521 18 0 664 12 142 379 0 533 27 999 24 8 1058 2600

% Cars + 100 100 100 100 100 100 97.4 100 0 97.9 100 100 99.2 0 99.1 100 98.4 100 100 98.5 98.7
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 14 0 0 3 2 5 0 16 0 0 16 35

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.6 0 0 2.1 0 0 0.8 100 0.9 0 1.6 0 0 1.5 1.3



File Name : Simpsonville(06 - Curtis Street and Hedge Street)
Site Code : 
Start Date : 9/24/2025
Page No : 2

Hedge Street
Southbound

Curtis Street
Westbound

Hedge Street
Northbound

Curtis Street
Eastbound

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 05:00 PM

05:00 PM 26 12 1 0 39 21 75 1 0 97 1 13 47 0 61 2 127 4 4 137 334
05:15 PM 32 21 1 2 56 14 66 5 0 85 2 22 60 1 85 4 145 1 2 152 378
05:30 PM 29 13 1 0 43 21 64 1 0 86 0 23 52 0 75 3 143 6 0 152 356
05:45 PM 20 21 3 0 44 19 70 4 0 93 2 20 50 0 72 7 127 0 2 136 345

Total Volume 107 67 6 2 182 75 275 11 0 361 5 78 209 1 293 16 542 11 8 577 1413
% App. Total 58.8 36.8 3.3 1.1  20.8 76.2 3 0  1.7 26.6 71.3 0.3  2.8 93.9 1.9 1.4   

PHF .836 .798 .500 .250 .813 .893 .917 .550 .000 .930 .625 .848 .871 .250 .862 .571 .934 .458 .500 .949 .935
Cars + 107 67 6 2 182 75 266 11 0 352 5 78 208 0 291 16 535 11 8 570 1395

% Cars + 100 100 100 100 100 100 96.7 100 0 97.5 100 100 99.5 0 99.3 100 98.7 100 100 98.8 98.7
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 1 1 2 0 7 0 0 7 18

% Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 3.3 0 0 2.5 0 0 0.5 100 0.7 0 1.3 0 0 1.2 1.3

   Hedge Street   

 C
ur

tis
 S

tre
et

  C
urtis S

treet 

   Hedge Street   

Right

6 
0 
6 

Thru

67 
0 

67 
Left

107 
0 

107 
Peds

2 
0 
2 

InOut Total
105 182 287 

0 0 0 
105 287 182 

Out0 0 0 In
0 0 0 Total0 0 0 

R
ight 11 0 

11 
Thru

266 9 
275 

Left 75 0 
75 

P
eds 0 0 0 

O
ut

Total
In

850 
352 

1202 
8 

9 
17 

858 
1219 

361 

O ut

0 
0 

0 
In

0 
0 

0 
T ota

l

0 
0 

0 Left
5 
0 
5 

Thru
78 
0 

78 

Right
208 

1 
209 

Peds
0 
1 
1 

Out TotalIn

153 291 444 
0 2 2 

153 446 293 

Out

0 0 0 

In

0 0 0 

Total

0 0 0 

Le
ft16

 0 16
 

Th
ru53

5 7 
54

2 
R

ig
ht11

 0 11
 

P
ed

s8 0 8 

To
ta

l
O

ut
In

27
7 

57
0 

84
7 

9 
7 

16
 

28
6 

86
3 

57
7 

O ut
0 

0 
0 

In 0 
0 

0 

T ota
l
0 

0 
0 

Peak Hour Begins at 05:00 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North





 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 
TURN LANE ANALYSIS 

 



��������	
� ��
�����
����� �������������������������������������������������� ��!"� #$%�&'(�)*��&����+%���%,�%�%�����$%�,%��%����&�)%&������������$%�'-+'����.�+�)�(%�/012"�#$%�-%��.�%���$��)-�)��'�%��$%����+%�&����$%�'���')�,%��%��'.%��&�)%&�������"��3$%���$����������'��%+%������%(%����&�45��$%�-%��.�%���$��)-�%���('�%�6$%�%��$%����+%�)�%�"�7"� 8%'-�01�'�-�09�������$%��$'���'�-�)��'�%��$%����%��%�������&��$%��6��+�)�(%�"�:"� ;��%��$%�)��'������&��$%�,��������<7��%)'��+%�����$%�)��%����<!"���&��$%�,������������$%���.$���&��$%�)��%5��$%��'�)%&�=�����)'�%����6'��'��%-"���&��$%�,������������$%�)%&���&��$%�)��%5��$%��'�)%&�=�����)'�%��������6'��'��%-�>'�%-������'&&���+�)�(%�"����� ?@ABCD�EBFGDAFHDI�J@K�ADJLMLBKH�ANHDI�NL�BHIFEHNAFODG�FHLDKIDPLF@HI�@H�LQ@MANHD�RFERQNSI�TUV�WXYZ�J[\]̂_�̀abME�

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Text Box
AM
Vo = 221
Va = 54
% LT = (22/54) = 41%

PM
Vo = 150
Va = 103
% LT = (57/103) = 55% 

Impact3
Text Box
Hedge Street & Access A

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval



��������	
� ��
�����
����� �������������������������������������������������� ��!"� #$%�&'(�)*��&����+%���%,�%�%�����$%�,%��%����&�)%&������������$%�'-+'����.�+�)�(%�/012"�#$%�-%��.�%���$��)-�)��'�%��$%����+%�&����$%�'���')�,%��%��'.%��&�)%&�������"��3$%���$����������'��%+%������%(%����&�45��$%�-%��.�%���$��)-�%���('�%�6$%�%��$%����+%�)�%�"�7"� 8%'-�01�'�-�09�������$%��$'���'�-�)��'�%��$%����%��%�������&��$%��6��+�)�(%�"�:"� ;��%��$%�)��'������&��$%�,��������<7��%)'��+%�����$%�)��%����<!"���&��$%�,������������$%���.$���&��$%�)��%5��$%��'�)%&�=�����)'�%����6'��'��%-"���&��$%�,������������$%�)%&���&��$%�)��%5��$%��'�)%&�=�����)'�%��������6'��'��%-�>'�%-������'&&���+�)�(%�"����� ?@ABCD�EBFGDAFHDI�J@K�ADJLMLBKH�ANHDI�NL�BHIFEHNAFODG�FHLDKIDPLF@HI�@H�LQ@MANHD�RFERQNSI�TUV�WXYZ�J[\]̂_�̀abME�

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Text Box
AM
Vo = 0
Va = 924
% LT = (3/924) = 0.3%

PM
Vo = 0
Va = 614
% LT = (8/614) = 1.3% 

Impact3
Text Box
Colllege Street & Access B

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval



������ ��	
��

	����� ���������������������������������������������������� �!"#$�!����"�%�$� &�$'��%�(�)�!�*+�,�)�$�'�����-��!����"�./0�1�2++�"&%�!������� ����-�&$�3�4+5�"&�"%6-$�,�&��$��-)%�(��-$�%7��8����"%�����9����:")�";�$��<�����:�"��5�$-(��":��=+�<��,�����":�-")�&-,(����<��� ����-�&$7���>?@ABCD�EFGHIJ� KHLFMI��NHHO�� P� Q��RFSHL�NH���TU��� KVW�� � P� ����GH�F�SHL�NH���TU��� �FM�X�	U�IL� � P� ����GH�F�SHL�NH���TU���Y�TZSHRJ�� KHXH�RFIH�F[����FM�X�XU�I�S�IH�FL�IH�HLL��\���TSUXFTIJ� 	T��H�O�X�H�GH�XF��S��]FL̂�ULH�����_����P�̀��GH�F�SHL�NH���TU����	�H�[FMU�H�FIOF��XHL�X��X����FM�X�XU�I�S�IH�FL�ITX�IH�HLL��\̂�UISHLL�TX�H��[��XT�L�aH�M�̂��FM�����L����XHb�FIOF��XH���S�IH�FL�IHHOHO��� cdef>geh>i�jkl�lecmnondlh�gph>i�pn�dhiechpgeq>f�ehn>li>rnekhi�kh�nskogph>�mecmspti�juvwxD�yz{op�� �

Impact3
Text Box
Hedge Street & Access A

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Text Box
AM
DHV = 221
RT = 4

PM
DHV = 150
RT = 12

Impact3
Oval

Impact3
Oval



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

 
SYNCHRO ANALYSIS REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 36 125 12 64 200 196 6 552 16 61 515 19
Future Volume (vph) 36 125 12 64 200 196 6 552 16 61 515 19
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 125 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.991 0.942 0.996 0.995
Flt Protected 0.990 0.993 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1828 0 0 1742 0 1770 1855 0 1770 1853 0
Flt Permitted 0.791 0.929 0.347 0.169
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1460 0 0 1630 0 646 1855 0 315 1853 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 4 44 2 2
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 413 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 11.3 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 40 139 13 71 222 218 7 613 18 68 572 21
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 192 0 0 511 0 7 631 0 68 593 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 20 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 8 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 2 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 8 8 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 43.0 43.0 43.0 43.0 9.6 47.2 9.8 47.4
Total Split (%) 43.0% 43.0% 43.0% 43.0% 9.6% 47.2% 9.8% 47.4%
Maximum Green (s) 38.5 38.5 38.5 38.5 5.1 42.7 5.3 42.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lag Lag Lead Lead
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 33.9 33.9 48.7 48.7 55.2 55.2
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.34 0.34 0.49 0.49 0.55 0.55
v/c Ratio 0.39 0.88 0.02 0.70 0.26 0.58
Control Delay (s/veh) 26.0 45.5 14.0 18.4 15.7 19.7
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 26.0 45.5 14.0 18.5 15.7 19.7
LOS C D B B B B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 26.0 45.5 18.5 19.3
Approach LOS C D B B

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 77 (77%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 70
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 26.4 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 76.8% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 25 189 13 51 235 122 22 410 43 118 442 21
Future Volume (vph) 25 189 13 51 235 122 22 410 43 118 442 21
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 150 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.992 0.960 0.986 0.993
Flt Protected 0.994 0.994 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1837 0 0 1778 0 1770 1837 0 1770 1850 0
Flt Permitted 0.898 0.918 0.391 0.289
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1659 0 0 1642 0 728 1837 0 538 1850 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 3 25 6 3
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 28 210 14 57 261 136 24 456 48 131 491 23
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 252 0 0 454 0 24 504 0 131 514 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 20 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 8 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 2 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 8 8 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 9.6 45.0 13.0 48.4
Total Split (%) 42.0% 42.0% 42.0% 42.0% 9.6% 45.0% 13.0% 48.4%
Maximum Green (s) 37.5 37.5 37.5 37.5 5.1 40.5 8.5 43.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 31.0 31.0 53.0 47.3 59.6 55.9
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.31 0.31 0.53 0.47 0.60 0.56
v/c Ratio 0.49 0.86 0.05 0.58 0.31 0.50
Control Delay (s/veh) 30.0 29.0 10.7 24.0 5.5 7.0
Queue Delay 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1
Total Delay (s/veh) 30.0 29.5 10.7 24.1 5.5 7.1
LOS C C B C A A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 30.0 29.5 23.5 6.8
Approach LOS C C C A

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 80 (80%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 20.1 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 73.2% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 153 47 117 442 12 54
Future Volume (vph) 153 47 117 442 12 54
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.968 0.889
Flt Protected 0.990 0.991
Satd. Flow (prot) 1803 0 0 1844 1641 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.991
Satd. Flow (perm) 1803 0 0 1844 1641 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 413 1158 568
Travel Time (s) 11.3 31.6 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 170 52 130 491 13 60
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 222 0 0 621 73 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 54.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.1

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 153 47 117 442 12 54
Future Vol, veh/h 153 47 117 442 12 54
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 170 52 130 491 13 60

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 222 0 947 196
          Stage 1 - - - - 196 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 751 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1347 - 290 845
          Stage 1 - - - - 837 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 466 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1347 - 251 845
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 251 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 837 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 404 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0 1.7 12
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 591 - - 1347 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.124 - - 0.097 -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12 - - 8 0
HCM Lane LOS B - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.4 - - 0.3 -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 319 4 72 397 12 7 73 129 35 145 4
Future Volume (vph) 4 319 4 72 397 12 7 73 129 35 145 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.997 0.917 0.997
Flt Protected 0.999 0.993 0.998 0.991
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1859 0 0 1844 0 0 1705 0 0 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.996 0.890 0.998 0.991
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1853 0 0 1653 0 0 1705 0 0 1840 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 1 2 72 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 568
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 4 354 4 80 441 13 8 81 143 39 161 4
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 362 0 0 534 0 0 232 0 0 204 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 0 1 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left Left Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 0 20 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA Split NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2 6
Detector Phase 2 2 6 6 4 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 52.2 52.2 52.2 52.2 24.2 24.2 23.6 23.6
Total Split (%) 52.2% 52.2% 52.2% 52.2% 24.2% 24.2% 23.6% 23.6%
Maximum Green (s) 47.7 47.7 47.7 47.7 19.7 19.7 19.1 19.1
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max Max Max None None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 56.3 56.3 14.6 15.6
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.56 0.56 0.15 0.16
v/c Ratio 0.35 0.57 0.75 0.71
Control Delay (s/veh) 8.3 19.0 42.7 50.8
Queue Delay 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 8.8 19.1 42.7 50.8
LOS A B D D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 8.8 19.1 42.7 50.8
Approach LOS A B D D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 6 (6%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.75
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 25.3 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 78.4% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 165 1 4 212 9 0 0 7 1 0 21
Future Volume (vph) 5 165 1 4 212 9 0 0 7 1 0 21
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.995 0.865 0.871
Flt Protected 0.998 0.999 0.998
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1857 0 0 1852 0 0 1611 0 0 1619 0
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.999 0.998
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1857 0 0 1852 0 0 1611 0 0 1619 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 6 183 1 4 236 10 0 0 8 1 0 23
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 190 0 0 250 0 0 8 0 0 24 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 23.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 165 1 4 212 9 0 0 7 1 0 21
Future Vol, veh/h 5 165 1 4 212 9 0 0 7 1 0 21
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 6 183 1 4 236 10 0 0 8 1 0 23

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 246 0 0 184 0 0 457 450 184 449 445 241
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 196 196 - 249 249 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 261 254 - 200 196 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1320 - - 1391 - - 514 504 858 520 508 798
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 806 739 - 755 701 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 744 697 - 802 739 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1320 - - 1391 - - 496 500 858 512 504 798
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 496 500 - 512 504 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 802 735 - 751 699 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 720 695 - 791 735 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0.2 0.1 9.2 9.8
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 858 1320 - - 1391 - - 778
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.009 0.004 - - 0.003 - - 0.031
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 9.2 7.7 0 - 7.6 0 - 9.8
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 214 11 13 257 8 14 0 12 1 0 16
Future Volume (vph) 1 214 11 13 257 8 14 0 12 1 0 16
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.994 0.996 0.939 0.872
Flt Protected 0.998 0.973 0.997
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1852 0 0 1852 0 0 1702 0 0 1619 0
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.973 0.997
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1852 0 0 1852 0 0 1702 0 0 1619 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 238 12 14 286 9 16 0 13 1 0 18
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 251 0 0 309 0 0 29 0 0 19 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 37.0% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 214 11 13 257 8 14 0 12 1 0 16
Future Vol, veh/h 1 214 11 13 257 8 14 0 12 1 0 16
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 238 12 14 286 9 16 0 13 1 0 18

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 295 0 0 250 0 0 574 569 244 572 571 291
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 246 246 - 319 319 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 328 323 - 253 252 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1266 - - 1316 - - 430 432 795 431 431 748
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 758 703 - 693 653 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 685 650 - 751 698 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1266 - - 1316 - - 415 426 795 419 425 748
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 415 426 - 419 425 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 757 702 - 692 645 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 660 642 - 738 697 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0 0.4 12.2 10.2
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 532 1266 - - 1316 - - 715
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.054 0.001 - - 0.011 - - 0.026
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12.2 7.8 0 - 7.8 0 - 10.2
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 0 - - 0 - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 33 177 27 42 160 103 12 498 72 123 663 22
Future Volume (vph) 33 177 27 42 160 103 12 498 72 123 663 22
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 125 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.985 0.955 0.981 0.995
Flt Protected 0.993 0.993 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1822 0 0 1766 0 1770 1827 0 1770 1853 0
Flt Permitted 0.832 0.867 0.262 0.249
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1527 0 0 1542 0 488 1827 0 464 1853 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 6 26 10 2
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 413 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 11.3 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 37 197 30 47 178 114 13 553 80 137 737 24
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 264 0 0 339 0 13 633 0 137 761 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 20 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 8 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 2 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 8 8 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 33.0 33.0 33.0 33.0 9.6 53.8 13.2 57.4
Total Split (%) 33.0% 33.0% 33.0% 33.0% 9.6% 53.8% 13.2% 57.4%
Maximum Green (s) 28.5 28.5 28.5 28.5 5.1 49.3 8.7 52.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 23.8 23.8 60.2 54.8 67.0 65.3
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.24 0.24 0.60 0.55 0.67 0.65
v/c Ratio 0.72 0.88 0.04 0.63 0.33 0.63
Control Delay (s/veh) 45.0 56.8 4.3 9.7 8.9 15.1
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 45.0 56.8 4.3 9.9 8.9 15.1
LOS D E A A A B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 45.0 56.8 9.8 14.2
Approach LOS D E A B

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 72 (72%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 70
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 23.4 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 74.3% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 16 252 21 30 190 54 44 456 136 191 465 51
Future Volume (vph) 16 252 21 30 190 54 44 456 136 191 465 51
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 150 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.990 0.973 0.966 0.985
Flt Protected 0.997 0.995 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1839 0 0 1803 0 1770 1799 0 1770 1835 0
Flt Permitted 0.955 0.841 0.375 0.232
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1761 0 0 1524 0 699 1799 0 432 1835 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 4 12 21 9
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 18 280 23 33 211 60 49 507 151 212 517 57
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 321 0 0 304 0 49 658 0 212 574 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 20 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 8 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 2 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 8 8 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 9.6 53.0 17.0 60.4
Total Split (%) 30.0% 30.0% 30.0% 30.0% 9.6% 53.0% 17.0% 60.4%
Maximum Green (s) 25.5 25.5 25.5 25.5 5.1 48.5 12.5 55.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 22.0 22.0 60.3 54.7 68.4 60.9
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.22 0.22 0.60 0.55 0.68 0.61
v/c Ratio 0.82 0.88 0.10 0.66 0.50 0.51
Control Delay (s/veh) 54.0 46.7 6.9 21.1 12.0 9.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.3 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (s/veh) 54.0 46.8 6.9 21.4 12.1 10.0
LOS D D A C B B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 54.0 46.8 20.4 10.6
Approach LOS D D C B

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 66 (66%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 65
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 25.6 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 77.8% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 331 133 44 268 9 56
Future Volume (vph) 331 133 44 268 9 56
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.961 0.884
Flt Protected 0.993 0.993
Satd. Flow (prot) 1790 0 0 1850 1635 0
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.993
Satd. Flow (perm) 1790 0 0 1850 1635 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 413 1158 568
Travel Time (s) 11.3 31.6 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 368 148 49 298 10 62
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 516 0 0 347 72 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 56.0% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) PM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 331 133 44 268 9 56
Future Vol, veh/h 331 133 44 268 9 56
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 368 148 49 298 10 62

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 516 0 838 442
          Stage 1 - - - - 442 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 396 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1050 - 336 615
          Stage 1 - - - - 648 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 680 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1050 - 317 615
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 317 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 648 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 642 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0 1.2 12.6
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 544 - - 1050 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.133 - - 0.047 -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12.6 - - 8.6 0
HCM Lane LOS B - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.5 - - 0.1 -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 16 542 11 75 275 11 5 78 209 107 67 6
Future Volume (vph) 16 542 11 75 275 11 5 78 209 107 67 6
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.997 0.996 0.904 0.995
Flt Protected 0.999 0.990 0.999 0.971
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1855 0 0 1837 0 0 1682 0 0 1800 0
Flt Permitted 0.985 0.778 0.999 0.971
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1829 0 0 1443 0 0 1682 0 0 1800 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 1 2 114 2
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 568
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 18 602 12 83 306 12 6 87 232 119 74 7
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 632 0 0 401 0 0 325 0 0 200 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 0 1 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left Left Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 0 20 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 20 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA Perm NA Split NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2 6
Detector Phase 2 2 6 6 4 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 51.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 26.0 26.0 23.0 23.0
Total Split (%) 51.0% 51.0% 51.0% 51.0% 26.0% 26.0% 23.0% 23.0%
Maximum Green (s) 46.5 46.5 46.5 46.5 21.5 21.5 18.5 18.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max Max Max None None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 53.6 53.6 17.4 15.4
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.54 0.54 0.17 0.15
v/c Ratio 0.64 0.52 0.84 0.72
Control Delay (s/veh) 16.0 19.8 44.6 51.3
Queue Delay 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 17.2 19.8 44.6 51.3
LOS B B D D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 17.2 19.8 44.6 51.3
Approach LOS B B D D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 8 (8%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.84
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 27.9 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 91.4% ICU Level of Service F
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 3 217 2 15 175 4 4 0 6 14 0 28
Future Volume (vph) 3 217 2 15 175 4 4 0 6 14 0 28
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.997 0.914 0.911
Flt Protected 0.999 0.996 0.982 0.983
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1859 0 0 1850 0 0 1672 0 0 1668 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.996 0.982 0.983
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1859 0 0 1850 0 0 1672 0 0 1668 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 3 241 2 17 194 4 4 0 7 16 0 31
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 246 0 0 215 0 0 11 0 0 47 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 28.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) PM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.5

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 217 2 15 175 4 4 0 6 14 0 28
Future Vol, veh/h 3 217 2 15 175 4 4 0 6 14 0 28
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 241 2 17 194 4 4 0 7 16 0 31

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 198 0 0 243 0 0 494 480 242 482 479 196
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 248 248 - 230 230 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 246 232 - 252 249 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1375 - - 1323 - - 486 485 797 495 486 845
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 756 701 - 773 714 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 758 713 - 752 701 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1375 - - 1323 - - 462 477 797 485 478 845
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 462 477 - 485 478 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 754 699 - 771 704 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 720 703 - 743 699 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0.1 0.6 10.9 10.7
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 618 1375 - - 1323 - - 677
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.018 0.002 - - 0.013 - - 0.069
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 10.9 7.6 0 - 7.8 0 - 10.7
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0.2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Existing (2025) PM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 255 2 31 244 10 9 0 23 11 0 29
Future Volume (vph) 4 255 2 31 244 10 9 0 23 11 0 29
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.995 0.902 0.902
Flt Protected 0.999 0.995 0.986 0.987
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1859 0 0 1844 0 0 1657 0 0 1658 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.995 0.986 0.987
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1859 0 0 1844 0 0 1657 0 0 1658 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 4 283 2 34 271 11 10 0 26 12 0 32
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 289 0 0 316 0 0 36 0 0 44 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Existing (2025) PM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 255 2 31 244 10 9 0 23 11 0 29
Future Vol, veh/h 4 255 2 31 244 10 9 0 23 11 0 29
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 283 2 34 271 11 10 0 26 12 0 32

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 282 0 0 285 0 0 653 642 284 650 638 277
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 292 292 - 345 345 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 361 350 - 305 293 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1280 - - 1277 - - 380 392 755 382 394 762
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 716 671 - 671 636 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 657 633 - 705 670 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1280 - - 1277 - - 354 378 755 359 380 762
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 354 378 - 359 380 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 713 668 - 668 616 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 609 613 - 678 667 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 0.1 0.9 11.7 11.7
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 573 1280 - - 1277 - - 582
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.062 0.003 - - 0.027 - - 0.076
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 11.7 7.8 0 - 7.9 0 - 11.7
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 0 - - 0.1 - - 0.2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 122 462 337 30 495 0 0 611 42
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 122 462 337 30 495 0 0 611 42
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.945 0.991
Flt Protected 0.993 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3321 0 1770 1863 0 0 1846 0
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.188
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3321 0 350 1863 0 0 1846 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 123 5
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 413 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 11.3 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 136 513 374 33 550 0 0 679 47
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 1023 0 33 550 0 0 726 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 8 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 8 2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 8 8 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 38.0 38.0 9.6 62.0 52.4
Total Split (%) 38.0% 38.0% 9.6% 62.0% 52.4%
Maximum Green (s) 33.5 33.5 5.1 57.5 47.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lag Lead
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 32.5 58.5 58.5 52.8
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.33 0.59 0.59 0.53
v/c Ratio 0.88 0.12 0.50 0.74
Control Delay (s/veh) 38.0 3.0 4.0 25.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 38.0 3.0 4.1 25.8
LOS D A A C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 38.0 4.0 25.8
Approach LOS D A C

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 14 (14%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 25.7 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 77.2% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 65 333 27 0 0 0 0 441 63 190 533 0
Future Volume (vph) 65 333 27 0 0 0 0 441 63 190 533 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 225 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.990 0.983
Flt Protected 0.992 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3476 0 0 0 0 0 1831 0 1770 1863 0
Flt Permitted 0.992 0.329
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3476 0 0 0 0 0 1831 0 613 1863 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 6 10
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 72 370 30 0 0 0 0 490 70 211 592 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 472 0 0 0 0 0 560 0 211 592 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 27.0 27.0 55.0 18.0 73.0
Total Split (%) 27.0% 27.0% 55.0% 18.0% 73.0%
Maximum Green (s) 22.5 22.5 50.5 13.5 68.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 18.8 54.2 72.2 72.2
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.19 0.54 0.72 0.72
v/c Ratio 0.72 0.56 0.35 0.44
Control Delay (s/veh) 43.9 18.2 2.6 2.2
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
Total Delay (s/veh) 43.9 18.2 2.6 2.5
LOS D B A A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 43.9 18.2 2.5
Approach LOS D B A

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 9 (9%), Referenced to phase 2:NBT and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.72
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 18.0 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 77.2% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 213 890 24 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 213 890 24 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 413 1158 568
Travel Time (s) 11.3 31.6 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 237 989 27 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 1226 27 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 40.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 213 890 24 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 213 890 24 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 237 989 27 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 969 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 969 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 251 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 329 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 251 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 251 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 329 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 21
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 251 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.106 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 21 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.4 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 501 54 0 0 0 0 28 194 37 180 0
Future Volume (vph) 4 501 54 0 0 0 0 28 194 37 180 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.986 0.882
Flt Protected 0.992
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3490 0 0 0 0 0 1643 0 0 1848 0
Flt Permitted 0.992
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3490 0 0 0 0 0 1643 0 0 1848 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 12 216
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 568
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 4 557 60 0 0 0 0 31 216 41 200 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 621 0 0 0 0 0 247 0 0 241 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 2 2 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 38.0 38.0 29.0 33.0 33.0
Total Split (%) 38.0% 38.0% 29.0% 33.0% 33.0%
Maximum Green (s) 33.5 33.5 24.5 28.5 28.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 58.5 9.7 18.3
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.59 0.10 0.18
v/c Ratio 0.30 0.70 0.71
Control Delay (s/veh) 6.7 19.6 49.8
Queue Delay 0.2 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 6.9 19.6 49.8
LOS A B D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 6.9 19.6 49.8
Approach LOS A B D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 76 (76%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 70
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.71
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 19.0 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 27 498 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 27 498 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.997 0.870
Flt Protected 0.997 0.959
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3518 0 0 1786 0 0 1621 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.959
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3518 0 0 1786 0 0 1621 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 30 553 11 36 6 0 0 1 24
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 594 0 0 42 0 0 25 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 27 498 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 27 498 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 30 553 11 36 6 0 0 1 24

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 337 624 - - 619 282
          Stage 1 - - - 0 0 - - 619 -
          Stage 2 - - - 337 624 - - 0 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 7.54 6.54 - - 6.54 6.94
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - 5.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.54 5.54 - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - 3.52 4.02 - - 4.02 3.32
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 593 400 0 0 403 715
          Stage 1 - - - - - 0 0 478 -
          Stage 2 - - - 651 476 0 0 - -
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 572 400 - - 403 715
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - 572 400 - - 403 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - 478 -
          Stage 2 - - - 627 476 - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 12.2 10.4
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 541 - - - 692
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.076 - - - 0.037
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12.2 - - - 10.4
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 6 402 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Future Volume (vph) 6 402 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.996 0.901
Flt Protected 0.999 0.994
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3522 0 0 0 0 0 1678 0 0 1852 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.994
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3522 0 0 0 0 0 1678 0 0 1852 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 7 447 14 0 0 0 0 8 22 2 14 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 468 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 16 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 21.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 6 402 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Future Vol, veh/h 6 402 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 7 447 14 0 0 0 0 8 22 2 14 0

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 - 468 231 242 475 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 468 - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 0 - 242 475 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.54 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.54 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - - 4.02 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 0 491 771 692 487 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0 560 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - - 0 - - 740 556 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - 491 771 664 487 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 491 - 664 487 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 560 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 709 556 -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 10.6 12.4
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 672 - - - 505
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.045 - - - 0.033
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 10.6 - - - 12.4
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.1 - - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 76 371 167 59 506 0 0 834 77
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 76 371 167 59 506 0 0 834 77
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.959 0.989
Flt Protected 0.994 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3374 0 1770 1863 0 0 1842 0
Flt Permitted 0.994 0.083
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3374 0 155 1863 0 0 1842 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 50 8
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 413 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 11.3 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 84 412 186 66 562 0 0 927 86
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 682 0 66 562 0 0 1013 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 8 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 8 2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 8 8 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 27.0 27.0 10.0 73.0 63.0
Total Split (%) 27.0% 27.0% 10.0% 73.0% 63.0%
Maximum Green (s) 22.5 22.5 5.5 68.5 58.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lag Lead
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 21.9 69.1 69.1 61.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.22 0.69 0.69 0.61
v/c Ratio 0.88 0.34 0.44 0.90
Control Delay (s/veh) 48.6 7.7 2.0 30.5
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 48.6 7.7 2.4 30.5
LOS D A A C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 48.6 3.0 30.5
Approach LOS D A C

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 38 (38%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.90
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 28.4 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 82.8% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 52 455 51 0 0 0 0 454 221 333 551 0
Future Volume (vph) 52 455 51 0 0 0 0 454 221 333 551 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 225 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.986 0.956
Flt Protected 0.995 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3472 0 0 0 0 0 1781 0 1770 1863 0
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.144
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3472 0 0 0 0 0 1781 0 268 1863 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 10 33
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 58 506 57 0 0 0 0 504 246 370 612 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 621 0 0 0 0 0 750 0 370 612 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 52.0 23.0 75.0
Total Split (%) 25.0% 25.0% 52.0% 23.0% 75.0%
Maximum Green (s) 20.5 20.5 47.5 18.5 70.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 20.0 48.0 71.0 71.0
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.20 0.48 0.71 0.71
v/c Ratio 0.88 0.86 0.79 0.46
Control Delay (s/veh) 54.0 34.1 20.2 1.5
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.4
Total Delay (s/veh) 54.0 34.1 21.0 1.9
LOS D C C A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 54.0 34.1 9.1
Approach LOS D C A

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 39 (39%), Referenced to phase 2:NBT and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 28.9 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 82.8% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 138 576 21 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 138 576 21 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 413 1158 568
Travel Time (s) 11.3 31.6 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 153 640 23 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 793 23 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 29.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) PM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 138 576 21 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 138 576 21 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 153 640 23 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 626 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 626 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 416 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 495 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 416 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 416 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 495 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 14.2
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 416 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.056 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 14.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 17 926 153 0 0 0 0 29 281 114 10 0
Future Volume (vph) 17 926 153 0 0 0 0 29 281 114 10 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.979 0.878
Flt Protected 0.999 0.956
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3461 0 0 0 0 0 1635 0 0 1781 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.956
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3461 0 0 0 0 0 1635 0 0 1781 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 23 165
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 568
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 15.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 19 1029 170 0 0 0 0 32 312 127 11 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 1218 0 0 0 0 0 344 0 0 138 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 2 2 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 49.2 49.2 28.0 22.8 22.8
Total Split (%) 49.2% 49.2% 28.0% 22.8% 22.8%
Maximum Green (s) 44.7 44.7 23.5 18.3 18.3
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 56.8 16.7 13.0
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.57 0.17 0.13
v/c Ratio 0.62 0.84 0.60
Control Delay (s/veh) 9.8 38.3 51.2
Queue Delay 0.5 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 10.2 38.3 51.2
LOS B D D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 10.2 38.3 51.2
Approach LOS B D D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.84
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 19.2 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 67.9% ICU Level of Service C
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 59 445 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 59 445 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.911
Flt Protected 0.994 0.955
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3514 0 0 1779 0 0 1697 0
Flt Permitted 0.994 0.955
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3514 0 0 1779 0 0 1697 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 66 494 4 50 3 0 0 17 33
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 564 0 0 53 0 0 50 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) PM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 59 445 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 59 445 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 66 494 4 50 3 0 0 17 33

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 388 630 - - 628 249
          Stage 1 - - - 0 0 - - 628 -
          Stage 2 - - - 388 630 - - 0 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 7.54 6.54 - - 6.54 6.94
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - 5.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.54 5.54 - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - 3.52 4.02 - - 4.02 3.32
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 545 397 0 0 398 751
          Stage 1 - - - - - 0 0 474 -
          Stage 2 - - - 607 473 0 0 - -
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 504 397 - - 398 751
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - 504 397 - - 398 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - 474 -
          Stage 2 - - - 560 473 - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 13.1 11.8
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 496 - - - 580
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.108 - - - 0.086
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 13.1 - - - 11.8
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.4 - - - 0.3



Lanes, Volumes, Timings No-Build (2028) PM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 7 501 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Future Volume (vph) 7 501 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.876
Flt Protected 0.999 0.977
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3532 0 0 0 0 0 1632 0 0 1820 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.977
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3532 0 0 0 0 0 1632 0 0 1820 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 8 557 4 0 0 0 0 3 34 30 34 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 569 0 0 0 0 0 37 0 0 64 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC No-Build (2028) PM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 7 501 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Future Vol, veh/h 7 501 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 8 557 4 0 0 0 0 3 34 30 34 0

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 - 575 281 296 577 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 575 - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 0 - 296 577 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.54 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.54 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - - 4.02 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 0 427 716 634 426 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0 501 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - - 0 - - 688 500 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - 427 716 600 426 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 427 - 600 426 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 501 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 651 500 -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 10.6 13.4
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 676 - - - 492
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.056 - - - 0.131
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 10.6 - - - 13.4
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - - - 0.4



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 129 472 352 30 495 0 0 620 42
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 129 472 352 30 495 0 0 620 42
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.945 0.991
Flt Protected 0.993 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3321 0 1770 1863 0 0 1846 0
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.179
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3321 0 333 1863 0 0 1846 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 128 5
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 314 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 8.6 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 143 524 391 33 550 0 0 689 47
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 1058 0 33 550 0 0 736 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 8 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 8 2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 8 8 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 38.0 38.0 9.6 62.0 52.4
Total Split (%) 38.0% 38.0% 9.6% 62.0% 52.4%
Maximum Green (s) 33.5 33.5 5.1 57.5 47.9
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lag Lead
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 32.7 58.3 58.3 52.5
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.33 0.58 0.58 0.53
v/c Ratio 0.90 0.12 0.51 0.76
Control Delay (s/veh) 39.8 3.1 4.0 26.5
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 39.8 3.1 4.2 26.5
LOS D A A C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 39.8 4.1 26.5
Approach LOS D A C

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 14 (14%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.90
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 26.9 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 78.7% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 65 339 27 0 0 0 0 441 67 199 540 0
Future Volume (vph) 65 339 27 0 0 0 0 441 67 199 540 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 225 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.991 0.982
Flt Protected 0.993 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3483 0 0 0 0 0 1829 0 1770 1863 0
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.326
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3483 0 0 0 0 0 1829 0 607 1863 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 6 11
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 72 377 30 0 0 0 0 490 74 221 600 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 479 0 0 0 0 0 564 0 221 600 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 27.0 27.0 55.0 18.0 73.0
Total Split (%) 27.0% 27.0% 55.0% 18.0% 73.0%
Maximum Green (s) 22.5 22.5 50.5 13.5 68.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 18.9 54.1 72.1 72.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.19 0.54 0.72 0.72
v/c Ratio 0.72 0.57 0.37 0.45
Control Delay (s/veh) 44.0 18.4 2.7 2.2
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
Total Delay (s/veh) 44.0 18.4 2.7 2.5
LOS D B A A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 44.0 18.4 2.6
Approach LOS D B A

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 9 (9%), Referenced to phase 2:NBT and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.72
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 18.0 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 78.7% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 217 893 31 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 217 893 31 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 99 1158 256
Travel Time (s) 2.7 31.6 7.0
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 241 992 34 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 1233 34 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.0% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 217 893 31 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 217 893 31 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 241 992 34 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 978 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 978 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 248 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 325 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 248 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 248 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 325 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 21.8
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 248 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.139 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 21.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.5 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 23 501 54 0 0 0 0 31 194 49 185 0
Future Volume (vph) 23 501 54 0 0 0 0 31 194 49 185 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.986 0.883
Flt Protected 0.998 0.990
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3483 0 0 0 0 0 1645 0 0 1844 0
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.990
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3483 0 0 0 0 0 1645 0 0 1844 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 12 216
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 312
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 8.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 26 557 60 0 0 0 0 34 216 54 206 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 643 0 0 0 0 0 250 0 0 260 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 2 2 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 38.0 38.0 29.0 33.0 33.0
Total Split (%) 38.0% 38.0% 29.0% 33.0% 33.0%
Maximum Green (s) 33.5 33.5 24.5 28.5 28.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 57.3 9.8 19.3
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.57 0.10 0.19
v/c Ratio 0.32 0.70 0.73
Control Delay (s/veh) 7.4 19.9 49.5
Queue Delay 0.2 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 7.6 19.9 49.5
LOS A B D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 7.6 19.9 49.5
Approach LOS A B D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 76 (76%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 70
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.73
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 19.7 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 53.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 27 508 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 27 508 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.997 0.870
Flt Protected 0.998 0.959
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3522 0 0 1786 0 0 1621 0
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.959
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3522 0 0 1786 0 0 1621 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 30 564 11 36 6 0 0 1 24
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 605 0 0 42 0 0 25 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 27 508 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 27 508 10 32 5 0 0 1 22
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 30 564 11 36 6 0 0 1 24

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 343 635 - - 630 288
          Stage 1 - - - 0 0 - - 630 -
          Stage 2 - - - 343 635 - - 0 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 7.54 6.54 - - 6.54 6.94
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - 5.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.54 5.54 - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - 3.52 4.02 - - 4.02 3.32
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 587 394 0 0 397 709
          Stage 1 - - - - - 0 0 473 -
          Stage 2 - - - 646 471 0 0 - -
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 565 394 - - 397 709
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - 565 394 - - 397 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - 473 -
          Stage 2 - - - 622 471 - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 12.3 10.5
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 534 - - - 686
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.077 - - - 0.037
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12.3 - - - 10.5
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 6 408 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Future Volume (vph) 6 408 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.996 0.901
Flt Protected 0.999 0.994
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3522 0 0 0 0 0 1678 0 0 1852 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.994
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3522 0 0 0 0 0 1678 0 0 1852 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 7 453 14 0 0 0 0 8 22 2 14 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 474 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 16 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 21.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 6 408 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Future Vol, veh/h 6 408 13 0 0 0 0 7 20 2 13 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 7 453 14 0 0 0 0 8 22 2 14 0

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 - 474 234 245 481 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 474 - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 0 - 245 481 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.54 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.54 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - - 4.02 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 0 488 768 688 483 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0 556 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - - 0 - - 737 552 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - 488 768 660 483 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 488 - 660 483 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 556 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 706 552 -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 10.6 12.4
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 669 - - - 501
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.045 - - - 0.033
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 10.6 - - - 12.4
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.1 - - - 0.1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
11: Hedge Street & Access A Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 13

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 7 17 22 32 217 4
Future Volume (vph) 7 17 22 32 217 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.905 0.998
Flt Protected 0.985 0.980
Satd. Flow (prot) 1660 0 0 1825 1859 0
Flt Permitted 0.985 0.980
Satd. Flow (perm) 1660 0 0 1825 1859 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1169 312 256
Travel Time (s) 31.9 8.5 7.0
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 8 19 24 36 241 4
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 27 0 0 60 245 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 28.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
11: Hedge Street & Access A Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 14

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 7 17 22 32 217 4
Future Vol, veh/h 7 17 22 32 217 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 8 19 24 36 241 4

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 327 243 245 0 - 0
          Stage 1 243 - - - - -
          Stage 2 84 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 667 796 1321 - - -
          Stage 1 797 - - - - -
          Stage 2 939 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 654 796 1321 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 654 - - - - -
          Stage 1 782 - - - - -
          Stage 2 939 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 10 3.2 0
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1321 - 749 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.019 - 0.036 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 7.8 0 10 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.1 - 0.1 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
18: Access B & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 15

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 3 921 25 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 3 921 25 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3539 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3539 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 30
Link Distance (ft) 314 99 1024
Travel Time (s) 8.6 2.7 23.3
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 3 1023 28 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 1026 28 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 35.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
18: Access B & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 16

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 3 921 25 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 3 921 25 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 3 1023 28 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 518 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 518 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 487 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 563 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 487 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 487 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 563 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 12.8
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 487 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.057 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 12.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 85 383 186 59 506 0 0 857 77
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 85 383 186 59 506 0 0 857 77
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 125 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.957 0.989
Flt Protected 0.994 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3367 0 1770 1863 0 0 1842 0
Flt Permitted 0.994 0.063
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3367 0 117 1863 0 0 1842 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 55 8
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 82 313 570 1253
Travel Time (s) 2.2 8.5 11.1 24.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 94 426 207 66 562 0 0 952 86
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 727 0 66 562 0 0 1038 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 2 2
Detector Template Left Thru Left Thru Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 20 100 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 20 6 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 8 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 8 2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 8 8 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 5.0 12.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 27.0 27.0 10.0 73.0 63.0
Total Split (%) 27.0% 27.0% 10.0% 73.0% 63.0%
Maximum Green (s) 22.5 22.5 5.5 68.5 58.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lag Lead
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 22.3 68.7 68.7 60.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.22 0.69 0.69 0.61
v/c Ratio 0.92 0.39 0.44 0.93
Control Delay (s/veh) 52.9 13.1 2.0 34.0
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 52.9 13.1 2.5 34.0
LOS D B A C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 52.9 3.6 34.0
Approach LOS D A C

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 38 (38%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.93
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 31.8 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 85.2% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 52 470 51 0 0 0 0 454 233 356 560 0
Future Volume (vph) 52 470 51 0 0 0 0 454 233 356 560 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 150 0 225 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 100 100 100 100
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.987 0.954
Flt Protected 0.995 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3476 0 0 0 0 0 1777 0 1770 1863 0
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.131
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3476 0 0 0 0 0 1777 0 244 1863 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 9 35
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 85 379 1084 570
Travel Time (s) 2.3 10.3 21.1 11.1
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 58 522 57 0 0 0 0 504 259 396 622 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 637 0 0 0 0 0 763 0 396 622 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 2 1 2
Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thru
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 100 20 100
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 6 20 6
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94 94 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6 6 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+pt NA
Protected Phases 4 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 6



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 4

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Detector Phase 4 4 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 12.0 5.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 9.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 52.0 23.0 75.0
Total Split (%) 25.0% 25.0% 52.0% 23.0% 75.0%
Maximum Green (s) 20.5 20.5 47.5 18.5 70.5
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode None None C-Max None C-Max
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 20.3 47.7 70.7 70.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.20 0.48 0.71 0.71
v/c Ratio 0.89 0.88 0.87 0.47
Control Delay (s/veh) 54.9 36.3 26.1 1.5
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 4.2 0.5
Total Delay (s/veh) 54.9 36.3 30.3 1.9
LOS D D C A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 54.9 36.3 13.0
Approach LOS D D B

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 39 (39%), Referenced to phase 2:NBT and 6:SBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.89
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 31.4 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 85.2% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 5

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 150 584 30 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 150 584 30 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3504 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 100 1158 256
Travel Time (s) 2.7 31.6 7.0
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 167 649 33 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 816 33 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
3: Hedge Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 150 584 30 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 150 584 30 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 167 649 33 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 659 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 659 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 397 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 476 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 397 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 397 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 476 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 14.9
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 397 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.084 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 14.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.3 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 7

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 67 926 153 0 0 0 0 36 281 130 16 0
Future Volume (vph) 67 926 153 0 0 0 0 36 281 130 16 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.980 0.880
Flt Protected 0.997 0.957
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3458 0 0 0 0 0 1639 0 0 1783 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.957
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3458 0 0 0 0 0 1639 0 0 1783 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 22 150
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 379 1213 1024 312
Travel Time (s) 10.3 33.1 27.9 8.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 74 1029 170 0 0 0 0 40 312 144 18 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 1273 0 0 0 0 0 352 0 0 162 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 2 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Left
Leading Detector (ft) 20 100 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 6 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 2 Position(ft) 94
Detector 2 Size(ft) 6
Detector 2 Type Cl+Ex
Detector 2 Channel
Detector 2 Extend (s) 0.0
Turn Type Perm NA NA Split NA
Protected Phases 2 4 8 8
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 2 2 4 8 8
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 8

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Minimum Split (s) 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5
Total Split (s) 49.2 49.2 28.0 22.8 22.8
Total Split (%) 49.2% 49.2% 28.0% 22.8% 22.8%
Maximum Green (s) 44.7 44.7 23.5 18.3 18.3
Yellow Time (s) 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.5 4.5 4.5
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Recall Mode C-Max C-Max None None None
Walk Time (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Flash Don't Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0
Act Effct Green (s) 54.7 17.8 14.0
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.55 0.18 0.14
v/c Ratio 0.67 0.85 0.65
Control Delay (s/veh) 10.6 41.1 52.4
Queue Delay 0.7 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 11.2 41.1 52.4
LOS B D D
Approach Delay (s/veh) 11.2 41.1 52.4
Approach LOS B D D

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.85
Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 20.8 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 71.0% ICU Level of Service C
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 0 59 457 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 0 59 457 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.911
Flt Protected 0.994 0.955
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 0 3514 0 0 1779 0 0 1697 0
Flt Permitted 0.994 0.955
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 0 3514 0 0 1779 0 0 1697 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1082 82 565 1260
Travel Time (s) 29.5 2.2 15.4 34.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 0 66 508 4 50 3 0 0 17 33
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 0 578 0 0 53 0 0 50 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
5: Main Street & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 59 457 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 59 457 4 45 3 0 0 15 30
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 66 508 4 50 3 0 0 17 33

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 395 644 - - 642 256
          Stage 1 - - - 0 0 - - 642 -
          Stage 2 - - - 395 644 - - 0 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 7.54 6.54 - - 6.54 6.94
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - 5.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.54 5.54 - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - 3.52 4.02 - - 4.02 3.32
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 539 390 0 0 391 743
          Stage 1 - - - - - 0 0 467 -
          Stage 2 - - - 602 466 0 0 - -
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 498 390 - - 391 743
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - 498 390 - - 391 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - 467 -
          Stage 2 - - - 554 466 - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 13.2 11.9
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 490 - - - 572
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.109 - - - 0.087
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 13.2 - - - 11.9
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.4 - - - 0.3



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 7 516 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Future Volume (vph) 7 516 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.876
Flt Protected 0.999 0.977
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 3532 0 0 0 0 0 1632 0 0 1820 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.977
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 3532 0 0 0 0 0 1632 0 0 1820 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1197 85 1027 565
Travel Time (s) 32.6 2.3 28.0 15.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 8 573 4 0 0 0 0 3 34 30 34 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 585 0 0 0 0 0 37 0 0 64 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 31.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
6: Main Street & Curtis Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 7 516 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Future Vol, veh/h 7 516 4 0 0 0 0 3 31 27 31 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 8 573 4 0 0 0 0 3 34 30 34 0

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 0 - 591 289 304 593 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 591 - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 0 - 304 593 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.54 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.54 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - - 4.02 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - - 0 418 708 625 417 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0 493 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - - 0 - - 681 492 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - 418 708 591 417 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 418 - 591 417 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 493 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 643 492 -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 10.7 13.6
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 667 - - - 483
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.057 - - - 0.133
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 10.7 - - - 13.6
HCM Lane LOS B - - - B
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - - - 0.5



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
11: Hedge Street & Access A Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 13

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 9 22 57 46 138 12
Future Volume (vph) 9 22 57 46 138 12
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.905 0.989
Flt Protected 0.986 0.973
Satd. Flow (prot) 1662 0 0 1812 1842 0
Flt Permitted 0.986 0.973
Satd. Flow (perm) 1662 0 0 1812 1842 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 1169 312 256
Travel Time (s) 31.9 8.5 7.0
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 10 24 63 51 153 13
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 34 0 0 114 166 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 26.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
11: Hedge Street & Access A Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 14

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.6

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 22 57 46 138 12
Future Vol, veh/h 9 22 57 46 138 12
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 10 24 63 51 153 13

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 337 160 166 0 - 0
          Stage 1 160 - - - - -
          Stage 2 177 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 658 885 1412 - - -
          Stage 1 869 - - - - -
          Stage 2 854 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 628 885 1412 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 628 - - - - -
          Stage 1 829 - - - - -
          Stage 2 854 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 9.8 4.2 0
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1412 - 791 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.045 - 0.044 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 7.7 0 9.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.1 - 0.1 - -



Lanes, Volumes, Timings Build (2028) AM
18: Access B & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 15

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 0 8 606 31 0
Future Volume (vph) 0 0 8 606 31 0
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00
Frt
Flt Protected 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 0 0 3536 1770 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 0 0 3536 1770 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 313 100 1023
Travel Time (s) 8.5 2.7 27.9
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 0 9 673 34 0
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 0 0 682 34 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 9 15 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 27.0% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15



HCM 6th TWSC Build (2028) AM
18: Access B & College Street Burdette North TIS

10/16/2025 Synchro 12 Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 16

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 8 606 31 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 8 606 31 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 9 673 34 0

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 355 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 355 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 617 0
          Stage 1 - - - 0
          Stage 2 - - 681 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 617 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 617 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 681 -

Approach WB NB
HCM Ctrl Dly, s/v 11.2
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 617 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.056 - -
HCM Ctrl Dly (s/v) 11.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - -



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 

 
SIMTRAFFIC ANALYSIS REPORTS 



Queuing and Blocking Report
Existing (2025) AM 10/16/2025

11 - EX AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement EB WB NB NB SB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR L TR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 61 360 31 317 150 329
Average Queue (ft) 31 312 3 132 36 165
95th Queue (ft) 45 419 16 258 91 283
Link Distance (ft) 16 341 507 1225
Upstream Blk Time (%) 48 26
Queuing Penalty (veh) 83 120
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 125 125
Storage Blk Time (%) 10 14
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1 8

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB NB SB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR L TR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 62 334 67 327 115 175
Average Queue (ft) 31 282 15 158 46 64
95th Queue (ft) 45 392 55 279 90 134
Link Distance (ft) 13 309 1047 507
Upstream Blk Time (%) 54 13
Queuing Penalty (veh) 124 53
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 9 0 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 0 1

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement EB WB NB
Directions Served TR LT LR
Maximum Queue (ft) 15 555 292
Average Queue (ft) 1 245 140
95th Queue (ft) 9 681 412
Link Distance (ft) 341 1137 508
Upstream Blk Time (%) 2 4
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 3
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Existing (2025) AM 10/16/2025

11 - EX AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 194 872 352 225
Average Queue (ft) 89 421 139 114
95th Queue (ft) 167 1018 308 198
Link Distance (ft) 309 1185 990 508
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 209 26 36 57
Average Queue (ft) 83 2 8 18
95th Queue (ft) 177 13 29 65
Link Distance (ft) 1053 16 506 1230
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 326 30 138 81
Average Queue (ft) 138 2 44 21
95th Queue (ft) 296 15 135 85
Link Distance (ft) 1159 13 988 506
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 398



Queuing and Blocking Report
Existing (2025) PM 10/16/2025

12 - EX PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement EB WB NB NB SB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR L TR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 67 355 43 208 224 783
Average Queue (ft) 32 238 7 85 59 265
95th Queue (ft) 48 382 29 165 146 766
Link Distance (ft) 16 341 507 1225
Upstream Blk Time (%) 70 13 8
Queuing Penalty (veh) 166 36 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 125 125
Storage Blk Time (%) 3 0 21
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 2 25

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB NB SB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR L TR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 46 334 154 375 184 202
Average Queue (ft) 30 299 30 183 75 81
95th Queue (ft) 39 381 109 321 150 167
Link Distance (ft) 13 309 1047 507
Upstream Blk Time (%) 72 39
Queuing Penalty (veh) 207 111
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 12 1 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 5 7 2

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement EB WB NB
Directions Served TR LT LR
Maximum Queue (ft) 15 529 139
Average Queue (ft) 1 93 35
95th Queue (ft) 7 476 91
Link Distance (ft) 341 1137 508
Upstream Blk Time (%) 3
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Existing (2025) PM 10/16/2025

12 - EX PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 272 810 440 258
Average Queue (ft) 130 423 183 117
95th Queue (ft) 232 903 418 214
Link Distance (ft) 309 1185 990 508
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 2
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 792 31 161 783
Average Queue (ft) 512 5 67 423
95th Queue (ft) 961 21 175 835
Link Distance (ft) 1053 16 506 1230
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 22
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 1193 30 694 488
Average Queue (ft) 949 4 358 332
95th Queue (ft) 1424 21 702 554
Link Distance (ft) 1159 13 988 506
Upstream Blk Time (%) 44 0 0 13
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 1 0 2
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 587



Queuing and Blocking Report
No-Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

21 - NB AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement WB WB NB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 372 380 67 219 390
Average Queue (ft) 335 343 20 83 212
95th Queue (ft) 412 406 53 175 336
Link Distance (ft) 342 342 532 1213
Upstream Blk Time (%) 37 43
Queuing Penalty (veh) 167 194
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR L T
Maximum Queue (ft) 38 46 259 123 99
Average Queue (ft) 24 29 89 48 29
95th Queue (ft) 31 38 192 91 77
Link Distance (ft) 10 10 1035 532
Upstream Blk Time (%) 82 81
Queuing Penalty (veh) 174 172
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 854 834 167
Average Queue (ft) 447 440 51
95th Queue (ft) 1042 1022 172
Link Distance (ft) 1136 1136 531
Upstream Blk Time (%) 8 9
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
No-Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

21 - NB AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 100 105 216 322
Average Queue (ft) 34 42 88 144
95th Queue (ft) 75 88 171 265
Link Distance (ft) 307 307 978 531
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR LT TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 7 8 56 40
Average Queue (ft) 0 0 21 17
95th Queue (ft) 5 5 49 44
Link Distance (ft) 17 17 530 1219
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 1186 1190 658 205
Average Queue (ft) 947 936 338 86
95th Queue (ft) 1423 1424 661 255
Link Distance (ft) 1155 1155 976 530
Upstream Blk Time (%) 50 49
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 709



Queuing and Blocking Report
No-Build (2028) PM 10/16/2025

22 - NB PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement WB WB NB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 364 370 223 480 1245
Average Queue (ft) 334 256 116 200 782
95th Queue (ft) 407 489 267 545 1573
Link Distance (ft) 342 342 532 1213
Upstream Blk Time (%) 74 39 21 47
Queuing Penalty (veh) 222 115 106 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 40 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 201 3

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR L T
Maximum Queue (ft) 32 53 906 229 118
Average Queue (ft) 22 29 403 59 20
95th Queue (ft) 31 39 1060 171 76
Link Distance (ft) 10 10 1035 532
Upstream Blk Time (%) 84 79 22
Queuing Penalty (veh) 235 222 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%) 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 0

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 1158 1164 183
Average Queue (ft) 765 757 58
95th Queue (ft) 1539 1540 167
Link Distance (ft) 1136 1136 531
Upstream Blk Time (%) 53 52
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
No-Build (2028) PM 10/16/2025

22 - NB PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 153 156 293 173
Average Queue (ft) 42 53 118 44
95th Queue (ft) 114 132 216 133
Link Distance (ft) 307 307 978 531
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR LT TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 34 9 53 507
Average Queue (ft) 14 0 23 190
95th Queue (ft) 33 5 49 550
Link Distance (ft) 17 17 530 1219
Upstream Blk Time (%) 61 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 156 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 1193 1195 778 536
Average Queue (ft) 1090 1083 476 462
95th Queue (ft) 1381 1386 821 665
Link Distance (ft) 1155 1155 976 530
Upstream Blk Time (%) 76 75 0 65
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 0 48
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 1310



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

31 - BLD AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement WB WB NB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 265 269 93 213 383
Average Queue (ft) 225 230 22 75 201
95th Queue (ft) 331 339 62 167 361
Link Distance (ft) 244 244 532 1213
Upstream Blk Time (%) 32 39
Queuing Penalty (veh) 153 183
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR L T
Maximum Queue (ft) 38 47 235 103 102
Average Queue (ft) 24 29 80 44 28
95th Queue (ft) 33 37 171 81 79
Link Distance (ft) 10 10 1035 532
Upstream Blk Time (%) 83 82
Queuing Penalty (veh) 178 176
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 1127 1122 197
Average Queue (ft) 800 797 121
95th Queue (ft) 1479 1468 249
Link Distance (ft) 1136 1136 203
Upstream Blk Time (%) 41 42 37
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 15
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

31 - BLD AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 112 121 513 260
Average Queue (ft) 38 45 156 123
95th Queue (ft) 95 98 501 234
Link Distance (ft) 307 307 978 273
Upstream Blk Time (%) 3 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 1
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR LT TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 9 3 61 43
Average Queue (ft) 0 0 18 17
95th Queue (ft) 5 0 47 44
Link Distance (ft) 17 17 530 1219
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 1185 1195 722 140
Average Queue (ft) 1009 998 388 55
95th Queue (ft) 1433 1434 733 189
Link Distance (ft) 1155 1155 976 530
Upstream Blk Time (%) 59 58 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

31 - BLD AM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Intersection: 11: Hedge Street & Access A

Movement EB NB SB
Directions Served LR LT TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 160 188 26
Average Queue (ft) 44 71 1
95th Queue (ft) 148 238 23
Link Distance (ft) 1140 273 203
Upstream Blk Time (%) 13 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 7 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 18: Access B & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 69 98
Average Queue (ft) 42 48 30
95th Queue (ft) 77 75 88
Link Distance (ft) 41 41 1004
Upstream Blk Time (%) 28 37
Queuing Penalty (veh) 131 172
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 1015



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

32 - BLD PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 1

Intersection: 1: NE Main Street (SC 417) & College Street

Movement WB WB NB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 253 273 223 538 1235
Average Queue (ft) 245 171 121 239 886
95th Queue (ft) 252 358 272 618 1594
Link Distance (ft) 243 243 532 1213
Upstream Blk Time (%) 86 42 33 57
Queuing Penalty (veh) 274 135 167 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 150
Storage Blk Time (%) 44 9
Queuing Penalty (veh) 221 5

Intersection: 2: NE Main Street (SC 417) & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR L T
Maximum Queue (ft) 33 42 1050 237 161
Average Queue (ft) 21 25 439 50 16
95th Queue (ft) 32 43 1121 165 91
Link Distance (ft) 10 10 1035 532
Upstream Blk Time (%) 88 68 28 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 251 194 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%) 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 1

Intersection: 3: Hedge Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 1160 1159 198
Average Queue (ft) 812 797 102
95th Queue (ft) 1499 1507 226
Link Distance (ft) 1136 1136 203
Upstream Blk Time (%) 56 55 25
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 14
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

32 - BLD PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 2

Intersection: 4: Hedge Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 177 186 365 185
Average Queue (ft) 52 60 153 48
95th Queue (ft) 137 153 377 131
Link Distance (ft) 307 307 978 273
Upstream Blk Time (%) 2 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Main Street & College Street

Movement WB WB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR LT TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 36 3 60 613
Average Queue (ft) 16 0 23 231
95th Queue (ft) 37 3 50 620
Link Distance (ft) 17 17 530 1219
Upstream Blk Time (%) 68 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 177 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Main Street & Curtis Street

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served LT TR TR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 1186 1188 790 538
Average Queue (ft) 1107 1101 465 472
95th Queue (ft) 1345 1351 837 655
Link Distance (ft) 1155 1155 976 530
Upstream Blk Time (%) 80 78 71
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 52
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build (2028) AM 10/16/2025

32 - BLD PM Burdette North TIS SimTraffic Report
Impact Designs, Inc. Page 3

Intersection: 11: Hedge Street & Access A

Movement EB NB
Directions Served LR LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 91 179
Average Queue (ft) 26 36
95th Queue (ft) 75 159
Link Distance (ft) 1140 273
Upstream Blk Time (%) 4
Queuing Penalty (veh) 4
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 18: Access B & College Street

Movement WB WB NB
Directions Served LT T L
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 66 506
Average Queue (ft) 47 33 214
95th Queue (ft) 59 76 516
Link Distance (ft) 42 42 1003
Upstream Blk Time (%) 85 42
Queuing Penalty (veh) 260 128
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 1886



APPENDIX E 

BACKGROUND IMPROVEMENTS

 















































Page 1 of 1 

December 2, 2025 

To: City Council – Reading 

From: Planning Director, Jon Derby 

Subject: Textile Rehabilitation Certification, Burdette Textile Mill 

Meeting Date: December 9, 2025 

Type of Agenda Item: Resolution 

Attachments:                   Resolution 

REQUEST 

The City of Simpsonville has received a request to certify, by Resolution, that 118 NE Main St. & 124 NE 
Main St. (Tax Map# 0315.00-02-004.00 & 0315.00-02-001.00) are the former locations of textile 
manufacturing operations that served the contiguous sites of the Burdette Building and the Simpsonville 
Oil Mill gin. This will allow the property owners to apply for income tax credits to help offset the costs of 
redeveloping the sites. 

Nothing has changed since the Committee of the Whole Meeting on November 25th. 

LOCATION & SITE DESCRIPTION 

The subject properties are located at 118 NE Main St. & 124 NE Main St. These locations currently contain 
the old City Hall site and the prior Suntrust / AAA Insurance building.  

STAFF COMMENTS 

Staff finds that there is evidence that this site, along with the surrounding properties, were used for 
textile manufacturing. By obtaining income tax credits, there will not be a negative monetary impact to the 
City. 

AGENDA ITEM 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-05 

A RESOLUTION 

TO PROVIDE CERTIFICATION AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 12-65-60 OF 
THE SOUTH CAROLINA TEXTILES COMMUNITIES REVITALIZATION 
ACT (S.C. CODE SECTION 12-65-10, ET SEQ.) FOR A PORTION OF THAT 
CERTAIN PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE BURDETTE DISTRICT, LOCATED 
BETWEEN MAIN STREET, COLLEGE STREET, HEDGE STREET AND 
CURTIS AVENUE, IN SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, Blue Ridge Holdings, LLC and certain of its affiliates (collectively, the 
“Burdette South Owners”) intend to restore and redevelop the Burdette Store, located on that certain 
land parcel identified as Greenville County TMS No. 0311.00-01-001.00 (the “Burdette South 
Property”), and Blue Ridge Holdings, LLC  and certain of its affiliates and other property owners 
(collectively, the “Burdette North Owners”) intend to redevelop certain additional textile mill 
properties located on those certain land parcels identified as Greenville County TMS Nos. 
0315000200100 and 0315000200400 (collectively, the “Burdette North  Property”, and together 
with the Burdette South Property, the “Burdette District”), all generally located between Main Street, 
College Street, Hedge Street and Curtis Avenue, in Simpsonville , South Carolina, and the Burdette 
South Owners and the Burdette North Owners intend to rehabilitate such properties in a manner that 
qualifies for South Carolina income tax credits under the South Carolina Textiles Communities 
Revitalization Act, S.C. Code Section 12-65-10 et seq. (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, a taxpayer may apply to the municipality or county in 
which the textile mill site is located for a certification of the textile mill site made by ordinance or 
binding resolution of the governing body of the municipality or county.  The certification shall 
include findings that the: 

(1) textile mill site was a textile mill as defined in S.C. Code Section 12-65-20(3);

(2) textile mill site has been abandoned as defined in S.C. Code Section 12-65-20(1); and

(3) geographic area of the textile mill site is consistent with S.C. Code Section 12-65-20(4).

WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 2020-04, dated September 8, 2020, the Mayor and City
Council of the City of Simpsonville, South Carolina certified the Burdette South Property as an 
abandoned textile mill site under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Burdette North Owners have requested a certification in the form of a 
binding resolution of the Burdette North Property as an abandoned textile mill site pursuant to the 
Act in order to encourage investment by potential investors in the redevelopment of the Burdette 
North Property and the Burdette District as a whole; and 



RESOLUTION NO.:  2025-05 

Page 2 

WHEREAS, the County has determined that the redevelopment of the Burdette North 
Property and the Burdette District as a whole will be highly beneficial to the City and the residents 
and businesses of the community surrounding the Burdette District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA: 

Section 1. The Burdette North Owners have submitted to the City a request to certify 
the Burdette North Property as an abandoned textile mill site pursuant to Section 12-65-60 of the 
Act. 

Section 2. Based upon the information supplied by the Burdette North Owners and the 
City’s search of its records, the City hereby certifies that (i) the Burdette North Property was a 
textile mill as defined in S.C. Code Section 12-65-20(3), (ii)  the Burdette North Property textile 
mill site has been abandoned as defined in S.C. Code Section 12-65-20(1), and (iii) the geographic 
area of the Burdette North Property textile mill site is consistent with S.C. Code Section 12-65-
20(4). 

Section 3. This Resolution does not provide any tax relief whatsoever and the City 
expresses no opinion regarding the availability of any tax relief or benefit to the Burdette North 
Owners beyond the certification contained herein. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 

RESOLVED THIS THE ___ DAY OF ________, 2025. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

 Paul Shewmaker 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ashley Clark Daniel Hughes 
City Clerk City Attorney 



Burdette District 
Redevelopment 

PIN / Tax Map # 

 0315000200100 

0315000200400 

Simpsonville, South Carolina 

REQUEST FOR TEXTILE MILL SITE CERTIFICATION 

October 31, 2025



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Timeline of Ownership and Uses  
Location of Mill Buildings  
Documentation of Acquisition by Current Owners 
Evidence of Mill Closure and Details on Operations over Last 1+ Years 
Geographic Area of Textile Mill Site 
Confirmation that Facility has not Previously Received Textile Mill Credits 
Estimated Investment & Timeline 

Exhibit A - Evidence of Use / Closure of Facility 
Exhibit B - Property Reports 



TIMELINE OF OWNERSHIP AND USES 

The Burdette Textile Facility is significant for its association with the textile industry in South 
Carolina during its most successful period of expansion and production. The parcels included in 
the Burdette Textile Facility were contributing parts to the growth of Simpsonville during the 
twentieth century with the textile industry at its center.  

A record of ownership for each parcel from the Greenville County real property services is 
attached.  

0315000200100 – Blue Ridge Holdings 
0315000200400 – City of Simpsonville 

Between the 1930s and 1970s Sanborn maps and aerial photographs show several light 
industrial and warehouse buildings on the parcels. These buildings are locally known to have 
served the textile manufacturing operations in different capacities through those decades, both 
as cotton and finished product warehousing and light industrial uses supporting the textile 
manufacturing. Previous owners of these parcels included local business people that operated 
textile concerns or companies supporting textile manufacturing operations including  
Rainwood, Inc. a company owned and operated by textile businessmen James H. Woodside and 
F.D. Rainey.

These parcels are contiguous to the former Burdette manufacturing facility that operated at the 
corner of Hedge Street and East Curtis Street between 1951 and 1974 on parcel # 
0315000300700. Property records indicate that B.W. Burdette purchased that property in 1951 
and local accounts and aerial photos show and large one-story textile manufacturing building 
until the late 1970s. The property was sold by Burdette in 1979 and a 1981 aerial photo shows 
that the manufacturing building was replaced at the same time structures on the three parcels 
above were demolished.  

LOCATION OF MILL BUILDINGS 

The parcels are located in the City of Simpsonville, South Carolina. Jointly they are bound on the 
west by North Main Street, to the east by Hedge Street, to the north by College Street, and at 
the south by a series of commercial parcels facing south toward East Curtis Street.  

According to local accounts the parcels were integral to textile operations are in close proximity 
to several sites that previously manufactured textiles including the Burdette Building at the 
corner of East Main and East Curtis Street, a Burdette-owned facility formerly located at the 
northeast corner of Hedge Street and East Curtis Street, and the Simpsonville Oil Mill ginning 
facility formerly located on the block west of Main Street and south of College Street.  



        

DOCUMENTATION OF ACQUISITION BY CURRENT OWNERs 

Current owners of the Burdette District are as follows: 
 
0315000200100 – Blue Ridge Holdings, LLC 
0315000200400 – Blue Ridge Holdings, LLC 
 

 

EVIDENCE OF MILL CLOSURE AND DETAILS ON OPERATIONS 

OVER THE LAST 1+ YEARS 

The parcels of land associated with PIN / Tax Map # 0315000200100 and 0315000200400 
 were instrumental in the manufacturing and operations of textiles concerns in downtown 
Simpsonville. The operations on these parcels and the textile manufacturing facilities that 
historically operated proximate to these parcels all went out of operation prior to 1980. The 
Simpsonville Oil Mill gin and the Burdette manufacturing facility have both been demolished. 
The ancillary uses on these three parcels likewise ceased by 1981 and the parcels currently hold 
a series of commercial buildings and the City Hall.    
 
See Exhibit A.  
 

 

GEOGRAPHIC AREA OF TEXTILE MILL SITE 

The textile mill site consisting of the 3 parcels identified above contained structures that were 
integral to textile manufacturing processes and ancillary uses on the site and activities at the 
Burdette Building, Simpsonville Oil Company cotton gin and other associated textile activity in 
downtown Simpsonville.   
 
These primary uses were related to textile manufacturing, dyeing, or finishing operations on a 
textile mill site consisting of sales, distribution, storage, water runoff, wastewater treatment 
and detention, pollution control, landfill, personnel offices, security offices, employee parking, 
dining and recreation areas, and internal roadways or driveways directly associated with such 
uses. 

 

 



CONFIRMATION THAT FACILITY HAS NOT PREVIOUSLY 

RECEIVED TEXTILE MILL CREDITS 

None of the property identified as 0315000200100 nor 0315000200400  has received the 

textile mill credits. 

A nearby building and lot, the Burdette Building, has received Textile mills credits, and is listed 

in the National Register of Historic Places.  The remaining portion of the Burdette Building has 

not received Textile mill credits. 

ESTIMATED INVESTMENT & TIMELINE 

The total investment related to the redevelopment of the two tax parcels will be approximately 

$25 million.  Construction is expected to start in Q3 2026 and be completed in Q4 2027. 



EXHIBIT A – EVIDENCE OF USE/CLOSURE OF FACILITY 

Sanborn Map 1930 

Aerial Map 1955 showing previous textile manufacturing and ancillary building footprints 

Aerial Map 1976 showing previous textile manufacturing and ancillary building footprints 

Aerial Map 1981 showing current structures after demolition of textile use 



Sanborn Map 1930 



Aerial Maps 1955 



Aerial Map 1976 



Aerial Maps 1981 



EXHIBIT B – PROPERTY REPORTS 



Burdette North Property 

PIN / Tax Map # 

 0315000200100 







Burdette North Property 

PIN / Tax Map # 

0315000200400 







Burdette Central 

Burdette Building Property 

Certified – September 8, 2020 

PIN / Tax Map # 

0311.00-01-001.00 













RESOLUTION ____________-2025 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE ACCEPTANCE OF VACANT LAND 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.279 ACRES LOCATED BETWEEN 

FAIRVIEW ROAD AND S. MAIN STREET IN THE CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE 

WHEREAS, Garrett Simpsonville Center, LLC, the owner of the property identified 
as 0.279 acres shown on the plat attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and further identified by 
Greenville County Tax Map No. 0323000100104 (hereinafter “the Property”) desire to 
donate said property to the City of Simpsonville; and,  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council find that the Property is best utilized for a 
municipal park or recreation area and further find that acceptance of the Property is in the 
best interests of the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

Section 1. That the Property be accepted by the City of Simpsonville.  

ADOPTED this  _____  day of November 2025. 

CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA  

BY: ________________________________  
Paul Shewmaker, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

___________________________________  
Ashley Clark, Municipal Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes  



Exhibit A 
 

Property Description 
 

 
All that tract or parcel of land, with all buildings and improvements, containing 0.279 acres, 
more or less, in the City of Simpsonville, in Greenville County, South Carolina shown on a 
"Record Survey of Garrett Simpsonville Center, LLC" by Freeland & Associates, Inc. dated 
March 4, 2011 and recorded January 17, 2019 in Plat Book 1326 at Page 60 of the records of the 
Greenville County, South Carolina Register of Deeds.   
 
Derivation: This being a portion the same property transferred by deed of South Carolina 
Department of Transportation dated October 9, 2006 and recorded October 16, 2006 in Book DE 
2232 at Page 180 of the Greenville County Register of Deeds.  
 
TMS: 0323000100104 
  



LEGEND= 
POB POINT OF BEGINNrNG 
POC POINT CF COMMENCEME:NT 

0 IPS IRON PIN sn (5/8� REBAR) 
0 ,,,, IRON PIN FOUND 

LlMllED ACCESS 
C/L CENTERLINE 
R/11' RIGHT-OF-WAY 

on, pp POWER POLE 

* LIGHT POLE
* LS LIGHT STANDARD 

0 EM ELECTRIC METER - 1 HEAD LIGHT STANDARD ••• 2 HEAD UGHT STANDARD 
T 
w 

-3 HEAD LIGHT STANDARD 
!><I WATER VALVE 
@ WATER METER 
� FIRE HYDRANT 
® WMH WATER MANHOLE 
0 FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION 
<Ii) SOMH STORM DRAIN MANHOLE 

□ CB CATCH BASIN 
<Ii) CBMH CATCH BASIN MANHOLE 

□ CBD! CATCH BASIN DROP INLET 

RCP REINFORCED CONCRETE P1PE 

CMP CORRUGAlED METAL PIPE 

PVC POL Y\IIN'!'l.._ CHL-OOfDE PIPE 
DIP DUCTILE IRON PIPE 

® SSMH SANITARY S£:WER MANHOLE 
@ GREASE MANHOLE 
0 co CLEANOUT ., UGMRK UNDERGROUND GAS MARKER 
l><i CV GAS VALVE 
0 GM GAS METER "" TP TELEPHONE POLE 

El UTMKR UNDERGROUND TEttPHONE MARKER 
El 1PED TELEPHONE PEDESTAL 
El FOCMK� FIBER OPTIC CABLE MARKER 
• GUARD POST 
-,,- SIGN 
-OE- O\IERHEAO ELECTRIC UNE 
--SS- SANITARY SEWER LINE 
- OT·--- OVERHEAD TELE:PHONE LINE. 

STORM DRAIN PfPE 
-x- FENCE 

TMS# 320-1-16.7 
N/F 

RANDY C. WILLIS 
JOHN M. ELLEDGE

DB 1254-789 

CURVE TABLE 
CURVE 

C1 
C2 
C3 
C4 
C5 
C6 

LINE 
L1 
L2 
l3 
L4 
L5 
L6 
L7 
L9 
L10 
l11 
L12 
L13 
L14 
L15 
L16 
L17 
l18 
L19 
L20 
L21 

L22 TIE 
L23 TIE 

RADIUS LENGTH TANGENT 
280.81' 2"""·"'>' 106.63' 

3245.05' 207.73' 103.90' 
676.20' 145.16' 72.86' 
726.62' 224.14' 112.97' 
676.20' 136.88' 68.67' 
726.62' 135.42' 67.91' 

LINE TABLE 
LENGTH 

4.83' 
15.40' 
43.90' 
59.97' 
I!."\ R1' 

65.59' 
103.93' 
57.91' 
50.00' 
50.00' 
30.33' 

2.50' 
81.66' 
34.04' 
62.68' 
18.84' 
95.61' 
11.13' 
35.53' 
26.53' 
79.34' 
18.74' 

BEARING 
<:: 37"23'!'\6" E 
N 61 '22'56" F' 
c:: nn•45•17• W 
S 05"37'52" E 
S 06'56'38" W 
S 32'06'15" W 
S 41 "46'28" W 
N 08'08'13" W 
N 24'00'13" W 
N 50"18'13" w 
N 71"51'13" W 
s 16·n5•19• w

S 39'311'""" E 
S 03"11'59" W 
c:: 76"17'05" W 
N 52'32'00" W 
S 25'55'36" E 
S 64'21'24" W 
N 83'01'57" W 
N 39"1 ?'02" W 
S 88'57'57" E 
N 47'40'04" W 

TMS# 320-1-16.6
N/F 

CHORD 
199.37' 
207.69' 
144.89' 
223.25' 
136.65' 
135 . .,..,. 

W & E INVESTMENTS SC GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP 
DB 1474--829 
PB 24-M-58 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

TMS# 320-1-16.8
N/F 

SUSAN H. BRIGHT
DB 1906-1218 
PB 41-U-83 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

IPF 3/4" 
CRIMP TOP

TMS# 320-1-16.4 \
\ N/f 

MARKETING GROUP LLC\ 
DB 2382-3956 \

REF. !PF 3/4" 
CRIMP TOP BENT 
@ 253.52'; 0.09' 
RIGHT OF LINE 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

- -

\ 
\ 

REF. !PF 1 /2"
REBAR BENT 
@ 153.30' 

IPF 3/4" --.._
CRIMP TOP 

FENCE AND 
TRANSFORMER 

PROJECTS OVER 
PROPERTY LINE TRANSFOR� 

-SP--/.\.dwg

BEARING 
N 06"52'54" E 
S 26'28'17" E 
N 20'03'41" W 
S M_'54'41" W 
N ,lj!.•AA'04" w 
S ""'"U.'43" W 

FEN CE AND WALL 
OVER LINE 

WALL W/ 
FENCE 

,t 
d;&".t­
S'j' 

carnjif' 

j' 
j' 

-

DELTA 
41"35'10" 
3'40'04" 
12'1"'00" 
1740'?6" 
11•35'!'\3" 
10'40'42" 

-
-

13.317 ACRE TRACT 

Beglnnlng at an iron pin located at the intersection of the eastern right
of way of South Street ( variable width right of way) and the transitional
northern right of way of Fairview Rood (90' R/W from C/L); thence with
said eostem right of way N 52-32-00 W for 18.84 feet to an iron pin;
thence olong o curve conco:ve: to the northeast having o radius of 
676_20 feet, an arc length of 136.88 feet and a chord bearing and 
distance of N 46-44-04 W for 136.65 feet to an 1ron pin; thence N 
08-08-13 W for 57.91 feet to an iron pin; thence N 24-00-13 W for 
50.00 feet to on iron .pin; thence N 50-18-13 W for 50.00 feet ta on
iron pin: thence N 71-51-13 W for 30.33 feet to on Iron pin; thence 
along a curve concave to the northeast having a radius of 676.20 feet,
on arc length of 145.16 feet and a chord bearing and distance of N 
20-03-41 W for 144.89 feet to on iron pin; thence N 13-54-41 W for
149.03 feet to a right of way monument; thence S 76-05-19 W for 
2.50 feet to o rlght of way monvment; thence N 13-54-41 W for 
843.74 feet to an iron pin; thence along a curve con-cove to the east 
having a radius of 280.8i feet, on arc length of 203.82 feet and a 
chord beorlng and distance of N 06-52-54 E for 199.37 feet to an iron
pin; thence leaving said eastern right of woy along the common line of 
Willis & Elledge (D.8. 1254 PG 789) SSH Marketing Group LLC (D.S. 2382 
PG 3956) and Bright (D.S. 1906 PG ;218) respectively S 47-40-04 E for
365.77 feet to on iron pin; thence along the common line of said Bright 
S 37-23-56 E for 4,83 feet to an Iron pln; thence along the common 
line of W & E Investments SC (D.B. 1474 PG 829) S 38-56-19 E for 
307.31 feet to an iron pin; thence N 61-22-56 E for 15.40 feet to on
iron pin; thence with the western right of way of South Main Street (33'
R/W from C/L) along a curve concave to the northeast having a. rodius 
of 3245.05 feet, an ore length of 207.73 feet and o chord bearing and 
distance of S 26-28-17 E for 207.69 feet to an lron pin; thence S 
28-17w54 £ for 322.88 feet to on Iron pin; thence S 00-46�17 W for
43.90 feet lo a noi!; thence S 05-37-52 E for 59.97 feet to o naH 
w/cop: thence S 06-06-3!3 W for 65.81 feet to G nail; thence S 
32-06-15 W for 65.59 feet to a null; thence S 41-46-28 W for 103.93 
feet to an iron pin; thence S 39-36-58 E for 81.66 feet to on iron pin;
thence with the transitional northGrn right of way of sold Folrvlew Road S
03-11-59 W for 34.04 feet to an iron pin; thence with the northern 
right of way of said Fairview Road otong a curve concave to the 
southeast ha.ving a radius of 726.62 feet, an arc length of 224.14 feet 
and o chord bearing and distance of S 35-54-41 W for 223.25 feet to 
an iron pin� thence with said translt!onol northern right of way of 
Fairview Road S 76-17-05 W for 62,68 feet to the Beginning containing
13.317 Acres (580,104 Sq. Ft.) more or less. 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

I 

\ 
\ 

0.279 ACRE TRACT 

Comrnendng at an iron pin located at the intersection of the eastern 
right of way of South Street (variable width right of way) and the 
transitional northern right of woy of Fairview Road (90'R/W from C/L); 
thence with said eastern right of way N 52-32-00 W for 18.84 feet to 
on iron pin; thence along o curve concave to the northeast having o 
radius of 676.20 feet, an arc length of 136,88 feet end o chord bearing
and distance of N 46-44-04 W for 136.65 feet to on iron pin; thence 
leaving said eastern right of way with the common ilne of Garrett 
s;mpsanville Center LLC (D.S. 2007 PG 915) S 56-15-18 E for 30.80 
feet to on Iron pin; thence N 60-·20-19 E tor 78.24 feet to an iron pin;
thence N 44-25-19 E for 232.21 feet to an iron pin-; thence with a tie 
line S 88-57-57 E for 79.34 feet to an iron pin located along the 
.southern right of way of South Main Street (33' R/W from C/L) and 
being the Point of Beginning; thence with safd southern dght of way N 
44-50-15 E for 192.40 feet to an iron pin; thence along the western 
right of way of N/F The S.C.L. Railroad S 25-55-36 E tor 95.61 feet to
an iron pin: thence with the northern right of way of said Fairview Road 
S 64-21-24 W for 11.13 feet to an Iron pin; thence along a curve 
concave to the south having a radius of 726.62 feet, an ore length of 
135.42 feet and a chord bearing and distance of S 58-34-43 W for 
135.22 feet to an iron pin: thence with the tronsitlonal r!ght of way of 
sold Fairview Road N 83-01-57 W for 35.53 feet to an iron pin; thence
with the northeastern right of way of said South Main Street N 
39-12-02 W for 26.53 feet to the Point of Beginning containing 0.279
Acres (12,169 Sq. Ft.) more or less. 

TMS# PART 323-1-1.4 
N/F 

GARRETT SIMPSONVILLE
CENTER LLC 
DB 2232-180

12,169 SQ.FT. 
0.279 ACRES 

� IL 
. A 

NO
1 -............ 0 

;!), 
'y 

� 

1 1111111111 11111 11111 1111: 11111111111111111 111 1111111111 ll1111111 111111111 
2019004;5

"�
PI.AT/LG Book: l?L 1326 E'age: 0060 - 0060 

J"anuary 17; 2019 02:38:47 FM 

Rea: $10.00 

.-ILED IN GREENVILLE COUN'l''l , SC -f;A, J" A(, :;,' 

I 

\ 
I 

NOTICE: 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

SIGNAL'

� 
POLE 

�RHEAD 
3S5 SIGN 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

!PS 5/8"
REBAR 

\ 

\ 

�\ 
SIGNAL

/ POLE /2 

/,( 

--.._ __ DOT R/W FENCE 

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SC CODE OF LAWS, SECTION 
40-22-270(3), THIS PLAN. SPECIFICATION, OR PLAT SHALL NOT BE FILED
WITH PUBLIC AUTHORITIES WITHOUT THE SEAL. SIGNATURE AND DATE 
AFFIXED. FURTHERMORE, IF THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION OR PLAT DOES NO­
HA VE A SEAL THAT IS SIGNED AND DA TED, IT SHALL NOT BE USEO FOR 
ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN A PRELIMINARY STUDY DRAWING AND WILL BE
CONSIDE:RED A WORK IN PROGRESS. 

,, 

/ 

'"'1,.Q ,,,,
c, 

.. �p.oRN RO 
po-· 

VICINITY MAP (NOT TO SCALE) 

SURVEYOR'S NOTES: 

1.) I HEREBY STATE THAT TO THE BEST OF MY 
KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF, THE SURVEY 
SHOWN HEREON WAS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TI-IE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINIMUM STANDARDS MANUAL 
FOR THE PRACTICE OF LAND SURVEYING IN TI-IE STATE
OF SOUTH CAROLINA, AND MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR A CLASS "A" SURVEY AS SPECIFlED
THEREIN. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED W1TH!N A 
DESIGNATED FLOOD HAZARD AREA. 

2.) SQUARE FOOTAGE AND DIMENSIONS OF 
STRUCTURE(S) ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY, NOT FOR SALE OR LEASE PURPOSES. 

J.) ZONING PROVIDED BY THE APPROPRIATE
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY: TO BE USED FOR 
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. 

4.)THE WORDS "CERTIFY", "CERTIFIES" OR 
"CERTIFICATION" AS USED HEREIN ARE UNDERSTOOD TO
BE AN EXPRESSION OF PROFESSIONAL OPINION BY THE 
SURVEYOR, BASED UPON HIS BEST KNOWLEDGE, 
INFORMATION AND BELIEF, AS SUCH, DO NOT 
CONSTlllJTE A GUARANTEE NOR A WARRANTY,
EXPRESSED OR !MPLIED. 

5.) THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON WERE
TAKEN FROM PLANS PROVIDED BY THE UTILITY 
COMPANIES AND HAVE NOT BEEN FIELD MARKED BY 
LOCATOR SERVICES NOR FIELD VERIFIED BY THE 
SURVEYOR OTHER THAN VISUAL APPARATUS SUCH AS
VALVES AND METERS. CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL 
LOCATOR SERVICE FOR VERIFlCA TION PRIOR TO ANY 
CONSTRUCTION OR EXCAVATION. 

6.) ALL IPF /IPS ARE 5/8" REBAR UNLESS OTHERV\1SE
NOTED. 

TOTAL LAND AREA= 

592.273 SQ.FT. 
13.596 ACRES 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 

AND BENCHMARK= 

BASIS OF BEARINGS AND ELEVATIONS BASED 
ON GPS "RTK" OBSERVATION OF USGS 

MONUMENTS "GC018" AND "GC019" 

NAD 83 - NAVD 88 

FREELAND & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
323 WEST STONE A VE. 
GREENVILLE S.C. 29609 

TEL. (864) 271-4924 FAX: (864) 233-0315 
EMAIL: lnfo@freeland-ossociates.com 

DRAWN, JMP PARTY CHIEF: BG CHECKED: 

REF. PLAT BOOK: N/A 

REF. DEED BOOK: 2007-915; 2232-180 

TAX MAP : 323-1-1.Z; 323-1-1.4

DATE OF SURVEY: 3-4-11

DATE DRAWN: 3-10-11

DRAWING NO: 63074-SP-A 

DATE OF LAST REVISION: 

JRF 

o' 60' 120' 180' 

SCALE: 1" - 60' 

r 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

GREENVILLE COUNTY 

CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE 

RECORD SURVEY FOR 

GARRETT SIMPSONVILLE 

CENTER, LLC 

SITE ADDRESS: 
FAIRVIEW ROAD 

SIMPSONVILLE, SC 

SHEET10F1 



Grantee’s Address: __________________________ 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  TITLE TO REAL ESTATE 
)  (GENERAL WARRANTY DEED) 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that GARRETT SIMPSONVILLE 
CENTER, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, (“Grantor”), as a donation to the 
Grantee and no additional funds, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
has granted, bargained, sold, and released, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and 
release unto City of Simpsonville, South Carolina, a body politic (“Grantee”), and its successors 
and assigns forever, the following real property, to-wit: 

The real property described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

This conveyance is made subject to all conditions, covenants, easements, restrictions, and 
rights-of-way indicated by instruments, including plats, of record, and to all applicable zoning or 
other land use regulations or restrictions of any political subdivision in which the subject 
property is situate.    

 
TOGETHER WITH all and singular the rights, members, hereditaments and appurtenances to said 
premises belonging or in any wise incident or appertaining; TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and 
singular the premises before mentioned unto the Grantee, and the Grantee’s heirs or successors 
and assigns, forever.  And, the Grantor does hereby bind itself and its successors to warrant and 
FOREVER DEFEND all and singular said premises unto the Grantee and the Grantee’s heirs or 
successors and assigns, against the Grantor and its successors and against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof. 

   

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Grantor has caused these presents to be subscribed by its 
duly authorized officer as of the ____ day of November, 2025. 

 
SIGNED, sealed and delivered in  
the presence of: 
  
____________________________   
Witness 1       
Printed Name: ____________________ 
 
 
____________________________   
Witness 2 
Printed Name: ____________________ 
 
  

GRANTOR 
 
GARRETT SIMPSONVILLE CENTER, 
LLC 
 
By:       
Name:  Hunter B. Garrett 
Title: Manager  
 
 

 
[CORPORATE SEAL] 

 

  
  

 
            
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )        

)     
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) 

         
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Personally appeared before me Hunter B. Garrett, the Manager of Garrett Simpsonville 
Center, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, who, being by me first duly sworn, did 
depose and say that he has read the within instrument, that the statements and recitations made 
therein are true and that he acknowledges that he did sign said instrument as his free act and deed. 

Sworn to before me as of ______________ ____, 2025. 

       (SEAL) 
Name of Notary: ___________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ____________________ 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) AFFIDAVIT 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned, who being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I have read the information on this affidavit and I understand such information.

2. The property being transferred is located in Greenville County, South Carolina, bearing Greenville
County Tax Map Number 0323000100104 and was transferred by Garrett Simpsonville Center, LLC to  City
of Simpsonville, SC on _______________________________, 2025.

3. Check one of the following:  The deed is

(a) __ subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer for consideration paid or to be paid in 
money or money's worth. 

(b) ____ subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer between a corporation, a partnership, or
other entity and a stockholder, partner, or owner of the entity, or is a transfer to a trust 
or as a distribution to a trust beneficiary. 

(c) _X___ exempt from the deed recording fee because (See Information section of affidavit):
No. 2 Transfer to political subdivision 

4. Check one of the following if either item 3(a) or item 3(b) above has been checked (See Information
section of this affidavit.):

(a) ___  The fee is computed on the consideration paid or to be paid in money or money's
worth in the amount of $ ________________. 

(b) ____ The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty which is
_____________________________. 

(c) ____ The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty as established for property
tax purposes which is _____________________________. 

5. Check Yes _____ or No      to the following:  A lien or encumbrance existed on the land, tenement, or
realty before the transfer and remained on the land, tenement, or realty after the transfer.  If "Yes," the amount
of the outstanding balance of this lien or encumbrance is:
____________________________________________.

6. The deed recording fee is computed as follows:

(a) Place the amount listed in item 4 above here: $ ____________________

(b) Place the amount listed in item 5 above here: $__________________
(If no amount is listed, place zero here.)

(c) Subtract Line 6(b) from Line 6(a) and place result here: $_____________



7. The deed recording fee due is based on the amount listed on Line 6(c) above and the deed recording
fee due is: $_______________________

8. As required by Code Section 12-24-70, I state that I am a responsible person who was connected with
the transaction as:  Seller

9. I understand that a person required to furnish this affidavit who willfully furnishes a false or fraudulent
affidavit is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined not more than one thousand dollars or
imprisoned not more than one year, or both.

GARRETT SIMPSONVILLE CENTER, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 
Name: Hunter B. Garrett 
Title: Manager 

SWORN to before me this ______ day _____________, 2025. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public for __________________ 
My Commission Expires:____________ 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO ADOPT SECTION 26-71 

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT AND ADOPTION 
 OF THE TRESPASS ENFORCEMENT AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville finds that the public interest of the City requires 
careful balancing of the protection of individual constitutional protections with the fair, humane, 
and effective enforcement of regulations protecting use and enjoyment of private property rights, 
as well as the public health, safety, and welfare; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Simpsonville, based on these interests, finds it desirable and 
appropriate to adopt and implement the trespass enforcement authorization program to promote 
public safety through more efficient enforcement of the state trespass statute found in S.C. Code 
Ann. §16-11-620 and Section 26-67 of the Simpsonville Code of Ordinances (collectively, the 
“trespass statute”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Simpsonville to amend Article III (Offenses Against Property) of Chapter 26 (Offenses and 
Miscellaneous Provisions) by adding Section 26-71 (Trespass enforcement authorization program) 
as follows: 

Section 1. 

Sec. 26-71. Trespass enforcement authorization program. 

(a) A property owner, building owner, property manager or person having legal control of
property or their legal representative can authorize the City of Simpsonville Police
Department to enforce, in absolute police discretion, the trespass statute on their property. To
have the possibility of enforcement pursuant to this section, the person must:
(1) Appear in person at the law enforcement center or contact the police department for an

application and affidavit for the trespass enforcement authorization program; and 
(2) Declare the application and affidavit to be a public record for the purposes of Rule 803(8)

South Carolina Rules of Evidence and/or appear in municipal court if subpoenaed. 
(b) The application and affidavit must be notarized. After receipt of the sworn document, a site

visit will be conducted by the police. The police will determine if the location is appropriate 
for participation and will determine the number and placement of signs provided by the city. 
The person will be informed if the location is not suitable for enforcement, due to excessive 
undergrowth or other factors. If the location is suitable or then made suitable, the 
owner/representative will be notified and the authorized signs may be purchased by the 
participant from the city and will be placed by the city. The notice of participation in the 
program will be provided to appropriate law enforcement divisions.  



Page 2 of 3 

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person knowingly to enter or remain upon the premises of another
when the consent to enter or remain is either absent, denied, or withdrawn by the owner, 
occupant, or person having lawful control thereof.  

(d) When property has been posted by City of Simpsonville with conspicuous signage of
sufficient notice declaring the property to under the trespass enforcement authorization 
program, it shall be prima facie evidence that consent to enter or remain upon the premises 
of another is absent, denied, or withdrawn. A "conspicuous" sign shall mean a sign that is at 
least one square foot in size. "Sufficient notice" shall mean the lettering on a conspicuous 
sign is at least one inch in height and contains the following language or words of similar 
notice:  

NO TRESPASS AT ANY TIME (OR AS TIMES SET FORTH) 
THIS IS PRIVATE PROPERTY UNDER TRESPASS ENFORCEMENT AUTHORIZATION 

PROGRAM CITY OF SIMPSONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT  
(e) It shall be unlawful to deface, damage or remove any sign placed under authority of this

section.  

Section 2. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable 
and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 3. Suspension of Conflicting Ordinances, Rules, Orders or Resolutions. All 
ordinances, rules, orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 
such conflict, hereby suspended for the duration of this ordinance. 

Section 4. Savings Clause: Nothing in this ordinance hereby adopted shall be construed to 
affect any suit or proceeding in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause 
or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as stated in 
Section 2 of the ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, 
impaired or affected by this ordinance. 

Section 5. Effective Date of the Ordinance. This ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon passage. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this  day of  2025. 

SIGNATURE OF MAYOR: 

Paul Shewmaker 



Page 3 of 3 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Ashley Clark 
City Clerk 

First Reading:   **  , 2025 
Second Reading: ** , 2025 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Hughes 
City Attorney 


	AGENDA
	4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	7.A. COMMISSIONS & BOARDS APPOINTMENTS
	7.B. O-2025-11 - 2ND READING
	STAFF REPORT | 0-2025-11
	ORDINANCE O-2025-11

	7.C. AXZ-2025-03 - 2ND READING
	STAFF REPORT | AXZ-2025-03
	ORDINANCE AXZ-2025-03
	EXHIBIT A | AXZ-2025-03
	EXHIBIT B | AXZ-2025-03
	ANNEXATION APPLICATION | AXZ-2025-03
	REQUEST FOR ANNEXATION | AXZ-2025-03
	MAP SUBJECT PROPERTY | AXZ-2025-03
	MAP ZONING | AXZ-2025-03

	7.D. ORDINANCE-2025-12 - 2ND READING
	7.E. Z-2025-02 - 1ST READING
	STAFF REPORT | Z-2025-02
	ORDINANCE Z-2025-02
	EXHIBIT A | Z-2025-02
	EXHIBIT B | Z-2025-02
	MAP | Z-2025-02
	STATEMENT OF INTENT | Z-2025-02
	RENDERING 1 | Z-2025-02
	RENDERING 2 | Z-2025-02
	LAYOUT 1 | Z-2025-02
	LAYOUT 2 | Z-2025-02
	LAYOUT 3 | Z-2025-02
	ZONING AMENDMENT APPLICATION | Z-2025-02
	MAP 1 REZONING | Z-2025-02
	MAP 2 REZONING | Z-2025-02
	SITE DESIGN | Z-2025-02
	TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY | Z-2025-02
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | Z-2025-02
	DESCRIPTION OF CITY PROPERTY | Z-2025-02
	DESCRIPTION OF FORMER BANK PROPERTY | Z-2025-02
	DESCRIPTION OF FORMER BANK PROPERTY | Z-2025-02
	DEPTION OF PROJECT FACILITIES | Z-2025-02
	CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE | Z-2025-02
	STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS | Z-2025-02
	AREA OF HEDGE STREET TO NARROW | Z-2025-02

	7.F. R-2025-05 - 1ST READING
	STAFF REPORT | R-2025-05
	RESOLUTION R-2025-05
	BURDETTE DISTRICT REDEVELOPMENT REQUEST | R-2025-05
	RESOLUTION R-2020-04 | R-2025-05
	EXHIBIT A R-2020-04 | R-2025-05

	7.G. R-2025-06 - 1ST READING
	RESOLUTION R-2025-06
	EXHIBIT A PROPERTY DESCRIPTION | R-2025-06
	RECORD SURVEY - R-2025-06
	TITLE TO REAL ESTATE (DEED) | R-2025-06

	7.H. O-2025-13 - 1ST READING
	ORDINANCE O-2025-13




